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GRI 102-2, 102-7

CRÉDITO REAL IS A FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION PRESENT IN
MEXICO, THE UNITED STATES,
COSTA RICA, PANAMA,
HONDURAS AND NICARAGUA.
For more than 27 years we have been
offering innovative financial solutions to
the middle-and low-income segments
of the population, those which have
historically been underserved by the
traditional banking system. We have done
all of this through a solid, scalable and
well-diversified platform made up of the
following business lines: payroll loans,
small business loans, used car loans and
personal consumer loans.
Crédito Real’s shares are listed on the
Mexican Stock Exchange under the ticker
symbol CREAL* (Bloomberg: CREAL*:MM).
They are part of the FSTE BIVA index and,
since 2020 have also been part of the
S&P/BMV Total Mexico ESG Index.
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KEY

Facts and Figures
GRI 102-7, 201-1
SASB/FN-CB-000.B

NET INTEREST INCOME

MXN$5,538.6 MDP

LOAN PORTFOLIO

MXN$51,134.4 MDP

EMPLOYEES

NET INCOME

LOAN DELINQUENCY RATE

ENERGY CONSUMPTION

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

LOANS GRANTED IN THE YEAR

TRAINING HOURS

MXN$756.3 MDP

31.4%*

3.3%

178,887

MDP: Millions of pesos
*As a percentage of the total portfolio

5

657

1,115.7 GJ

34,177 HOURS
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redemption at 4 years, as part of our Medium-Term Note
program for up to USD$1.5 billion.
The proceeds of the issue were used as follows: 50% went
to debt refinancing and 50% to general corporate purposes,
basically expanding our loan portfolio.
On January 25, following a lending strategy focused
on diversifying our funding sources under better credit
conditions, and with a solid commitment to ESG factors, we
successfully closed a USD$100 million line of credit at 7
years with the U.S. International Development Finance
Corporation (DFC). These resources will be used for loans
to small businesses headed by women.

MARCH 2021
JANUARY 2021
On January 8, together with two investment funds
administered through a specific purpose vehicle, we
acquired and paid for a package of credit rights and
collection rights, as well as trust rights, from Banco Ahorro
Famsa. The acquisition was conducted according to
current financial regulations and authorized by the IPAB
Board of Governors.
On January 22, we successfully completed an issue of
Senior Notes for a nominal amount of USD$500 million
on international markets, expiring in 2028, with bi-yearly
payments, a yield of 8.0% and option for partial or make-whole

6

On March 18, as part of our plan to improve and strengthen
our corporate governance, we decided to separate the

positions of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board of Directors. With this, Carlos Ochoa Valdés—

formerly Deputy CEO and CFO—took on the post of Chief
Executive Officer for the company.

Angel Romanos Berrondo remains Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Crédito Real, where together with the rest of the
Board and Mr. Ochoa he will support the company’s growth
and strategies.
At the same time, the Executive Committee—which had
supported the Board in its duties—was eliminated.
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MESSAGE FROM THE

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
GRI 201: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 102-14

TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS,

For Crédito Real, 2020 was an unprecedented year, marked
not only by a profound economic recession in Mexico but
by a series of restrictions on social interaction, both of them
because of the public health emergency caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic. We are proud to say that we overcame
these obstacles, working with leadership and resilience
together with all areas of the company and all employees,
who applied their talent and creativity to weather the storm.
One example of this was the deployment of our Business
Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan in all our businesses
and in all the countries where we are present.
We not only responded to the events as they unfolded; in many
cases we moved in an advance of them, working through four
core initiatives:
1. Prevention protocols to safeguard the health and
integrity of our employees against COVID-19, following
all the recommendations of the public health authorities
while maintaining operating resilience and reliable
remote work schemes.
2. Relief programs to retain our customer base, particularly
in the SME segment, which helped improve collections
and avoided depletion of our loan portfolio.

3. Cost saving initiatives to keep the business profitable.
4. Comprehensive capital management with the aim of
retaining adequate liquidity and keeping up with our
short- and medium-term financial obligations so that
we could capitalize on the country’s economic recovery
when the time came.
We also invested considerable resources in modifying our
commercial practices and adapting them to the changes
brought by the new normal, including increased process
automation, offering a greater measure of security to all
our customers.
Part of this company’s success in overcoming the challenges
of 2020 was the result of our business model diversification,
in terms of both currencies and products, in the various
countries where we are present, in addition to guarantees
and collateral in all our portfolios.
In operating terms, we continued to follow the strategy we
defined when the pandemic began, working closely with our
customers to address specific needs and develop solutions
on a case-by-case basis. We are confident that this brought
tremendous benefits for the company, as can be seen in the
results of the year.

7

We continued our sustainability efforts and projects in 2020
as the company’s situation permitted.
Attesting to the work we have done on Environmental, Social
and Governance (ESG) issues was Crédito Real’s inclusion
in the new S&P/BMV Total Mexico ESG Index, compiled by
the Mexican Stock Exchange, which includes 29 companies
selected for their superior performance by these criteria; and
the USD$100 million line of credit we received from the U.S.
International Development Finance Corporation (DFC), the
proceeds of which will be used for SME loans to businesses
headed by women.
I would like to conclude by expressing my unwavering
confidence in our business model and in the talent of our
team, which has helped us to overcome the challenges of
the COVID-19 pandemic. We have a solid financial position
and diversified funding sources, which are reflected in our
credit ratings.
We will continue to rely on our strength to build long-term value
through the correct and effective use of our resources, and
a solid focus on sustainable development. We have set our
sights high on continuing to expand financial inclusion in all the
latitudes where we operate.
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Finally, I would like to congratulate Carlos Ochoa, who
assumed the position of Chief Executive Officer of Crédito
Real in last January. Mr. Ochoa takes on responsibilities
I held for 25 years, and I am grateful for the trust placed
in me during this time.
This change was part of a package of initiatives undertaken to
strengthen our corporate governance and institutionalization.
I trust that we are in good hands and that together we can
continue to build a great company offering a comprehensive
and inclusive range of financial solutions.
I am sincerely grateful to all our customers, employees,
partners, distributors, investors and shareholders for their trust
and their confidence. Thanks to them, we have been able to
overcome the many challenges of 2020 and remain prepared
for the new normal, with a clear view of the change ahead of
us in 2021.

Ángel Romanos Berrondo
Chairman of the Board
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MESSAGE FROM THE

Chief Executive Officer
GRI 201: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 102-14

I am pleased to present to you the results of Crédito Real
for fiscal year 2020. It was a year in which the COVID-19
pandemic dampened economic activity around the world
and posed challenges that we met successfully thanks to
our resilient and diversified business model and effective
operating structure.
Before I begin, I want to thank the Board of the Directors
for the responsibility entrusted to me as Chief Executive
Officer, duties I will discharge with a firm determination
to continue strengthening our practices and corporate
structure while fulfilling our long-term vision, guided by
a solid focus on preserving asset quality and achieving
sustainable profitability.
Our chief priority in 2020 was the safety of our employees.
We worked closely with them, providing them with the
tools needed to continue doing their jobs, and with
our customers, listening to their needs and developing
custom-tailored solutions for each of them.

Crédito Real decided last year to preserve asset quality
and long-term growth based on a profitable structure and
proactive initiatives that will continue to ensure the wellbeing of our people.
This strategy yielded good results: an NLP of 3.3%, in
line with the industry average, a capital adequacy ratio of
31.4% of the total portfolio, and a cash position (cash and
equivalents + investment in securities) of MXN$2.19 billion
based on audited figures.
At the close of 2020, total assets stood 14.2% higher than
in 2019, at MXN$70.32 billion, supported by the growth of
the consolidated total portfolio.
The company’s total loan portfolio grew 8.9% YoY from
2019 to 2020, ending at MXN$51.13 billion, the result of an
expansion of the payroll loan, SME loan, and used car loan
business lines.

9

Looking at the results obtained by our various business lines
in 2020, the Payroll Loan portfolio brought in total revenues
of MXN$5.22 billion; Small and Mid-Sized Enterprise Loans
MXN$2.31 billion; Used Car Loans MXN$1.05 billion, with
a growth of 9.1% YoY for Mexico and 49.1% for the United
States. Our Personal Loan business brought in revenues of
MXN$2.78 billion for the company.
With Instacredit, Central America remains our second
largest geographic region, where the portfolio totaled
MXN$4.80 billion at the close of 2020.
Our overall loan delinquency ratio closed the year at 3.3%,
an increase of 200bp compared to 2019, despite the
climate prevailing in Mexico, remaining in line
with the industry.
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Among the highlights of 2020 were successful funding
transactions totaling USD$330 million; the consolidation
of the leasing business; and, as part of our value creation
strategy, the signing of a commercial agreement with Grupo
Famsa to expand payroll loan origination in northern Mexico.
I’d also like to mention that, in line with our strategy of
seeking out alternative funding sources, we successfully
launched a program of medium-term notes (MTN) for up
to USD$1.5 billion. Under this program Crédito Real will
be able to access funding in various markets, currencies
and maturity terms. The Japan Credit Rating Agency (JCR)
assigned the issue a global-scale rating of “BBB-“ with a
stable outlook.
We are grateful for the commitment of the entire Crédito
Real team--employees, partners and distributors--for
their invaluable efforts in achieving these 2020 results,
particularly in such a complex year, as well as our investors
for their confidence and our customers for their preference.
We are sure that 2021 will be great year for all of us to
continue achieving great results.

Carlos Ochoa

Chief Executive Officer
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OUR

story
GRI 102-16

1993

We begin offering loans for
durable and consumer goods.

1995
First public debt
issuance.

Start of payroll loan operations.

2004

2010

Issuance of first international bond for
USD$210 million at a rate of 10.25%.

2012

• Successful launch of our Initial Public Offering
(IPO) on the Mexican Stock Exchange.
• Incorporation of loans for SMEs and used cars.
• Acquisition of 49% of Crédito Maestro
(a payroll loan distributor).

• Development of a new corporate image
• Adoption of the 10 Principles of the U.N. Global Compact.
• Recognition as one of the world’s 100 top financial firms
according to World Finance.
• Ranked 17th in Banking, Insurance and Bonding and 89th
for Gender Equity by GPTW.
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Issuance of first international bond for
USD$210 million at a rate of 10.25%.

• Launch of our used car loan
business in the United States.
• Issuance of MXN$1 billion in long-term notes.
• Acquisition of 65% of AFS Acceptance.
• Acquisition of 55.21% of Resuelve.

2015
• Placement of an international bond for USD$625
million with a yield of 7.25% and maturity in 2023.
• Acquisition of 70% of Instacredit.
• We are included in the MSCI Mexico Small Cap
Index, the FTSE Small Cap and the Mexican Stock
Exchange’s IMC30 index.
• Ranked 48th most liquid stock on the Mexican
Stock Exchange.

2016

• Recognition for best corporate governance
rating by the Mexican Stock Exchange.
• Offering of USD$230 million in perpetual
subordinated bonds.
• First issuance under a portfolio securitization
program, for MXN$800 million.

2017
• Completion of an offering of non-callable unsecured
bonds expiring in 2022, for CHF$170 million, on the
Swiss market.
• Second issuance under the portfolio securitization
program, for MXN$615 million.

12

2018

• Offering of unsecured notes
totaling USD$400 million and
expiring in 2026, payable biyearly
and with a yield of 9.500%.
• Settlement of 2019 international
senior notes issue.
• Offering of EUR$350 million in
senior notes expiring in 2027.
• Issuance of MXN$750 million
under the portfolio securitization
program.
• Subscription of a five-year line of
credit for USD$50 million from IBD
Invest.
• Dividend payment to Crédito Real
shareholders totaling MXN$0.70
per share, the highest in the
company’s history.

2019
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• On February 21, 2020, Crédito Real signs a
USD$110 million syndicated credit at a term of 3
years. Of the proceeds received, USD$60 million
were allocated to Crédito Real and the remaining
USD$50 million to Instacredit.
• Signing of a USD$50 million line of credit at one
year, with BNP Paribas.
• On April 27, 2020, the Company successfully
launched a program of medium-term notes (MTN)
totaling up to USD$1.5 billion.
• Crédito Real is selected for inclusion in the S&P/
BMV Total Mexico ESG Index, a new sustainability
index launched by the S&P Dow Jones Indexes
(S&P DJI) and the Mexican Stock Exchange (BMV).
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2022 VISION
THE LARGEST NON-BANK FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION IN THE WORLD SERVING THE LATIN
MARKET, OFFERING SIMPLE, SPECIALIZED FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS.

TO BE

With this unwavering vision, in 2020 we adopted measures for dealing with
the COVID-19 pandemic in all our businesses, including relief programs for
our borrowers, the creation of additional loan-loss provisions and adopting
stricter origination standards.

AT CRÉDITO REAL WE CONTINUE
FOR ALL OUR STAKEHOLDERS.
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CORPORATE

structure

102-5, 102-7,

102-45, 203-2

STOCK OWNERSHIP OF CRÉDITO REAL, S.A.B. DE C.V., SOFOM, E.N.R. IN SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiary
Servicios Corporativos
Chapultepec, S.A. de C.V.

99.9%

Directodo México, S.A.P.I.
de C.V.

99.9%

CR-Fact, S.A.P.I. de C.V.

99.3%

Controladora CR México,
S.A. de C.V.

CRholdingint, S.A. de C.V.

14

% stake

99.9%

99.9%

Crédito Real USA, Inc.

100.0%

CR-Seg, Inc.

100.0%

Confianza Digital, S.A.P.I. de C.V.,
SOFOM, E.N.R.

35.1%

CReal Arrendamiento, S.A. de C.V.

49.0%

Anticipa, S.A.P.I. de C.V. (“Anticipa”)

50.0%

Operadora Equuelus, S.A.P.I.
de C.V. (“Equuelus”)

50.0%

Creal Nómina, S.A. de C.V.
(“Creal Nómina”)

99.9%
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CREDIT

products

GRI 102-2, 102-4, 102-6, 102-15, 202, 417, 419:
103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 419-1, FS6, FS7
SASB/FN-CB-000.B

Led by a skilled team of professionals, we have been
able together to face change and transform adversity into
opportunity, steadily advancing to achieve our goals.
This process has undoubtedly made us stronger and given
us new lessons that will keep us on the track toward our
higher purpose of “bringing opportunities to satisfy needs
and fulfill dreams.”
We offer the following products: (i) payroll loans; (ii) small
and mid-sized enterprise loans (SMEs); (iii) used car loans;
and (iv) personal loans, serving our more than 930,507
clients in Mexico, the United States and Central America.
Our relationship with customers is of the utmost importance
to us, and all our business decisions are directed toward
improving their experience, meeting their needs and creating
market value. To this end, we have established policies and
procedures with our distributors and commercial partners to
ensure excellence in customer service.
Our products and services were designed in terms that our
customers can easily understand, even if they do not have
prior credit experience. They are also fully compliant with the
laws and regulations of the countries where we are present,
and with our own internal policies. We are continually
monitoring our portfolio for consistency with local laws,

reviewing and strengthening controls for various activities,
all as part of our Annual Audit Plan.
We measure risk continuously, and this is one reason for the
sustainability of our business model.

16

We have a well-established process for reviewing our
operations through three types of audit: a team in each
business reviews policies and procedures, and we have
internal control audits as well as independent audits by
external consultants.
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PAYROLL
LOANS
DISTRIBUTORS

We offer these loans for unionized workers,
retired personal or pensioners of government
agencies and departments in Mexico, which
they can repay by regular deductions from
their paycheck or pension.
In September 2020, we began a commercial
agreement with Group Famsa, which became
a new distributor of our payroll loans.

57.5%

15

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

BIWEEKLY

AVERAGE LOAN SIZE

MXN$64,500
AVERAGE ANNUAL
INTEREST RATE

57%

TERM

NO. OF CUSTOMERS

LOAN DELINQUENCY RATE

SEGMENTS SERVED

40 MONTHS
1.7%

455,858
C+, C-, D+

INTEREST INCOME
(MILLIONS OF PESOS)
MXN$6,256.4
2018

MXN$6,989.3
2019

MXN$5,224.6

PERCENTAGE OF
PORTFOLIO

2020

Our Distributors:

Kondinero.
2020

Payroll loans.
Unionized employees of
government agencies.

17

Credifiel.

Personal loans by payroll or
automatic account deduction.
Agreements with government
institutions.

Crédito Maestro.

Customer-tailored loans.
Educational workers employed
by government institutions.
Pensioners and retirees with
custom-tailored loans.
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PERSONAL
LOANS
BRANCHES

We offer personal consumer loans, smallbusiness loans, auto and mortgage loans
in which the car or the real estate serve
as collateral, to middle- and low-income
customers.

65

AVERAGE LOAN SIZE

MXN$31,354

54%

MONTHLY

NO. OF CLIENTS

9.4%

153,259

44 MONTHS

AVERAGE ANNUAL INTEREST RATE

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Through our subsidiary Instacredit, we offer
these products for the unbanked low- and
middle-income segments of the population
in Costa Rica, Nicaragua and Panama.

TERM

LOAN DELINQUENCY RATE

5.3%

SEGMENTS SERVED

C+, C, D

INTEREST INCOME
(MILLIONS OF PESOS)
PERCENTAGE OF
PORTFOLIO

MXN$2,538.3
2018

MXN$2,881.2
2019

MXN$2,784.4
2020
2020

18
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USED CARS
LOANS
We provide these loans for the purchase of
semi-new and used cars in Mexico and the
United States, through alliances with various
automobile distributors.

DISTRIBUTORS

BRANCHES IN MEXICO

7

20

AVERAGE LOAN SIZE

MXN$166,196

DISTRIBUTORS IN THE UNITED STATES

1,637

TERM

59 MONTHS

NO. OF CUSTOMERS

23,389

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

MONTHLY

7.6%
AVERAGE ANNUAL INTEREST RATE

29%

LOAN DELINQUENCY RATE

1.4%

SEGMENTS SERVED

C+, C, C-, D

INTEREST INCOME
(MILLIONS OF PESOS)

PERCENTAGE OF
PORTFOLIO

MXN$662.0
2018

MXN$820.6
2019

MXN$1,053.1
2020

2020

19
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SMALL AND MID-SIZED ENTERPRISES (SME)
LOANS
We provide financing through non-revolving
short- and long-term lines of credit and leasing
to fund working capital and investment needs.
In the United States, we focus on providing
financing for Latin-owned businesses and
factoring for SMEs through strategic alliances.

OPERATORS

2

AVERAGE LOAN SIZE

MXN $3,525,271

NO. OF CUSTOMERS

TERM

21 MONTHS
SEGMENTS SERVED

3,436

C+, C

23.7%
INTEREST INCOME
(MILLIONS OF PESOS)
MXN$742.8
2018

PERCENTAGE OF
PORTFOLIO

MXN$1,143.4
2019

MXN$1,302.0
2020

2020
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Company Evolution

Mexico

2011

2012

2014

46,958

17,610

2015

51,344

82%

SMALL AND MID-SIZED
ENTERPRISE (SMEs) LOANS

23.7%*

USED CARS
LOANS

7.6%*

Loans for financing semi-new and used
cars in Mexico and the United States,
through alliances with various automobile
distributors.

23,927

2016

2018

2019

2020

7%
11%

57.5%*

Non-revolving short and long-term loans and
lease-financing to fund working capital and
investment needs for small and mid-sized
businesses in Mexico and the United States.

36,319

6,733

PAYROLL
LOANS

Loans payable via payroll deduction, for
public-sector employees and retirees.

100%

5,512

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Products

CAGR 28% in the last 9 years

13,805

FINANCIAL
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Mexico

Interest income

6,958.2

10,287.6

11,933.0

10,453.7

Central America

Net income

1,714.0

1,955.4

1,980.1

756.4

United States

Stockholders’ equity

9,277.4

15,935.6

16,063.9

16,068.5

PERSONAL
LOANS

9.4%*

Personal consumer loans, smallbusiness loans, auto and mortgage
loans in which the car or the real estate
serve as collateral, in Central America

1.8%*

(in millions of pesos)

OTHERS
(GROUP LOANS AND DURABLE GOODS)

+ profitable growth through product diversification
+ Sustainable growth rates at two-digit rates

* Percentage of the portfolio
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• Materiality
• Business strategy
• Sustainability strategy
• Performance metrics
• Profitability
• Solidity
• Sustainable growth
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Competitive advantages

d

ri
ist

b

• Solid value chain
• Alliances with strategic partners
• Code of ethics and conduct
• Sourcing manual

Financial, operating and sustainability results

Bringing opportunities to satisfy
needs and fulfill dreams.
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OUR PURPOSE
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· Strategic alliances with an operating network
of distributors, who use their own sales force
to promote our loans
· Geographic presence

Business ethics · Human rights · Environment · Quality of Life
· Consumer affairs · Community engagement

H OW W E D O I T

r
pe nd
ne
Defi als a
go

We manage our business model through
four priority lines of action: developing credit
products, creating a distribution network,
defining targets and metrics, and originating
and administering loans. To do this, we
follow various performance strategies that
have allowed us over the years to offer our
customers the best solutions in the market,
along with our Social Responsibility model.

• Collection management
• Credit and risk analysis
• Funding
• Documented processes
• Personalized attention
• Innovation and digital
transformation
• Cutting-edge technology
• Compliance
• Alignment of interests

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

· Payroll loans
· SME loans
· Car loans
· Personal loans

s
p
lo duct
ro

We work to create value for all our customers,
meeting their needs by developing more
specialized and personalized products and
making use of our competitive advantages.

· Customer satisfaction
· Total portfolio
· Origination
· New product development
· Funding
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MATERIALITY
GRI 102-46, 102-47

Our 2022 Vision and our business model reflect the results of the materiality study we
conducted in 2017, by which we prioritized the material issues that most affect our
operations and the importance they have to our stakeholders.

METHODOLOGY
1. Identification: Review of the business strategy, publications on sustainability issues in
the financial industry, interviews with company directors, and online consultation with
our stakeholders
2. Prioritization: Issues are then ranked based on their importance to stakeholders and
the extent of the company’s economic, environmental and social impact.
3. Verification: The list of material issues was checked with the company to ensure they
could be handled according to the principles for non-financial information: traceability,
reasonability, comparability and verifiability of the data.

Methodological references:
- Sustainability Topics for Sectors: What do stakeholders want to know? (Global Reporting Initiative).
- Defining Materiality: What Matters to Reporters and Investors. Do investors and reporters agree on what is material
in the Technology Hardware & Equipment and Banks & Diverse Financial Sectors? (Global Reporting Initiative).
- The Materiality Report. Aligning Strategy, Performance and Reporting (Accountability).
- From words to action: commitment with stakeholders. Practical manual on stakeholder relations (Accountability).
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In order to stay apprised of the opinions and needs of our
stakeholders and global trends in our industry, in 2021 we
will be updating our materiality matrix. This will allow us to
keep our social responsibility model aligned with the issues
that are most material to our company.

Medium materiality
14. Climate strategy
15. Labor diversity
16.	Supplier labor, human rights and
environmental assessments
17. Scope 3 emissions
18. Labor practice indicators
19. Business lines, products and services
20. Corporate citizenship and philanthropy
21. Employee education and development
22. ESG investment

Medium

1
6 5

4

8

7

3

2

9
10
11
15

13

14

12

16

Low

Risk and crisis management
Job security and workplace well-being
Business codes of conduct
Regulation and self-regulation
Profitability
Transparency and accountability
Business model and value generation
Presence in indexes and rankings/industry leadership
Financial consumer protection
Access to financial education and solutions
Environmental policy and management
Corporate governance
Women’s involvement in corporate governance

Relevance to stakeholders

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.

High

High materiality

18

25

Low materiality
23. Financial stability and systemic risk
24. Human rights
25. Data security and cybersecurity

Low

17

20

19

24 23

22

Medium

Significant economic, environmental and social impacts
24
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COMPETITIVE

advantages

Sustainable management

Proven track
record and
considerable
experience

Diversified credit
risk

Stable cash flow

Solid and
diversified
origination
platform

High-quality loan
portfolio

Companydeveloped
platform

Scalable
operations

Committed and
experienced
management team

25

Developing credit products that are tailored the needs
of our customers is one of the priorities of our business
model. We stay in constant communication with them to
develop the tools, processes and actions that ensure we
remain their best option.
Throughout the years we have set ourselves apart from
the rest of the market, and 2020 was no exception.
In a year in which our customers had especially
pressing needs due to the public health emergency, we
approached them to learn about their priorities, help them
keep up with their loan payments and facilitate services.
One of the main actions we took was continuing the
digital transformation of our services and products, which
we have been focusing on for some years now.
Much of the solidity of our business model comes from
the work we do on sustainable management, because
it enables us to take actions that have an impact
today without compromising the possibilities of future
generations.
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Intellectual Capital
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VALUE

chain

GRI 102-9, 204: 103-1, 103-2, 103-2, 204-1
SASB/FN-CB 410a.2

Throughout our years of operation, we have formed
strategic alliances with a variety of partners that serve
as a link to our customers in bringing them our products
and services.
Our value chain is an extension of our business, and we
contribute to its economic development by working with
domestic suppliers, favoring the communities where we
have operations.
Our value chain is made up of subsidiary companies in
which we own a stock position, distributors that provide
goods and/or services to customers for the loans
extended or acquired by Crédito Real; and/or lend to our
customers; and with whom Crédito Real has signed the
respective financial factoring contracts.
Our Code of Ethics governs our relations with suppliers
and requires that they comply with the applicable
regulations and laws on confidentiality, conflicts of
interest, environmental, social and labor issues in all their
operations, and that they share our philosophy and values.
Our suppliers are selected based on various aspects,
like experience, time in the market, quality and
guarantees, price and payment conditions, delivery
time and post-sale service.

We also have a Sourcing Manual that establishes
policies and procedures for managing the company’s
purchases, ensuring with this that they are efficient
and transparent through centralization in the
purchasing area.

SUPPLIER ORIGIN

376 SUPPLIERS
9 FOREIGN
367 DOMESTIC

MXN$297 MILLION PESOS
SPENT ON SUPPLIERS
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DIGITALIZATION
SASB/FN-CB 230a.2

Digital transformation, which is the responsibility of our systems department, led by
Eduardo Aguilar Sánchez, has been a priority for several years, and in 2020—due to the
public health emergency—it has become another ally for our operations
We acted in advance of the challenges of the pandemic and were able to transform our
processes to digital without affecting our transactions or loan portfolio.
Security in all our operations remains of primordial importance for the company, and for
this reason we continued to strengthen the central platform from which we manage our
portfolio. We have constructed the necessary communication channels through various
systems and digital documents.
We maintain strict quality and data privacy controls and rigorous security standards,
monitored through constant internal and external audits of all our processes and
operations.

2018

28

2019

2020

Total numbers of data security violations or other
cybersecurity incidents

0

0

0

Total number of data violations

0

0

0

Total number or customers and employees affected by
company data violations

0

0

0

Total amount of fines or sanctions paid in connection
with data security violations or other cybersecurity
incidents

0

0

0
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GRI 102-9, 204: 103-1, 103-2, 103-2, 204-1
SASB/FN-CB 410a.2

The company’s 2020 fiscal-year results confirm the resilience of our diversified business model.
DIRECT ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED AND DISTRIBUTED
Item1
Interest income
Commissions and fees charged
Other income
Equity in the results of affiliates
Economic value generated2
Interest expense (payments to suppliers of funds)
Commissions and fees paid
Administrative and sales expense
Taxes
Dividends paid
Investment in social responsibility programs
Donations to nonprofit organizations
Sponsorships
Payments for employee wages and benefits
Net income
Economic value distributed3
Economic value retained4

Loan portfolio
Capital adequacy ratio
Net earnings per share
ROAA
ROAE
Net interest margin
Loan delinquency rate

2018

2019

2020

%∆

(MXN)

(MXN)

(MXN)

2020 vs. 2019

$10,287.6
$564.1
$404.3
$97.2
$11,353.2
$3,207.4
$256.0
$1,909.4
$650.6
$193.4
$1.1
$3.6
$2.0
$1,567.0
$1,955.4
$7,790.5
$3,562.6

$11,933.0
$515.70
$282.9
-$57.3
$12,674.2
$4,671.1
$373.5
$2,034.6
$735.9
$265.8
$1.1
$7.2
$1.6
$1,562.5
$1,980.1
$11,633.4
$1,040.9

$10,453.7
$137.3
$1,018.2
$49.4
$11,658.5
$4,915.1
$247.4
$2,079.2
$87.9
$$1.1
$4.1
$$1,454.9
$756.4
$9,545.9
$2,112.7

2018

2019

2020

$36,319.1
43.9%
$5.0
4.2%
12.9%
20.8%
1.7%

$46,958.4
34.2%
$5.2
3.5%
12.3%
17.1%
1.4%

$47,509.9
31.4%
$2.0
1.0%
4.3%
11.7%
3.3%

30

(12.4%)
(73.4%)
260.0%
(186.2%)
($0.1)
$0.1
(33.8%)
2.2%
(88.1%)
(100.0%)
(4.9%)
(43.6%)
(100.0%)
(6.9%)
(61.8%)
($0.2)
103.0%

OUR STRATEGY THIS PAST YEAR WAS

TO PRIORITIZE ASSET QUALITY

OVER PORTFOLIO SIZE

%∆
1.2%
(-1.1%)
(-61.1%)
(-70.6%)
(-65.2%)
(-32.9%)
148.2%

 igures in millions of pesos, except for capital adequacy, ROAA, ROAE, net interest
F
margin and loan delinquency rate.
2
Economic value generated is the sum of revenues, commissions & fees charge,
other income, and equity in the results of affiliates.
3
Economic value distributed is the sum of interest expense, commissions and fees
paid, administrative & sales expense, taxes, dividends paid, investment in social
responsibility programs, donations to nonprofit organizations, sponsorships,
payments to suppliers of funds and payments for employee wages and benefits.
4
Economic value retained is the difference between economic value generated and
distributed.
1
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FINANCIAL RATIOS
CAPITAL ADEQUACY*

ROAA
43.9%

4.2%

2018

2018

34.2%

4.7%

2019

2019

31.4%

1.6%

2020

2020

INTEREST INCOME

ROAE
$10,287.6

12.9%

2018

2018

$11,933.0

12.3%

2019

2019

$10,453.7

4.3%

2020

2020

TOTAL LOAN PORTFOLIOS

Loan portfolio. Performing loans + Past-due loans

$36,319.1
2018

$46,958.4
2019

$51,134.4
2020
*Includes perpetual subordinated bonds.
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strategy

GRI 207: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 207-1

At Crédito Real, our fiscal operations conform to principles
of corporate responsibility:
1. We comply with all tax obligations that apply to us
according to current provisions.
2. We reasonably interpret tax legislation pay taxes
according to the true legal nature of all transactions.
3. We avoid using structures whose sole purpose is to
generate a tax benefit.
4. We promote cooperative, transparent relations with
the tax authorities.
We also have a zero-tolerance policy on the illicit evasion of
taxes, and we have adopted a low-risk profile regarding the
interpretation and application of current regulations, while
preserving our capacity to adapt to tax provisions in every
country where we operate. We adopt best practices for
appropriately preventing and reducing tax and reputational
risk, which creates greater legal and economic certainty
for the company and our shareholders. The Tax Manager’s
Office, Accounting and Comptroller’s Departments are in
charge of approving and reviewing these practices.
All of this is documented internally in our policies and
procedures, which cover the following aspects:

A commitment to abiding by both
the spirit and the letter of tax laws
and regulations in the countries
where we operate.

Public disclosure: revenues

Operating income

Taxes paid
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TALENT

GRI 405, 406: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, FS4

Crédito Real works constantly to offer the best working
conditions for all our employees. We encourage their
personal and professional advancement while preserving
their well-being, and we place a priority on maintaining the
attitude of humanity we have always been known for, which
has earned us recognition as a great place to work, one in
which values are at the forefront of everything we do.

To manage talent and mitigate or eliminate any risks
that may arise, we have strategies, initiatives and various
performance indicators by which we measure all of the
processes of the Human Resources area. These are
established in policies and procedures on recruitment,
hiring, compensation, training, development, retention,
diversity, inclusion and talent identification. We work on
improving these every year based on our experiences, global
talent trends and the needs of our people.

and ensured that they had the tools necessary to continue
their work from home.
This was not an easy task, but we are proud to say that
with the guidance of our leaders we were successful in our
efforts and avoided any sacrifice of company profitability.
The challenge will continue, and we know we are still
capable of working to provide the best service to all
our customers.

Our Internal Control and Audit area is in charge of
documenting the main labor risks and for formalizing
and auditing procedures.

THE FIGURES CONFIRM OUR COMMITMENT

The year 2020 was full of challenges in labor issues, and
we had to make swift and effective decisions to safeguard
the physical safety of all our stakeholders and our families.
We provided total support to our more than 600 employees

95% OF WHICH CURRENTLY WORK UNDER

TO PROVIDING THE BEST WORKING
CONDITIONS FOR ALL OUR EMPLOYEES,
PERMANENT CONTRACTS.

BREAKDOWN OF OUR WORK FORCE BY CONTRACT TYPE AND LOCATION
2017
Mexico
city

2018

GDL

Mexico
city

2019
GDL

Mexico
city

2020
Mexico
city

GDL

Permanent contracts

271

229

303

234

400

211

421

Temporary contracts

30

14

27

24

11

0

25

301

243

330

258

411

211

446

Total

588

622

% 2020 vs. 2019
GDL
201

Mexico
city
5.3%

-4.7%

10 127.3%

0%

211

657

Information on talent includes the following companies: Crédito Real, Servicios Corporativos Chapultepec, Directodo México and Crédito Real Arrendamiento
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DIVERSITY

and inclusion
GRI 102-8, 102-41, 202-1, 401-1, 405: 103-1, 103-2,
103-3, 405-1, 405-2

WOMEN
Total workforce

MEN

TOTAL WORK FORCE
Operating and administrative

Category

306

Total workforce

351

657

46.6%

Category

53.4%

Category
Operating and administrative

275

540
82.2%
50.9%
40.3%
Management in income-generating positions*

41.9%
We are a company in which gender equality, diversity
and inclusion are part of our DNA. All our talent attraction
practices and policies are focused on non-discrimination.
Our hiring processes are skill-centered, and we hire
people for their talent rather than their personal
characteristics.
Our talent map ensures that there are no gender gaps,
and it also keeps us clear on what the development
opportunities are.

4%

265

28

96
29%

14.6%

49.1%

10.4%

68

2.3%

15

2.7%

18

70.8%

Management
1.5%

10

10.4%

25
3.8%

15.6%

Department
0.5%

3

14.3%

21
3.2%

85.7%

STEM-related positions**
1.8%

42

12
28.6%

6.4%

4.6%

30
71.4%

*For example, sales; excludes support areas like HR, IT, Legal, etc.
**Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics. STEM workers use their knowledge of these fields in their daily responsibilities. To be classified as a STEM employee,
the person must have STEM-related qualifications and use these abilities in their operating positions. Such positions include, among others: data programmer, web
developer, statistics, logistics, engineer, physicist, scientist.
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• Documentation of a Diversity and Inclusion Policy and the Manual of Best Diversity and
Inclusion practices.
• Communication campaign to build awareness for our talent regarding inclusion and diversity.
• Training program on diversity and inclusion, including the topic of unconscious bias.
• Evaluation of our performance in gender equality, through the WEPs Gender Gap Analysis
Tool, in which our rating improved 29 points over 2018.
• Development of a new diversity and inclusion policy in which we established guidelines
to promote a culture of respect for diversity, labor equality, non-discrimination and labor
inclusion for all employees and stakeholders.
• Joined the first generation of companies committed to the Target Gender Equality initiative
promoted by the Red Mexico Global Compact and UN WOMEN. This initiative works to
accelerate representation and leadership of women in the company.
• Meeting with consultation forums to learn about this gender equity support initiative, for
example the 21st International Meeting on Gender Statistics, “Challenges in generating and
using gender statistics in the context of COVID-19”.
• Participation in work groups on diversity and inclusion, like the Agenda 2030 Diversity and
Inclusion Work Group, led by the Business Coordinating Council, Danone and the Global
Compact Network.
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Gender

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

%∆ 2020
vs 2019

%

Women

211

270

275

299

306

2.3%

46.6%

Men

258

274

313

323

351

8.7%

53.4%

Total

469

544

588

622

657

5.6%

The numbers for the year 2020 show an increase in the presence of women in Crédito Real’s workforce (8.67%), a sign of our
commitment to gender equality and diversity.

188

258
BREAKDOWN OF
WORKFORCE BY GENDER
AND LOCATION 2020

TOTAL WORKFORCE

46.6% WOMEN
53.4% MEN

118
93
WOMEN

MEN

Mexico City

Mexico City

Guadalajara

Guadalajara
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99% of Crédito Real’s employees are non-unionized with employment contracts, and 1%
are unionized. The unionized operating and administrative employees are members of the
Sindicato Nacional de Trabajadores de Instituciones Financieras, Bancarias, Organizaciones
y Actividades Auxiliares de Crédito, Empleados de Oficina, Similares y Conexos de la
República Mexicana, and are employed under a collective bargaining agreement dated
May 1, 2010. At present the company’s relations with the union are cordial.

100% OF OUR EMPLOYEES WORK FULL-TIME; 1% ARE UNIONIZED.
BREAKDOWN OF WORKFORCE BY JOB CATEGORY AND GENDER
Job category

2017
W

2018
M

W

2019
M

W

2020
M

W

%
M

W

%∆ 2020 vs 2019
M

Women

Men

Senior
management

2

11

2

18

3

19

3

18

14

86

0.0%

-5.3%

Management

21

45

21

40

21

51

28

68

29

71

33.3%

33.3%

Operating and
administrative

248

217

252

255

275

253

275

265

51

49

0.0%

4.7%

Total

271

273

275

313

299

323

306

351

2.3%

8.7%

BREAKDOWN OF WORKFORCE BY CONTRACT TYPE AND GENDER
Contract type

2017
W

2018
M

W

2019
M

W

2020
M

W

%∆ 2020 vs 2019
M

Women

Men

Permanent

249

251

253

284

295

316

289

335

-2.0%

6.0%

Temporary

21

23

22

29

4

7

17

16

325.0%

128.6%

270

274

275

313

299

323

306

351

2%

8.7%

Total
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GRI 401: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 401-1

IN CRÉDITO REAL, WE HAVE FOUR GENERATIONS IN OUR

In 2020, we incorporated a socio-economic study into the hiring process for operating
positions, thus strengthening the talent attraction process at all levels.

PAYROLL, 3%

Z GENERATION, 68% MILLENIALS
GENERATION, 27% X AND 2% BABY BOOMERS,

Additionally, despite the challenges of remote work, we were able to use technological
tools to assist us in recruitment and hiring following the same criteria as always,
including the onboarding process, which took place virtually.

WHICH REFLECTS OUR COMMITMENT FOR DIVERSITY.

BREAKDOWN OF WORKFORCE BY GENDER, AGE GROUP AND LOCATION
Women
Mexico
city
< 30

Men
Mexico
city

GDL

Total

%

8.3% OF VACANCIES FILLED INTERNALLY

GDL

60

58

63

38

219

33%

121

60

167

54

402

61%

> 50

7

0

28

1

36

5%

Total

188

118

258

93

657

Between 30 and 50

Talent attraction is strategically important to the company. We want
all employees to share our conviction in our project and philosophy.
We have recruitment and selection policies for positions from the
operating to the strategic level, to guarantee that we are hiring the
right people with the fullest potential to do each job.

39
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NUMBER AND RATE OF NEW HIRES BY GENDER, AGE, AND LOCATION
Mexico City
Number of
new hires

Guadalajara
Number of
new hires

New hiring
rate

TOTAL

New hiring
rate

New hiring
rate

Number of
new hires

Women

35

18.6%

11

9.3%

46

15.0%

< 30

18

30.0%

5

8.6%

23

17.2%

Between 30 and 50

16

13.2%

6

10.0%

22

13.7%

> 50

1

14.3%

0

0.0%

1

25.0%

Men

50

19.9%

13

14.0%

63

18.0%

< 30

24

38.1%

9

23.7%

33

31.1%

Between 30 and 50

22

13.2%

4

7.4%

26

13.1%

> 50

4

14.3%

0

0.0%

4

21.1%

Total

85

19.1%

24

11.4%

109

17.5%

Employee turnover
Total leaving company

103

Total hired

109

Total employees at start of 2020

622

Total employees at end of 2020

657

Rate (%)

16.58

This year we introduced a new, more accurate methodology
for measuring personnel turnover.

The percentage turnover rate declined in 2020 compared
to 2019, showing that despite the COVID-19 emergency, we
remain committed to offering the best working conditions,
safety and well-being to our employees.

TOTAL ANNUAL TURNOVER RATE: 16.58%
9.7%

6.8%

MEN

WOMEN

40

51% OF OUR NEW HIRES WERE
MILLENIALS, 44% WERE X GENERATION
AND 5% WERE BABY BOOMERS.
THIS YEAR,
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NOMINAL AND PROPORTIONAL TURNOVER BY GENDER, AGE AND LOCATION 2020
GRI 401-1

Mexico City

Guadalajara

No. departures

No. departures

Women

TOTAL NO.

TOTAL RATE

23

18

41

6.6

8

13

21

3.4

14

5

19

3.1

> 50

1

0

1

0.7

Men

39

23

62

10.0

< 30

14

15

29

4.7

Between 30 and 50

25

8

33

5.3

> 50

0

0

0

0.0

Total

62

41

103

16.6

< 30
Between 30 and 50

FY 2017

FY 2018

FY 2019

FY 2020

Total annual turnover rate

27.05

24.29

27.85

16.58

Total voluntary turnover rate

10.93

14.52

10.46

7.89

TOTAL VOLUNTARY

TURNOVER 8.7%

TOTAL INVOLUNTARY

TURNOVER 7.9%

*T
 o calculate turnover rates, we began by calculating the total average workforce during the reporting period, adding together the number of employees at the start of the
year and the number at the end of the year and dividing by two. Then we took the number of people who left the company during the year and divided it by the average
workforce as calculated in the previous step. The turnover rate is the result of that division, multiplied by one hundred, to arrive at a percentage (%). This calculation is
different from what was used in the previous year, so the information reported differs.
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HOW MANY VACANCIES WERE FILLED BY INTERNAL CANDIDATES IN 2020?
2017
Total number of employees hired

2018

2019

2020

113

145

156

109

Number of vacancies filled internally

NI

22

11

9

Percentage vacancies filled internally

NI

15.2%

7.1%

8.3%

NI: No information

PARENTAL LEAVE

GRI 401-3

Parental leave is a paid period of leave that employees (both men and women) may take for
the birth or adoption of a child.

TOTAL EMPLOYEES ENTITLED

TO PARENTAL LEAVEL

2

WOMEN

3

MEN

ALL EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE

TAKEN PARENTAL LEAVE

2

WOMEN

3

MEN

TOTAL EMPLOYEES WHO RETURNED

TO WORK AFTER THE END OF PARENTAL

LEAVE, DURING THE PERIOD REPORTED

2

WOMEN

42

3

MEN

Reinstatement rate after parental leave

100

Total employees still with the company
12 months after completing parental
leave

5

Total employees who returned from
parental leave in prior reporting periods

7

Retention rate of employees who took
parental leave

140
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BENEFIT AND

compensation plan
GRI 201-3, 401:

103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 401-2, 401-3

Our compensation system is based on the MERCER
methodology and is made up of a base salary plus a variable
compensation, benefits consistent with the laws and
regulations of the countries where we operate, and other
additional benefits.
Our benefits package is flexible and is individualized for each
employee, bearing in mind that each generation has different
needs.
REALFLEX is a dynamic benefits program that allows
employees to select benefits according to their needs and the
stage of their life.
Crédito Real offers additional benefits at preferential prices
that employees may cover through deductions against their
paycheck, vacation or annual bonus payments. The flexible
plans we offer are:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

TotalPass Fitness Centers
Comprehensive Health Plan
Minor Medical Expense Insurance
Vacation Savings
Life Insurance
Funeral Expenses
Major Medical Expense Insurance

In 2020, we made great progress in benefits and compensation,
evolving our benefit package by linking it to the four generations
working at Crédito Real: baby boomers, Gen X, millennials and
Gen Z.
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BENEFITS FOR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES THAT ARE NOT AVAILABLE TO PART TIME OR TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES
Benefit

Part time or temporary

Full time

Annual bonus

20 days (pro rata)

20 days (pro rata)

Vacation

12 days from the first to the fourth year

12 days from the first to the fourth year

Vacation bonus

50%

50%

Social Security

The company covers 100% of the contributions to the The company covers 100% of the contributions to the
worker’s individual retirement account as a voluntary worker’s individual retirement account as a voluntary
contribution.
contribution.

Life insurance

24 months of salary for natural death, 48 months for
accidental death

24 months of salary for natural death, 48 months for
accidental death

Savings fund

13% per month and/or legal limit

13% per month and/or legal limit

Grocery vouchers

10% per month per employee and/or legal limit

10% per month per employee and/or legal limit

Supply assistance

MXN$350.30 per month

MXN$350.30 per month
44
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BENEFITS FOR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES THAT ARE NOT AVAILABLE TO PART TIME OR TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES
Benefit
Marital leave

Part time or temporary

Full time

Two business days

Two business days

In addition to what is required by law, employees
are entitled to an additional week of paid leave. Also
applies in cases of adoption.

In addition to what is required by law, employees are
entitled to an additional week of paid leave. Also applies
in cases of adoption.

If an employee gives birth to or adopts a child born
with some health problem or disability, they may take
an additional 5 work days of paid leave in addition to
the maternity/paternity/adoption leave.

If an employee gives birth to or adopts a child born with
some health problem or disability, they may take an
additional 5 work days of paid leave in addition to the
maternity/paternity/adoption leave.

In addition to what is required by law, employees
are entitled to an additional week of paid leave. Also
applies in cases of adoption.

In addition to what is required by law, employees are
entitled to an additional week of paid leave. Also applies
in cases of adoption.

Funeral expense assistance of MXN$10,400 for the
death of a spouse, child, stepchild, parent or sibling
that is economically dependent on the employee.

Funeral expense assistance of MXN$10,400 for the
death of a spouse, child, stepchild, parent or sibling
that is economically dependent on the employee.

The employee is also entitled to five days’ paid
bereavement leave.

The employee is also entitled to five days’ paid
bereavement leave.

Family care leave

Employees may request paid leave to deal with
health issues, care of direct family members or
issues relating to children and stepchildren, with
authorization from their direct superior.

Employees may request paid leave to deal with health
issues, care of direct family members or issues relating
to children and stepchildren, with authorization from
their direct superior.

Parking

According to policy.

According to policy.

Bike parking
and showers

Yes

Yes

Maternity leave

Paternity leave

Support for
death in family
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ADDITIONAL BENEFITS

Car insurance support

Dental plan

100% subsidized dining
room service for interns,
janitorial staff and security.

Major medical expense
insurance for senior and
middle management.
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COMPENSATION

practices

GRI 102-35, 102-36,102-38, 102-39, 202-1, 405-2

COMPENSATION INDICATORS BY GENDER
Salaries at Crédito Real are determined by standard wage tables regardless of who
holds the position; our salaries are 181% higher than the minimum wage established
for Mexico City for the year 2020. Pay raises are granted based on the law, performance
and potential. All these practices are documented in our Human Resource policies,
procedures and manuals.

RATIO OF BASE WAGE TO COMPENSATION FOR MEN AND WOMEN
Job category
Senior management
Middle management
Operating and administrative

Base wage + other cash incentives

Gender wage gap

Difference between men and women (%)

Average salary difference

0.77

Mean wage gap

0.81

Average bonus gap

0.85

Mean bonus gap

0.94

HUMAN CAPITAL ROI

Ratio*

Base wage

0.57

Base wage + other cash incentives

0.63

Base wage

0.81

Base wage + other cash incentives

0.95

Base wage

0.92

Base wage + other cash incentives

0.98

The Return on our Investment in Human Capital measures the company’s profitability in
terms of the total cost of its employees; it is calculated by eliminating non-employee related
expenses from general operating expenses and calculating the respective operating profit.
RETURN ON HUMAN CAPITAL INVESTMENT
Item

Our work force consists of 353 different job titles occupied by 657 people, 22% of
which are equivalents (78 positions) and 78% are not (275 positions). This accounts
for the difference in wage ratios.

2018

2019

2020

Interest income (MXN)*

$8,557.3 $10,287.5 $11,932.9 $10,453.7

Total operating expense (MXN)*

$1,828.1

$1,909.3

$2,034.6

$2,079.2

Total employee-related expenses (wages +
benefits) (MXN)*

$1,582.0

$1,567.0

$1,562.4

$1,454.8

5.3

6.3

7.3

6.8

544.0

588.0

622.0

657.0

HC ROI
Total employees
* Millions of pesos
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96% OF EMPLOYEES TRAINED
52 HOURS AVERAGE OF TRAINING

and training

PER EMPLOYEE

GRI 404: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 404-1, 404-2

Last year practically all the courses were given digitally in
order to protect employee health. Accordingly, we provide
information on two types of courses in this report:

283

122

100

GUADALAJARA

GUADALAJARA

93

MEXICO
CITY

111

13

10

EMPLOYEES WHO RECEIVED ONLINE RECORDED TRAINING/
TOTAL EMPL0YEES BY GENDER AND LOCATION

118

MEXICO
CITY

208

Men Guadalajara

Administrative

100

MEN

Women Guadalajara

122

WOMEN

Executives

258

TOTAL EMPLOYEES TRAINED

1

1
Men Mexico City

Women Mexico City

Senior
Management

86

214

185
42
18

Administrative

188

As an added value, in order to institutionalize knowledge at
Crédito Real, we ask each trained employee to apply and
document what they have learned, providing evidence that
the training has been capitalized. With this strategy, we can
incorporate the lessons learned into the company through
methodologies, processes, policies and projects. In 2020
we documented 95% of this evidence. This capitalization
strategy also applies to postgraduate fellows, where we
achieved a capitalization of 100% of evidence.

Executives

283

We complemented this formation with approximately 100
free webinars that helped strengthen our employees’
technical capacities and soft skills.

Senior
Management

208

Despite the adverse circumstances of last year and our own
budget constraints, we completed 95% of the training plan,
which was given digitally.

27

Crédito Real has a process for detecting training needs in
each department based on annual targets, which are used
to develop an annual training program.

ONLINE RECORDED TRAINING

5

The personal and professional advancement of our employees
is a priority for Crédito Real, and that is why we provide them
with ongoing training, ensuring they can continue to do their
jobs effectively and thus guaranteeing customer satisfaction
and good performance for the company.

• Online recorded: Online courses in which participants
study at their own pace and during the hours they choose.
Total
Employees trained Total employees
Employees trained
FORMERLY E-LEARNING COURSES
employees
• Online live: Online courses in which participants are
*The number of employees trained is greater than the number of employees
present live and classes are given by a live instructor.
because it includes employees who left the company in 2020.
FORMERLY CLASSROOM COURSES.
47
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MXN$5.6 MP INVESTED IN TRAINING
We have an institutional training program in which our people receive information on topics
relating to our culture. We also have a regulatory training program in which employees are
trained in the regulations that apply to Crédito Real.

TRAINING PROGRAMS
Programs that train employees in
skill development
Re-induction course Day 1

Programs to support
employees in the transition
to retirement

Scope

127 “Workshop for retirees” course

Workshop on “The challenge of
being a flexible and successful
blue leader

67

Situational adaptability for
leaders

70

Confidence for leaders

85

Self-awareness for leaders

36

Strategic approach for leaders

82

Leadership Skill Development
course

19

Internship Program

6

Mentoring

2

Master’s degrees, specialization
courses, English courses

Scope
1

25
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COVID-19
GRI 404-3

Additionally, last year we launched various training initiatives,
micro-learnings and webinars to teach our leaders how to
manage their teams by remote media. We also introduced
microlearning strategies to train all our people in the use of
communication platforms. All of this to upskill them with the
abilities they need to deal with this current situation.

We are interested in evaluating our talent in order to obtain information useful for improving decision-making quality and
thus generating better results for our business. Our initiatives:

TALENT
IDENTIFICATION:

96% OF EMPLOYEES RECEIVED A

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

This process helps us detect the most
talented of our employees and place them on
a talent map.

TALENT MAPPING

INVESTMENT IN TRAINING
$6,165,794
2018

$6,320,474
2019

$5,683,845
2020
The amount invested in training corresponds only to Crédito Real.

PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION:
This process enables each employee to
document their goals. Leaders also use this
regularly to evaluate their people according
to the established goals and the skills of
Crédito Real’s model. In 2020, for the first
time, we included performance evaluations
based on the KPIs of the business lines
and in general the results of Crédito Real,
creating a sense of shared responsibility in
all our employees.

49

This is a tool by which we can place employees
in talent quadrants according to their potential
and performance. We use this to decide on
development and retention actions that should
be taken, and also on promotions, transfers,
educational support—like postgraduate
scholarships, English classes—and raises.

TALENT REVIEW:
The internship program has various
evaluation mechanisms to help us make
decisions about the employees’ future with
Crédito Real.
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PERFORMANCE (MEXICO AND GUADALAJARA)

Job category

Number of employees
who have received regular
performance evaluations
Women

Percentage of employees
who have received regular
performance evaluations (%)

Men

Women

Men

Leaders (CEOs, VPs and
Managers)

31

80

4.7%

12.2%

Middle Management

72

67

11.0%

10.2%

Administrative (analysts,
administrative)

87

94

13.2%

14.3%

Operators (call center)

106

92

16.1%

14.0%

Total by gender

296

333

45.1%

50.7%

Total

629

95.7%

EMPLOYEES IN THE MANAGEMENT SKILL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
Job category

Employees
Women

(%)
Men

Women

Men

Senior management

3

10

0.5%

1.5%

Managers

5

5

0.8%

0.8%

Total by gender

8

15

1.2%

2.3%

Total

23

3.5%

* MSD Management Skill Development (applies only to Senior and Middle Management) Mexico City and Guadalajara
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ASSESSMENTS (APPLIED IN 2020)
Job category

Percentage of employees (%)

Number of employees
Women

Leaders

Men

Women

Men

5

11

0.8%

1.7%

Middle Management

18

12

2.7%

1.8%

Administrative

11

8

1.7%

1.2%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

34

31

5.2%

4.7%

Operating
Total by gender
Total

65

9.9%

ASSESSMENTS (CURRENT)

Job category

Number of employees
who have received
regular performance and
development assessments
Women

Men

Percentage of employees
who have received
regular performance and
development assessments
(%)
Women

360 EVALUATION

Men

Job category

Percentage of employees (%)

Number of employees

Leaders

15

33

2.3%

5.0%

Middle Management

41

41

6.2%

6.2%

Directors

4

28

0.6%

4.3%

Administrative

24

14

3.7%

2.1%

Managers

6

16

0.9%

2.4%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

10

44

1.5%

6.7%

80

88

12.9%

13.4%

Operating
Total by gender
Total

168

Total by gender
Total

25.6%

Women

Men

Women

54

* Applies only to Senior and Middle Management (Mexico City and Guadalajara)
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Men

8.2%
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WELLNESS

GRI 403:103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 102-30, 102-33, 403-1, 403-2,
403-3, 403-4, 403-5, 403-6, 403-7, 403-8, 403-9, 403-10

We have a Health and Safety Management System that meets all the legal and regulatory requirements of the Ministry of
Labor and Social Planning, and which is regulated by that agency.

OFFICIAL MEXICAN STANDARDS
SASB/FN-CB 410a.2

Furthermore, we have a Safety and Hygiene Commission
that represents our employees and guarantees
compliance with standards and regulations and ensures
safe working conditions in the company to avoid
workplace risks and accidents.
Employees can report any type of risk they identify on the
job through a variety of channels.

• NOM-001-STPS-2008, Buildings, locations, facilities and areas in the workplace - Safety conditions.
• NOM-002-STPS-2010, Safety conditions – Prevention and protection against fire in the workplace.
• NOM-004-STPS-1999, Protection systems and safety devices for the machinery and equipment used in the workplace.
• NOM-005-STPS-1998, Workplace safety and hygiene conditions as regards handling, transportation and storage of
hazardous chemicals.
• NOM-006-STPS-2014, Handling and storage of materials – Occupational health and safety conditions
• NOM-009-STPS-2011, Safety conditions for working at heights
• NOM-010-STPS-1999, Workplace safety and hygiene conditions where substances capable of causing contamination
in the workplace are handled, transported, processed or stored.
• NOM-011-STPS-2001, Workplace safety and hygiene conditions where noise is generated.
• NOM-017-STPS-2008, Personal protection equipment – Selection, use and handling in the workplace.
• NOM-018-STPS-2000, System for identifying and communicating hazards and risks relating to hazardous chemicals
in the workplace.
• NOM-022-STPS-2008, Static electricity in the workplace - Safety conditions
• NOM-025-STPS-2008, Workplace lighting conditions
• NOM-026-STPS-2008, Safety and hygiene colors and signage; identification of risks due to fluid conduction in pipes
• NOM-029-STPS-2011, Maintenance of workplace electrical installations – Safety conditions
• NOM-030-STPS-2009, Preventive occupational safety and health services – Functions and activities
• NOM-035-STPS-2018, Psychosocial risk factors at work: Identification, analysis and prevention
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We provide continuous training by an outside expert to
members of our emergency brigades, on topics such as
evacuation and rescue, communication, first aid, and fire
prevention and firefighting, so that they are qualified to
assist employees in the event of an emergency.
With an eye to the general wellness of our employees,
we have a program composed of various initiatives to
benefit our people and their families. These encourage
the comprehensive advancement of the individual
in the following areas: health and quality of life, selfdevelopment, family, healthy finances, organizational
culture and recreation.
In each of these initiatives, we offer activities to all our
employees throughout the year, focusing on both physical
and mental wellness.
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We developed an additional set of activities
because of the pandemic:

Family

Wellness

COMMITMENT

1. A permanent communication campaign focused on
connecting the CEO with employees, keeping them abreast of
the company’s situation and the actions taken in response to
the pandemic.
2. We offered a variety of webinars and internal communication
materials to teach people how to stay physically and
emotionally healthy, while maintaining productivity and good
communication.

Selfdevelopment
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3. We launched various activities to encourage interaction,
wellness and engagement with Crédito Real, like the Day
1 Onboarding course for people who have been with the
company for more than 3 years.
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GRI 203-1, 103-1 103-2, 103-3, 413-1, FS1, FS13, FS14, FS16
SASB/FN-CB 240a.1, SASB/FN-CB 230a.2

At Crédito Real, we work to bring financial products to the
most vulnerable members of the population. The parameters
of our loan origination model allow us to extend credit to
customers with an irregular credit history of with no credit
record at all.
As of the time this report went to press, in the payroll loan
product, 50% of borrowers showed some irregularity in their
credit record; the proportion in the car loan product was 32%.

CREDIT RECORD – PAYROLL LOAN PRODUCT
Good credit record

49.3%

Average credit record

50.7%

Total

100.0%
CREDIT RECORD – CAR LOAN PRODUCT

Good credit record
Average credit record
No credit record
Bad credit record
Total

67.7%
5.7%
26.6%
0.1%
100.0%
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Besides our commitment to economic development, we at Crédito Real also work to
strengthen our stakeholders’ financial health, so they are in a position to achieve their goals.
We have two programs to support them in this area:

1. LETS TALK FINANCE WITH
CRÉDITO REAL

2. SPECIAL PREPARATION COURSE
FOR BEEKEEPER TRAINERS*

A program carried out in partnership
with the National Commission for
the Protection and Defense of
Financial Service Users (CONDUSEF),
consisting of the following actions:

From January to June 2020, because
of the pandemic, we supported
grant recipients for the Special
Preparation Course for Beekeeper
Trainers through our “Good Partner”
program, while the course was on
hold for 4 months. Together with the
“El buen socio” program and the grant
recipients themselves, we decided
to pause donations until we learned
more about the project’s developer
and administrator, Equipo Abejas de
Ecosur, and then continue the course
after that.

• Sponsoring the publication of
educational and promotional material
on topics like savings, budgeting,
insurance, investments, retirement
planning and basic finance.
• Disseminating of the “Tips for your
Pocket” newsletter and “Financial
Education at your Institution.”
• Promoting CONDUSEF’s “Educate your
Wallet” microsite on our webpage.
• Replicating the knowledge acquired in
the “Trainer Preparation” workshop.

Accordingly, we updated the status of
this initiative and present a summary
of the efforts made during the year.

SUPPORT FOR GRANT RECIPIENTS IN THE TRAINER PREPARATION WORKSHOPS

2019
o

Plan

n

2020
d

MXN$45,000

j f m a m

j

MXN$15,000
MXN$105,000
MXN$120,000

*This project was designed to prepare beekeepers to serve as trainers for others, so that they are not only specialists in
good beekeeping practices in the field but also master basic pedagogy techniques so they can identify the needs of their
organizations and committees and transmit their knowledge to others.

55

a s

MXN$180,000
MXN$225,000

Actual

j

2021
o n d

j f m a m

j

j

a s

MXN$135,000

o n d
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RESULTS OF THE SPECIAL PREPARATION COURSE FOR
BEEKEEPER TRAINERS
MARCH-JUNE

SEPTEMBER

Course modules were placed on hold because of the public health crisis during these
months, but work continued. A survey was taken to learn about the current status of the
trainers and the beekeepers in light of the pandemic: their main problems, their access
to information and the future vision of beekeeping. All of this gave us information for
thinking about how to continue the project and adapting it to our current contact, based
on agroecological beekeeping as the main axis, together with the preparation of people
to train others.

On September 22-23 the second and third Virtual Reunions of the Special
Preparation Course for Trainers were held. These sessions analyzed the implications
of having many hives, and collectively assessed the advantages of preserving
beekeeping as part of a diversified system. Participants also reflected collectively on
the reasons for having such a diversified system in light of the 2020 crisis.
Although we are still learning how to work remotely, attendance at these meetings
was lively. Participants discussed the importance of diversification and the
relationship between the activities and the number of hives that are kept. At the end,
they would share their lessons with their communities through audio or text.

JULY

The meetings fulfilled their purpose with 17 participants, and we were able to think
collectively on how to continue this course despite the distance.

On July 15-16 a Virtual Reunion of the Special Preparation Course for Trainers
was held to share impressions of the situation, learn about conditions in the
organizations (because of COVID as well as flooding) and explore possible
strategies for continuing the course.

DECEMBER
The course continued through digital meetings, as we worked on an action plan. We
also held the first in-person workshop, with all the appropriate safety measures, to
address more specific issues.
In 2021 these digital meetings will continue, and we will resume the donations we
have planned for this project.
For more information, visit the Collective’s webpage at:
http://colectivokab.org/home.html
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We offer concrete support for financing small and midsized businesses that are headed or majority-owned
by women, through our “Mujer Real” product, which
includes leasing, fleet financing or factoring with
preferential conditions.
In 2020 we worked on a system for strengthening this
product by improving processes in every phase from
origination to collection, to make them quicker and
more agile. These improvements will take effect in
2021 and will enhance the importance of the “Mujer
Real” product within the leasing business.
We continued to work on applying best gender equality
and women’s empowerment practices, in keeping
with our support for the U.N. Women’s Empowerment
Principles (WEP). One sign of this is the increase in the
rating we obtained using the self-diagnostic Women’s
Empowerment Principles Gender Gap Analysis Tool.
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SINCE 2019 WE HAVE BEEN SIGNING SUPPORTERS OF THE UNITED NATIONS
WOMEN’S EMPOWERMENT PRINCIPLES AND HAVE TAKEN ACTION TO PROMOTE
GENDER EQUALITY AND WOMEN’S EMPOWERMENT IN OUR WORKPLACES.

THREE WOMEN IN SENIOR MANAGEMENT POSITIONS

Additionally:
1. We are committed to the U.N. Sustainable Development
Goal No. 5: Achieving gender equality.
2. Our Chief Executive Officer signed the CEO’s Declaration
of Support for the Women’s Empowerment Principles.
3. We evaluated our gender equality performance through
the Women’s Empowerment Principles Gender Gap
Analysis Tool and improved our score by 29 percentage
points compared to 2018.
4. We developed our diversity and inclusion policy to
establish guidelines on promoting a culture of respect
for diversity, labor equality, nondiscrimination and
inclusion, applicable to all employees and stakeholders.
5. We developed an initiative to support inclusion and
gender equality together with the Inter-American
Development Bank (IDB) and Value for Women, to offer
financing and special benefits for women entrepreneurs,
through “Mujer Real,” a leasing, factoring and fleet
product.
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6. We regularly report to shareholders and stakeholders on
issues of non-discrmination and gender equality.
7. We are part of the first generation of companies
committed to women’s empowerment, through the
Target Gender Equality initiative promoted by the Red
México Global Compact and UN WOMEN.
8. We participate in consultation forums to learn about
initiatives that support gender equality, like the 21st
International Meeting on Gender Statistics, “Challenges
in generating and using gender statistics in the context
of COVID-19.”
9. We joined diversity and inclusion work groups like the
Agenda 2030 Diversity and Inclusion Work Group, led
by the Business Coordinating Council, Danone and the
Global Compact Network.
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GRI 102-40, 102-42, 102-43, 102-44

STAKEHOLDER

engagement
GRI 405, 406: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, FS4
102-40, 102-42, 102-43, 102-44

Crédito Real is committed to understanding,
consulting and engaging in dialogue and
collaboration with stakeholders on their
needs and expectations regarding the
company’s strategy, encouraging a climate
of openness, engagement and respect
for new ideas. Each year we review our
context and identify our stakeholders using
a social group mapping tool, in order to
understand how we relate to our value
chain. All of this is established in our Social
and Environmental Responsibility Policies.
Our value chain includes various types of
stakeholders, which we have classified
using the system developed by Clarkson.
We remain in constant communication with
all our stakeholders through 19 different
channels that keep us informed of their
concerns and needs

FIRST-DEGREE INTERACTION AND INFLUENCE
MAIN INDICATORS 2020

1

SHAREHOLDERS

7

BOARD MEMBERS

2

AUTHORITIES, GOVERNMENT
AND PUBLIC AGENCIES

8

DIRECTORS

INSTITUTIONAL ACCOUNTS

3

RATING AGENCIES

9

PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

46,900 CALLS TAKEN

4

DISTRIBUTORS
AND END CLIENTS

10

FINANCIAL INTERMEDIARIES

5

EMPLOYEES

11

INVESTORS AND LENDERS

6

COMMUNITY

12

SUPPLIERS

870 E-MAILS FROM

AT THE CALL CENTER
3,535 PEOPLE
ATTENDED EVENTS

SECOND-DEGREE INTERACTION AND INFLUENCE

1

ASSOCIATIONS

2

EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS

4

NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS

5

MEDIA
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2020 Events
No. attendees

Event name

No. attendees

Situational adaptability for leaders

70

Talk on Harmonizing the Areas of my Life

57

Self-awareness

36

Start saving today

58

Confidence for leaders

85

Home protection and safety

44

Strategic approach

82

Independence Day Contest

16

“The Challenges of being a flexible and successful líder azul”
Workshop

67

Preventive talk on Breast Cancer

90

Leadership Skills Development – Modules 5 and 6

18

Ultrasounds – BREAST CANCER

30

Day 1 – Reinduction
Onboarding
Sessions with Tiziana

91
649

Dentalia talks

79

Mindfulness: Sowing Awareness with Fred Kofman

65

Rosca de Reyes Celebration

300

Día de la Candelaria Celebration

300

Weight Challenges

42

Major Medical Expense talk

37

Secret Friend Day
Civil Defense

100

WMO talk and event

100

Massages

90

Morelos Open

60

Children’s Day

14

Mother’s Day

55

Weight Challenge Closing

23

Nutrition Talk

63

Úrsulas Time Management Tools and Techniques

55

Talk on preventing Diabetes and High Blood Pressure

68

Diabetes Ultrasound

28

Master Class Home Office

126

Webinar on BBVA Mobile Banking

118

4
54
60

46

Dance Classes (year-round)

146

Yoga Classes (year-round)

154

No. of attendees

50

171

Day of the Dead – Operating staff

Brigade Member Event

300

Talk on Women’s Empowerment

Father’s Day

Day of the Dead

127

4168
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1,537

Reactions

Fans

320

People posting comments

Impressions

4,302

44

Number of followers

Likes

635

Subscribers

2,708,550
Video views

345

Number of tweets

1,089,719

Websites

Number of users who visited
www.creditoreal.com.mx

1,209
Followers

144
Posts

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

140,648

Likes

507,886

Comments
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RECOGNITIONS

2,124

25,888

Likes

Number of users who visited
www.creal.mx

Main hashtags

1. #CreditoReal
2. #HazloReal
3. #CreeEnTi
4. #TeLlevaLejos

Press

>1,300

Number of press notes
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17 SURVEYS / 1,652 RESPONDENTS
Surveys
Survey of new hires

91

Situational adaptability for leaders

70

Self-awareness

36

Confidence for leaders

85

Strategic approach

82

“The Challenges of being a flexible and successful líder azul”
Workshop

67

Leadership Skills Development – Modules 5 and 6

18

Day 1 – Reinduction
Satisfaction survey for Onboarding course
Wellness survey, first half of the year – We’re Listening

91
311

Wellness sessions with Tiziana Berrondo

23

Year-End Gathering Brigade Members

41

Home Office Master Class Survey

163

REACTION ASSESSMENT: Úrsulas Time Management Tools and
Techniques

21

Virtual race survey

99

Wellness survey, second half of the year – We’re Listening
Ergonomic chair survey

62

127

230
97
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Authorities, government and
public agencies

x

Rating agencies

x

Educational institutions

x

x

Clients, distributors and end
customers

x

x

Employees

x

x

x
x

x

Competitors

x

Community

x

Directors

x

Partners and subsidiaries

x

x

Financial intermediaries

x

Investors and lenders

x

Nonprofit organizations

x

Suppliers

x
x

x

Media

Frequency of engagement

x

Constant

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

Regular (monthly, quarterly, weekly)

Annual

63

x

x

x

x

x

x

Community
visits

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

Phone

x

Workshops

x

x

x

x

Board members

Business partners

x

x

Monthly
meetings

x

x

x

Quarterly
meetings

x

Associations

Annual
meetings

x

Quarterly
reports

Webpage

x

Annual reports

Media
(newspapers,
radio)

x

x

Social media

Whistleblower
hotline

x

Shareholders

Volunteer
Program

Events

Interviews

Surveys

E-mail

Stakeholders

Internal
communication

Type of participation

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

CRÉDITO REAL
TODAY

RESILIENCE

TRANSFORMATION

LEADERSHIP

COLLABORATION

FOCUS

COMMITMENT

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

RECOGNITIONS

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

CODE OF ETHICS

and conduct
GRI 102-16, 102-17, PM2, PM4, PM5, PM10
SASB/FN-CB 410a.2, SASB/FN-CB 510a.2

Our Code of Ethics and Conduct governs the behavior and
actions of board members, employees, suppliers, consultants,
contractors and all stakeholders who have a working
relationship with the company. We regulate the conduct
of all these individuals regarding corruption and bribery,
discrimination, information confidentiality, conflicts of interest,
unfair competition, money-laundering, environment, safety
and health and whistleblowing channels. Anyone who is hired
by or begins a business relationship with the company must
read and sign the Code.
We recently incorporated Social Business Responsibility
Principles for all our operations into the Code.
At Crédito Real, the principles of humility, responsibility,
respect and integrity stand above any other interest, and we
abide by them in all our labor, business and social relations.

100% OF EMPLOYEES RECEIVED TRAINING

IN THE CODE OF ETHICS IN 2020

Our Code is a living document, which is continually updated.
The Ethics Committee reviews any proposed changes for
approval, ensuring that they are aligned with the company’s
culture and philosophy. In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic
prompted updates and changes to the Code to avoid
discriminatory practices.
We have an anonymous channel for whistleblowers, through
which anyone can report violations of the Code, incorrect
conduct, acts of corruption or bribery or anything else that
goes against its provisions. All reports are reviewed by an
independent party who forwards the most serious cases to
the Ethics Committee and the others to the Human Resource
department for analysis and resolution.

64

Voicemail: 800 062 1673
Phone: 800 062 1673
Lunes a viernes de 8:00 a 10:00 p.m.
Website
www.lineadedenuncia.com/creditoreal
E-mail
creditoreal@lineadedenuncia.com
You can view our Code of Ethics and Conduct at:
https://www.creditoreal.com.mx/hubfs/legales%20
y%20codigo%20etica%202020/codigo-deetica-11-2020.pdf?hsLang=es-mx
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GRI 406-1, 408, 409:

103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 408-1

We reject any type of discrimination, whether
based on social position, sexual orientation,
gender, ethnic group, religion or disability,
and we also prohibit child labor. We endorse
the UNICEF Children’s Rights and Business
Principles, by which we respect and promote
children’s rights through various initiatives:
1. Inclusions of issues relating to respect
for children’s rights in our Diversity and
Inclusion Manual.
2. Paternity and Maternity benefits that
exceed those required by law, included
in our Diversity and Inclusion Policy.
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GRI 412: 103-1, 103-2, 412-1, 412-2, PM1

HUMAN

rights

GRI 412: 103-1, 103-2, 102-12, 412-1, 412-2, PM1

In signing the Principles of the Global Compact, we demonstrate our commitment to
protecting human rights in all forms, respecting the dignity of the individual, ensuring
diverse and inclusive workplaces, supporting communities and government public policy,
and providing dignified working conditions for all our employees.
This commitment is expressed in the Ten Commandments for Socially Responsible
Enterprises and in the Code of Ethics, both of which can be viewed on our website.
We also participate in a number of international initiatives, such as Universal Declaration
of Human Rights, the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD),
the International Labor Organization (ILO), and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights, and our employees receive training in Human Rights.

2020
Mexico City

Guadalajara

Total

Total number of hours devoted to human
rights training

85

24

109

Total number of employees who received
human rights training

85

24

109

Percentage of employees who received
human rights training

12.9%

3.7%

16.6%

66

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

CRÉDITO REAL
TODAY

RESILIENCE

TRANSFORMATION

LEADERSHIP

COLLABORATION

FOCUS

COMMITMENT

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

RECOGNITIONS

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

PHILOSOPHY
GRI 102-16

“OUR WAY OF BEING, THINKING AND ACTING IS WHAT
CONSTITUTES THIS COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY.”
Over the years, we have distinguished ourselves as a
company in which a shared sense of pride and belonging
permeates all our businesses.
We work on a daily basis to fulfill our mission, and through
“Cultura Azul,” to forge conscientious leaders who share
our values.

MISSION
To provide financial services that help our clients to improve
their quality of life by offering a differentiated service backed
by our well-known reputation for ethics and continuous
innovation in our products.

VALUES
RESPONSIBILITY
Keeping our promises on a timely basis and owning the way we handle them.

INTEGRITY
Having a committed attitude and a purpose that goes beyond the immediate satisfaction of our own wishes and
serving others ethically.

OUR SUPERIOR PURPOSE

OFFER THE OPPORTUNITY
TO SATISFY NEEDS AND
FULFILL DREAMS.

HUMILITY
Recognizing and incorporating other people’s perspectives into a learning context.

RESPECT
Taking others’ ideas into account and treating everyone with equal dignity.
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azul

Through our “Cultura Azul,” we have succeeded in
transmitting to all our employees a constructive way
of behaving on the job, which distinguishes us as a
company:

Under these premises, we encourage our employees
to think and act cooperatively, constructively
and creatively in everything they do, to achieve
sustainability and fulfill Crédito Real’s commercial
strategies.

We accept responsibility
THE TEN COMMANDMENTS OF CULTURA AZUL
We act with integrity

We tell the truth as we see it and we
listen to others with humility and respect
We seek out constructive solutions
to conflict

We honor our commitments

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Live in a manner consistent with our values.
Encourage and inspire others by example.
Form constructive relations with everyone
Work collaboratively.
Always think about what is best for Crédito Real.
Assume a commitment to what you are called upon to do.
Set challenging but realistic targets and pursue them
enthusiastically.
8. Demand the best results of others and ourselves, in a
framework of mutual respect.
9. Have a sense of achievement and personal and
professional realization.
10. Create bonds of trust with all those we interact with.
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
GRI 203-2, 413-1

Last year, as we have been doing for a number of years,
we continued our support for the Crédito Real Tennis Center,
a high-yield tennis academy for children and youth.

MXN$4.1 MILLONS IN
DONATIONS AND INVESTMENTS IN
THE COMMUNITY
WE INVESTED

VOLUNTEERING
During the public health emergency we postponed activities
for our volunteer corps, and in 2021 this initiative will take
an innovative turn as we adapt to the new normal.
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GRI 301, 302, 303, 305, 307: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3
SASB/FN-CB 410a.2

At Crédito Real, we strive to optimize and efficiently manage
natural resources through environmental impact reduction
strategies centering around a corporate culture of energy,
materials and water savings, thus creating value for both the
company and its stakeholders.
Transparency in environmental reporting is also part of this
commitment. Each year we report on our consumption of
energy, materials and water, as well as emissions and waste
generation in our Mexico City operations, which account for
67% of the corporate structure.
Unsurprisingly, last year all of our environmental indicators
on consumption and emissions showed a substantial
reduction, because the COVID-19 pandemic obligated us to
shut down our offices in Mexico City and cancel business
trips and other travel.
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ENERGY

GRI 302: 103-1, 103-2, 302-1, 302-2, 302-3, 302-4

TOTAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION FROM NON-RENEWABLE
AND RENEWABLE SOURCES (GJ)

ENERGY USED
Fuel type

Unit

FY 2017

FY 2018

FY 2019

FY 2020

Total consumption of
non-renewable energy

MWh

506.4

411.1

432.8

309.9

Total renewable energy

MWh

0

0

0

21.3

Total renewable energy cost MXN

844,058.2

Type of fuel

2017
Electricity

Non-renewable

938,087.0 1,183,347.0 806,365.0

As part of this commitment, our headquarters in Mexico City has LEED Gold (Leadership in
Energy and Environmental Design) certification, meaning it is designed for optimum energy
and water efficiency and incorporates more renewable energy sources.
In 2019, we began a project to save electricity by installing 149 solar panels on the roof of our
corporate headquarters, a process that was completed in October 2020. The total investment
required was MXN$1.7 million, an investment that will be recouped over a period of 6 years.
The estimated annual savings is 43.71 tCO2e (metric tons of CO2 equivalent) and the projected
annual cost is MXN$236,669. The impact of this project has been significant for the company:
in the last quarter of the year we avoided the emission of an average of 6.91 tCO2e, and saved
MXN$178,511.00.
But the measurement and results of the project have been hampered by the COVID-19
pandemic: with more than 97% of our employees working from home, it is difficult to precisely
gauge the impact this will have on our operations.

25.0

38.9

40.8

104.0

Diesel

NA

NA

NA

2.47

Solar panels

NA

NA

NA

7.7

1,848.0

1,518.4

29.6% OF ENERGY REDUCTION
1,823
2017

1,558.3 1,011.6

1,599.2 1,125.8

154.3%

-29.6%

IN 2020

25.0
38.9
2018

2018

1,558
2019

40.9
2019

1,011

104.0

2020

72

-35.0%

2017

1,480

2.47

2020 vs.
2019

GASOLINE (GJ)

ELECTRICITY

DIESEL (GJ) 2020

2020

1,480.0

Total
Since 2016 we at Crédito Real have been measuring the environmental impact of energy used
in our operations, primarily in the form of electricity to power our offices, and the gasoline used
by motorcycle messengers.

2019

1,823.0

Gasoline

Renewable

2018

2020

ENERGY CONSUMPTION FROM RENEWABLE
SOURCES SOLAR PANELS (GJ) 2020

7.7
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Our report on Scope 3 emissions—which quantifies the
environmental impact of travel by our employees—was also
affected by the public health crisis.

ENERGY INTENSITY (GJ/EMPLOYEE)
4.8
2016

6.1
2017

2.6
2018

2.6
2019

2.6

-0.89 vs. 2019

2020

TRIPS IN 2020
Kilometers
Plane
Bus
Total

Number of trips

tCO2e

156,120

336

48.7

21,724

56

2.2

177,844

392

50.9
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EMISSIONS

GRI 305: 103-1, 103-2, 305-1, 305-2, 305-3, 305-4, 305-5, 305-7

To measure and calculate the Scope 1, 2, and 3 CO2
emissions produced by our operations, we apply
NMX-SAA-14064-1-IMNC-2007 criteria, standard ISO
14064-1:2005, the Regulation on the General Law on
Climate Change, as regards the National Emissions
Registry, the emissions calculator (ICAO) and the
Carbon Footprint calculator.
SCOPE 1
Indirect emissions generated by the use of gasoline for
messenger motorcycles.
SCOPE 2
Indirect emissions from the generation of the electricity
used by the company, purchased from the CFE for
operations.
SCOPE 3
Emissions generated by company business travel.

2020

197.99 tCO2e

GHG Emissions
(tCO2e)

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2020 vs. 2019

2020 and base
year

Scope 1

29.4

3.6

2.9

3.0

8.27

184%

-72%

Scope 2

240.0

294.7

216.6

218.7

138.8

-37%

-42%

-

-

103.2

50.9

-51%

-51%

298.3

219.5

324.8

197.99

-39%

-27%

Scope 3
Total

269.4

Notes on emission calculation:
Scope of information: Mexico City operations (scopes 1 and 2), airplane and bus travel (Scope 3).
The year 2016 is the baseline for calculations of scope 1 and 2 emissions, and 2019 is the baseline year for Scope 3 emissions.
The methodology used for calculating emissions was provided by the National Emissions Registry (RENE).
The gases included in the greenhouse gas emission (Scope 1) are: CO2, with a conversion factor of 6.93E-05 (t/MJ); CH4, with a conversion factor of 2.50E-05 (kg/MJ);
and N2O, with a conversion factor of 8.00E-06 (kg/MJ).
The gas included in the greenhouse gas emission (Scope 2) is CO2, with an emission factor of 0.494 tCO2e/MWh, as established by the National Electrical System.
Scope 3 emissions were calculated using the methodology of the Carbon Emissions Calculator (ICAO).

The reduction in the company’s emissions in 2020 is
attributed to the start of remote work on March 17, 2020,
due to the public health emergency, during which time we
did not use our facilities at 100% of their capacity.

EMISSIONS INTENSITY

0.45 tCO2e

NITROUS OXIDE (NOX), SULFUR OXIDES (SOX) AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT ATMOSPHERIC EMISSIONS
Ton

2020

2019

2018

2017

Change 2020 vs. 2019

NOx

514.3

792.1

752.4

926.7

-35.1%

SOx

1,303.9

2,008.5

1,907.7

2,349.8

-35.1%
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GRI 306: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 303-1, 303-3, 303-4, 303-5, 306-1

Responsible water extraction and water savings in our facilities is vitally important, more so
because our offices are located in an area considered to be of very high water stress. For this
reason, we take actions to reduce our consumption—using wastewater in sanitary facilities, for
example, and training and awareness-building among our employees on these issues.
The water we use comes from two sources. The Mexico City public water supply, which we use
for handwashing, and the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WTP) of our office building in Mexico City,
which is used to supply urinals and toilets.
WATER EXTRACTION*
m3

2017

Total

5, 096

2018
4,989

2019

Change 2020
vs. 2019

2020

5,712

6,519

14%

WATER EXTRACTION M3
5,096
2017

4,989
2018

5,712
2019

6,519
2020

All of the water used during the year was sent to the wastewater treatment plant for processing
and then discharged into the Mexico City sewage system.
*To calculate water consumption, we included data on the following companies: Crédito Real, Servicios Corporativos
Chapultepec and Crédito Real Arrendamiento, which have 438 employees, or 66.67% of our work force.
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MATERIALS

and waste
GRI 301-2, 301-3

3.44 kg OF HAZARDOUS WASTE

As we mentioned earlier, the amount of materials we use in our activities was
reduced considerably in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
The material most used in our operations is paper. In 2020, however, the COVID-19
pandemic obligated us to reconsider our processes and documentation and
migrate as much as possible to digital, resulting in a 61% reduction in our paper
use from 2019. This contributes significantly to lowering our environmental impact.
The waste we generate —both hazardous and non-hazardous—comes from office
activities. In 2020, only 0.3% of these materials were sent to recycling through an
independent supplier.

Non-renewable materials used

Total weight
(MT)

Inputs
recycled

SENT FOR RECYCLING
2016
Toner
cartridges
Alkaline
batteries
Paper

Toner cartridges1

0.0442

0.0000

Alkaline batteries

0.0034

0.0034

Paper

1.0614

0.0000

Printed brochures2

-

0

Paper coffee cups

0.0731

0

Total

1.1821

0.0034

0.3%

OF INPUTS

Paper
coffee cups

Units

2017

2018

2019

2020

31

23

29

54

34

0.0403

0.0299

0.0377

0.07

0.0442

164

175

131

332

209

Total weight
(metric tons)

0.005

0.005

0.002

0.005

0.0034

Total weight
(metric tons)

2.9

1.8

1.75

2.72

1.0614

Units

NI

NI

42,000

22,000

8,000

Total weight
(metric tons)

NI

NI

0.40

0.07

0.0731

Total weight
(metric tons)
Units

2020 vs.
2019
-37%

-37%

-61%

-64%

RECYCLED

1 In 2020, as a result of the public health emergency and according to company instructions, we limited our
contact with outside suppliers and thus did not request the collection of empty toner cartridges during the year.
2 In 2020 we do not produce any printed brochures.

We remain partners in the HP Planet Partners program, through which we recycle toner and ink
cartridges to be reused in making new plastic and metal products. Because of the pandemic,
however, and according to company instructions, we limited contact with external suppliers and
in 2020 did not request the collection of empty cartridges; we will resume this practice in 2021.
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CORPORATE

governance

GRI 405, 406: 103-1, 103-2, 103-3, FS4
GRI 102-18, 102-19, 102-20, 102-22, 102-23, 102-24,
102-25, 102-26, 102-27, 102-29, 102-30, 102-33
SASB/FN-CB 410a.2

At Crédito Real, we have solid corporate governance
made up of esteemed members of the Mexican business
community, along with management team with extensive
and proven experience and a strong reputation in
the market.
We meet all applicable standards for corporate governance,
under the supervision of the National Banking and Securities
Commission.
Our Board of Directors is the body responsible for overseeing
company management and the performance of key
executives, and also for establishing a general strategy for
the business, approving policies and control guidelines, and
appointing and removing the CEO as well as that executive’s
compensation package; keeping track of the most relevant
risks, ensuring that shareholder resolutions are enforced,
and taking action to avoid conflicts of interest and ensure
sound Corporate Governance, among other matters.
The Board is made up of 11 regular members, one of which
is a company executive and five are fully independent.
All have been selected by the Shareholders’ Meeting in

accordance with the Securities Market Act, the Code of
Business Principles and Best Practices of the Business
Coordinating Council, the standards of the Professional
Code of Ethics of the Mexican Securities Community, the
company’s corporate charter and our Code of Ethics of
Conduct. The Board must meet at least four times a year.
In the General Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’
meeting held April 3, 2020, a resolution was approved
by which the company would pay to certain independent
board members an amount of MXN$27,500 (before tax,
in accordance with tax laws) for every board meeting
they attend.
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Compensation for Board members is decided upon in the
General Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, which was last held
December 15, 2020.
The Board of Directors is supported in its duties by six
committees: Audit, Corporate Practices, Executive, Securities
Trading, Ethics and Communication, and Control.
Significant changes were made to the Board of Directors in
2020 in order to make it more robust and more aligned with
the company’s strategy for creating value for the business.
At the moment women make up 9.09% of our Board, which
is higher than the proportion recommended by the Woman
on Boards 2002 Mexico Chapter.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Member

Type

Seniority

Alternate

1

Ángel Francisco Romanos Berrondo

Member and Chairman

June ‘96

2

José Luis Berrondo Ávalos

Member

Feb ‘93

3

Eduardo Berrondo Avalos

Member

Jul ‘18

4

Francesca Berrondo Lombardo

Member

Oct ‘20

5

Juan Carlos Benavides Berrondo

Member

Oct ‘20

Gabriel Sragovicz Guterman

6

Allan Cherem Mizrahi

Member

Apr ‘14

Jaime Antonio Arrieta Noriega

7

Iser Rabinovitz Stern

Independent Member

Jun ‘11

Marcos Shemaria Zlotorynski

8

Felipe Esteve Recolons

Independent Member

Oct ‘20

Jorge Esteve Recolons

9

Gilbert Sonnery Garreau-Dombasle

Independent Member

Oct ‘14

Enrique Saiz Fernández

10

Enrique Alejandro Castillo Badía

Independent Member

Oct ‘17

11

Raúl Alberto Farías Reyes

Independent Member

Feb ‘16

Luis Berrondo Barroso

The seniority of Board Members is 5.19 years.
Secretary Guillermo Javier Solórzano Leiro
Secretary Pro Tem Jorge Alberto Labastida Martínez

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Regular members
Enrique Alejandro Castillo Badía
Chairman
Felipe Esteve Recolons
Member
Enrique Saiz Fernández
Member
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CORPORATE PRACTICES COMMITTEE
Regular members
Enrique Saiz Fernández
Chairman
Felipe Esteve Recolons
Member
Enrique Alejandro Castillo Badía
Member
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Other auxiliary committees
of the Board of Directors

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Regular members
Ángel Francisco Romanos Berrondo
Chairman
José Luis Berrondo Ávalos
Member
Eduardo Berrondo Ávalos
Member
Luis Berrondo Barroso
Member
Moisés Rabinovitz Ohrenstein
Member
Iser Rabinovitz Stern
Member

COMMUNICATION AND
CONTROL COMMITTEE
1.
2.
3.
4.

Chief Operating Officer
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Legal Officer
Chief Compliance Officer

SECURITIES TRADING COMMITTEE
1. A member of Crédito Real’s Ethics
Committee, who serves as Chairman
2. Chief Financial Officer
3. Chief Internal Audit Officer
4. Chief Legal Officer, who serves as
Secretary

ETHICS COMMITTEE

Each year, the Board of Directors presents
shareholders with a summary of information
prepared by the Committees on their
analysis and management of economic,
environmental and social issues relevant to
the company, in keeping with the principles
of due diligence established in the Securities
Market Act and Code of Business Principles
and Best Practices.
The Corporate Practices Committee
approves the company’s general policies
on salaries and benefits and provides
a recommendation to the Board of
Directors on its proposal for Board
Member compensation, to be approved
by Shareholders, and on the Board’s own

1. Chief Human Resources Officer,
who serves as Chairman
2. Deputy CEO
3. Chief Internal Audit Officer
4. Chief Legal Officer, who serves
as Secretary
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approval of compensation for key executives.
Crédito Real and its subsidiaries do not pay
any compensation to related parties other
than board members and executives. The
company and its subsidiaries have no plan
or reserve for a pension or retirement plan
for board members or executives, or other
parties related to the company.
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management
GRI 102-11, 102-15, 102-29,
SASB/FN-CB 410a.2

102-30, 102-31, 207-2, FS2, FS5, FS9

Like any other company, Crédito Real is exposed to
various types of risk: market, regulatory, environmental,
social, technological and macroeconomic, among others.
To manage these, we have developed a robust risk
management model.
The Board of Directors, through the Audit Committee
and Communication and Control Committee, ascertains
that mechanisms are in place to control risks and review
company operations. The Chief Executive Officer in turn
presents a quarterly report to the Board of Directors on
the status of each of the identified risks. This is managed
independently of the business lines.
We also have risk matrices by department, in which
we identify the existing risks and controls to mitigate
them, as well as tools for assessing, documenting and
determining whether they are being correctly addressed,
which are kept continually up to date.

We present each of the company’s departments and the
CEO with the results of the risk matrix testing, to ensure
they are working correctly and if not, to modify them.
The company’s Risk Department establishes various
controls that are reported every year in the Audited
Financial Statements, and discussed internally in the
Risk Committee
Risk training within the company is extensive and is
provided to all employees on an annual basis, especially
the risk team. The main issues included in this training
are preventive estimates, portfolios, and exchanges.2
Additionally, we have policies and procedures by which
we can monitor external regulatory requirements,
internal and external audits at least once a year but
generally three times a year.

2 Only for specific positions
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MAIN EMERGING RISKS IDENTIFIED
Risk
Market rate fluctuations

Mitigation actions
Bond issuance.

Funding

• Understanding and communicating the possible external
risks and impact on our investors.
• Maintaining a flexible growth strategy adaptable to various
funding scenarios.
• Expanding our search for accessible funding.

Constant technological
change in the market

• Planning and execution of a digitalization strategy.
• Mitigation of cybersecurity risks through policies for the
data security and defense against cyberattacks.
• Internal automation and process optimization initiatives.
• Expanding our internal culture and our capacities for
implementing, innovating and optimizing our use of
existing and new technologies.

Talent attraction
and retention

• Talent attraction and retention.
• Continuous improvement in leadership to transform
our processes, technology and environment.
• Training and talent retention initiatives.

The pandemic posed serious challenges for the company in terms of risk, and we took
on the task of bolstering all risk areas, reviewing our processes and, more importantly,
approaching each of our clients to learn about their needs and introduce personalized
solutions to avoid an impact on the company’s economic performance and profitability.
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MAIN EMERGING RISKS IDENTIFIED
Risk

Mitigation actions
Financial

Asset and
portfolio quality

• Development of personalized relief plans for customers
and for each of the business lines.
• Payment extensions for SMEs.
• Extension of terms as requested by the CNBV: SMEs,
used car and US car loans.
• Weekly review of operations for all businesses and
the portfolio.
• Changes in credit placement.

Liquidity

Rollover of credit lines.

Capital adequacy

Postpone dividend payments to keep capital adequacy at 30%.
Operational

Remote customer service

Transfer of operations
and personnel to remote
settings

Promoting “Cultura Azul”

Listen to each of our customers to learn about their needs
and offer personalized solutions.
• Business continuity plan.
• Training and delivery of tools to all employees
for working from home.
• Loan of computer equipment.
• Loan for acquisition of chairs, etc.
• Online training.
• Psychological support.
• Wellness initiatives.
• Surveys.

DATA PROTECTION AND MONEY LAUNDERING
SASB/FN-CB 230a.2

In line with our goal of promoting a culture of zero tolerance for corruption, we have
developed a series of processes for verifying our operations and any activity relating to
our customers, which are documented in the Money-Laundering and Terrorism Financing
Prevention Manual. This manual includes all obligations required by the authorities as
well as policies on Know-Your-Client, the use of automated systems, the use of blacklists,
regular training, publication of a provisions manual, a risk-based approach, reporting
to the authorities and compliance with internal structures established in the provisions
(Communication and Control Committee and Compliance Office).
All these processes are consistent with the provisions that apply to multiple-service
financial institutions, established in the Credit Institutions Law and the General Law on
Auxiliary Credit Organizations and Activities.
Since the pandemic began, we have been reviewing and transforming our contracts and
compliance models, establishing secure mechanisms for digital transactions, for example
the Mexican Tax Department’s digital signature format and the use of videos in which
customers agree to the contract conditions, followed by a simple digital signature for
subsequent transactions.
We have also applied transaction locks like deposits into key accounts and verification
prior to deposit; segregation an identification of risks involved in the various mechanisms,
and five different models for digital contract signing.

Seek out new ways of staying in touch with employees
to continue promoting company culture remotely.
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TRANSPARENCY

GRI 205, 206:103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 102-25, 205-1, 205-2, 205-3, 206-1,
418-1, PM10, DJSI, SASB/FN-CB 230a.2

As a securities-market entity, Crédito Real has an obligation
of accountability and transparency in all our operations.
We try to stay in constant communication with all our
stakeholders to keep them abreast of changes in the
company. To ensure this, we are evaluated through a
questionnaire that is part of the Code of Business Principles
and Best Practices, of which we are signatory members.
We also have a Transparency and Accountability Code.
Fighting corruption is a priority for our company. For this
reason, besides the principles established in our Code
of Ethics, we have a Corruption Prevention Code, which
covers, among other matters, training for all employees,
prohibition of any improper act, the signing of a pledge by
all employees, and a whistleblowers’ hotline.
Employees are strictly prohibited from engaging in any
activity, consultancy or business that directly or indirectly
affects the interests of the organization or which seek a
personal benefit at the expense of the organization.
Company management must notify the Board of Directors
of any conflict of interest that is brought to their attention.
Crédito Real discourages any form of unfair competition
or monopolistic practices in all our operations.

We vigorously defend the confidentiality of the company’s
information and that of our customers. We require
the signing of confidentiality agreements and include
confidentiality clauses in all of our service contracts.

Year

Number of Board Members

We comply with the Federal Law on Protection of Personal
Data held by Private Parties, and have a series of policies,
procedures and actions in place to guarantee the protection
of our clients’ personal information.

Percentage who have received
information on anti-corruption
policies/procedures

Percentage who have received
training or preparation on anticorruption policies/procedures

2018

12

8%

8%

2019

12

8%

8%

2020

11

18%

18%
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Mexico City

Guadalajara

How many people have
been informed of the
anticorruption policies
and procedures?

How many people have
been informed of the
anticorruption policies
and procedures?

Men

Women

Number of
people
who
Percentage received
training

Category

Men

Senior management (CEO,
Divisional CEO and functional
directors)

17

2

100%

19

Senior management (CEO,
Divisional CEO and functional
directors)

Executives (Managers)

47

20

91%

67

Administrative (Bossesleaders, Coordinators, Analysts,
Administrative Assistants and
Assistants)

RECOGNITIONS

175

154

93%

329

85

Women

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Number of
people
who
Percentage received
training

1

1

100%

2

Executives (Managers)

13

10

105%

23

Administrative (Bossesleaders, Coordinators, Analysts,
Administrative Assistants and
Assistants)

86

111

105%

197
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AWARDS, RECOGNITIONS

and C R distinctions

2012

1

• Ranked 394th among Mexico’s top 500
companies according to Expansión magazine.

3

• Socially Responsible Enterprise (SRE) 2014
distinction from the Mexican Center for
Philanthropy (CEMEFI)—first year.
• Recognized in the Great Place to Work
(GPTW) ranking of Best Companies to Work
for in Mexico: companies with between 50
and 500 employees.
• Nominated by Institutional Investor in the
survey of “Best LatAm Management Teams”
in the non-bank financial industry, in the
categories of best CEO, CFO, RO and IR areas.

2013
• Ranked 402nd among Mexico’s top 500
companies according to Expansión magazine.
• Great Place to Work (GPTW) recognition:
• 17th place in the ranking of Best Companies
to Work for in Mexico: Financial Industry
(less than 1,000 employees).
• 89th place in the ranking of Best Companies
to Work for in Mexico: Gender Equity.
• One of the 100 best financial firms:
World Finance 100.
• A score of 76% in the Great Place to Work
(GPTW) workplace environment survey.

2014

2

2015
• Ranked 376th among Mexico’s top 500
companies according to Expansión magazine.
• SRE distinction 2015 from CEMEFI
(2nd year in a row).
• Recognized in the Great Place to Work (GPTW)
ranking of Best Companies to Work for in Mexico:
• Financial industry (less than 1,000 employees).
• Companies with between 50 and 500 employees.
• A score of 81% in the Great Place to Work (GPTW)
workplace environment survey.

87

2016
• Ranked 364th among Mexico’s top 500
companies according to Expansión magazine.
• SRE distinction 2016 from CEMEFI
(3rd year in a row).
• Recognized in the Great Place to Work
(GPTW) ranking of Best Companies to Work
for in Mexico: Gender Equity (less than 1,000
employees).
• Gilberto Rincón Gallardo Inclusive Company
Distinction, 2016-2018.
• Family Responsible Company Distinction
2016-2019.
• “H” Distinction from the Ministry of Tourism and
the Ministry of Public Health, for our corporate
dining room.
• Recognized by Institutional Investor for best
IR Area and Officer.
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2017
• Ranked 285th among Mexico’s top 500
companies according to Expansión magazine.
• SRE distinction 2017 from CEMEFI
(4th year in a row).
• Mexican Stock Exchange recognition for
outstanding performance in Corporate
Governance, a sustainability rating provided by
the Universidad Anáhuac México Sur Center for
Excellence in Corporate Governance.
• Crédito Real’s corporate dining room,
administered by Aramak, received “H”
Distinction for a second time.
• A score of 83% in the Great Place to Work
(GPTW) workplace environment survey.
• “Ranking of 500 Companies Against Corruption”
with a score of 66.7.
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6

• Ranked 272nd among Mexico’s top 500
companies according to Expansión magazine.
• SRE distinction 2018 from CEMEFI
(5th year in a row).
• Gilberto Rincón Gallardo Inclusive Company
Distinction, 2018-2021.
• Recognized by Great Place to Work:
• 11th in the category of companies with
between 50 and 500 employees and
multinationals, in the Banking, Insurance
and Bonding segment.
• 19th in the category of best places to work
for Millennials.
• Ranked 52nd in the list of 2018 Responsible
Companies published in Expansión magazine,
based on an evaluation by that magazine and
the York University Schulich School of Business.
• The British magazine The European recognized
Crédito Real in the categories of: (i) Innovation,
financial inclusion and social responsibility; and
(ii) consumer finance company of the year.
• “Ranking of 500 Companies Against
Corruption” with a score of 70.6.
• Our Finance and Investor Relations
departments were once against ranked among
the top in their categories in Latin America by
Institutional Investor.
• Crédito Real’s corporate dining room,
administered by Aramak, received “H”
Distinction for a third time.
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2019
• Ranked 259th among Mexico’s top 500
companies according to Expansión magazine.
• SRE distinction 2019 from CEMEFI
(6th year in a row).
• Crédito Real’s corporate dining room,
administered by Aramak, received “H”
Distinction for a fourth time.
• A score of 87% in the Great Place to Work
(GPTW) workplace environment survey.
• “Ranking of 500 Companies Against Corruption”
with a score of 84.3.
• Recognized as “Value Chain Sponsoring
Company,” for our help in obtaining smalland mid-sized business SRE distinction for
our media supplier.

7

2020
• Ranked 241st among Mexico’s top 500
companies according to Expansión magazine.
• SRE distinction 2020 from CEMEFI
(7th year in a row).
• “Ranking of 500 Companies Against Corruption”
with a score of 86.3.
• Personal Data Protection Certification from NYCE.

8

2021
• SRE distinction 2021 from CEMEFI
(8th year in a row).

88

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

CRÉDITO REAL
TODAY

RESILIENCE

TRANSFORMATION

LEADERSHIP

COLLABORATION

FOCUS

MEMBERSHIP IN

associations
GRI 102-13

ARRIBA
GROUP2

NATIONAL NETWORK OF
LABOR ENGAGEMENT,
MINISTRY OF LABOR 1, 2

MEXICAN ASSOCIATION OF
PAYROLL LOAN COMPANIES

MEXICAN CENTER FOR
PHILANTHROPY2

NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR
THE DEFENSE OF FINANCIAL
SERVICE USERS2
1 We hold a position in the
association’s governance body.
2. We participate in projects or
committees.
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OUR CONTRIBUTION

to the SDG

GRI 102-12

As signatory members of the United Nations Global
Compact, we are committed to achieving the
Sustainable Development Goals (SDG).
Although in 2018 we had already identified various
company initiatives that directly or indirectly contribute
to the 17 SDG, it was not until late 2019 that we began
reporting on our contributions to four specific SDGs—
Gender Equality (SDG 5), Decent work and Economic
Growth (SDG 8), Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure
(SDG 9), and Reduced Inequality (SDG 10)—with the
help of a line of credit from the IDB.
Responding to the call by UN General Secretary Antonio
Guterres in January 2020 for all companies to set bolder
goals in line with our purpose, corporate governance
and strategy, we decided to take a pause and analyze
what we have done, to align ourselves with the SDG
AMBITION initiative, which helped us understand the
areas in which we have a substantial impact.

90
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IMPACT ON THE SDGS
GENDER EQUILIBRIUM AT ALL
MANAGEMENT LEVELS
O

Additional

1

4

8 10 16

3

9

12 14 15

SCIENCE-BASED EMISSIONS REDUCTION
TOWARD THE TARGET OF 1.5°C
O

P

C

Additional

ZERO BRIBERY INCIDENTS
O

P

Mainstream

C

100% OF EMPLOYEES RECEIVE A DIGNIFIED WAGE
C

Additional

O Operations

P Products

O

1

2

3

4

5 10 13

C Value Chain

In 2021 we participated in these initiatives in collaboration with
the Global Compact, to set business goals linked to social and
environmental priorities, encourage innovation and offer tangible
solutions, as part of our work to achieve the 2030 Goals.
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GRI 102-10, 102-12, 102-45, 102-46, 102-48, 102-49, 102-50, 102-51, 102-52, 102-54

This document is our 2020 Annual and Sustainable Report to stakeholders
on our business, finance, labor, social, environmental and corporate
governance results for the year.
The information presented covers the period from January 1 to December
31, 2020, and covers only the operations of Crédito Real in Mexico.
The scope of the information reported includes Crédito Real and the
corporate structure made up of the following subsidiaries:
• Servicios Corporativos Chapultepec, S.A. de C.V.
• Directodo México, S.A.P.I. de C.V. y
• Crédito Real Arrendamiento, S.A. de C.V.
For environmental data, we present information on Crédito Real and
its subsidiaries Servicios Corporativos Chapultepec and Crédito Real
Arrendamiento.
The amounts are expressed in Mexican pesos (MXN) unless other
currencies are specified, such as US dollars (USD) or Swiss francs (CHF).
In line with the Principles of Corporate Social Responsibility contained in
our Code of Ethics and Conduct, the Crédito Real Social and Environmental
Responsibility Polices and principles of accountability, transparency, and
ethical conduct, and in respect for the interests of our stakeholders, this
report has been verified by an external expert, whose recommendations
were incorporated into this document.
Since 2013, we have been signatory members of the United Nations
Initiative promoting 10 principles of action in the areas of human and labor
rights and the environment, and the battle against corruption, so this report
also represents our Communication of Progress (CoP).
This report was prepared in accordance with the GRI Standards: Core Option
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GRI CONTENT

index

GRI 102-55, 203-1

Content

Description

For the Materiality Disclosures Service, GRI Services made sure that the GRI content index is
clearly presented and that references for Disclosures 102-40 a 102-49 align with appropriate
sections in the body of the report. The service was performed for the Spanish version of the report.

Page or response

Content

Description

GRI 101: FOUNDATION

2. Strategy

GRI 102: GENERAL DISCLOSURES 2016

102-14

Statement from senior decision-makers

1. Organizational profile

102-15

Key impacts, risks, and opportunities

102-1

Name of the organization

102-2

Activities, brands, products, and services

102-3

Location of headquarters

102-4

Location of operations

102-5

Ownership and legal form

102-6

Markets served

102-7

Scale of the organization

102-8

Information on employees and other workers

102-9

Supply chain

102-10

Significant changes to the organization and its
supply chain

102-11

Precautionary Principle or approach

102-12

External initiatives

102-13

Membership in associations.

7, 9
16, 81

3. Ethics and integrity

166
4, 16

SASB SUSTAINABILITY ACCOUNTING STANDARDS COMMERCIAL BANKING
(1) Number and (2) value of checking and
FN-CB-000.B savings accounts by segment: (a) personal
and (b) small business

Page or response

5, 16

102-16

Values, principles, standards and norms of
behavior

11, 22, 64, 66

102-17

Mechanisms for advice and concerns about
ethics

64

SASB SUSTAINABILITY ACCOUNTING STANDARDS COMMERCIAL BANKING

166

FN-CB-000.B

16

Description of whistleblower policies
and procedures

64

4. Governance

14, 166
16

102-18

Governance structure

78

4, 5, 14

102-19

Delegating authority

78

35

102-20

Executive-level responsibility for economic,
environmental, and social topics

102-22

Composition of the highest governance body
and its committees

78

102-23

Chair of the highest governance body

78

66, 90, 93

102-24

Nominating and selecting the highest
governance body

78

89

102-25

Conflicts of interest

27, 30
93
81, 166

94

22, 78

78, 84
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Page or response

102-51

Date of most recent report

93

102-52

Reporting cycle

93

78

102-53

Contact point for questions regarding the
report

78, 81

102-54

93

52, 78, 81

Claims of reporting in accordance with the
GRI Standards

102-55

GRI content index

94

81

102-56

External assurance

102-26

Role of highest governance body in setting
purpose, values, and strategy

78

102-27

Collective knowledge of highest governance
body

102-29

Identifying and managing economic,
environmental, and social impacts

102-30

Effectiveness of risk management processes

102-31

Review of economic, environmental, and
social topics

102-33

Communicating critical concerns

102-35

Remuneration policies

46

102-36

Process for determining remuneration

46

102-38

Annual total compensation ratio

46

102-39

Percentage increase in annual total
compensation ratio

46

52, 78

166

102

SPECIFIC STANDARDS
GRI 103: MANAGEMENT APPROACH 2016
GRI 200: ECONOMIC STANDARDS
GRI 201: Economic performance 2016

5. Stakeholder engagement

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

7, 9, 22

102-40

List of stakeholder groups

59

103-2

7, 9, 22

102-41

Collective bargaining agreements

35

The management approach and its
components

102-42

59

Evaluation of the management approach

7, 9, 22

Identifying and selecting stakeholders

103-3

102-43

Approach to stakeholder engagement

59

201-1

Direct economic value generated and
distributed

102-44

Key topics and concerns raised

59

201-3

Defined benefit plan obligations and other
retirement plans

6. Reporting practices
102-45

Entities included in the consolidated financial
statements

14, 93

102-46

Defining report content and topic boundaries

23, 93

102-47

List of material topics

23

102-48

Restatements of information

93

102-49

Changes in reporting

93

102-50

Reporting period

93

201-4

95

Financial assistance received from the
government

5
43

On February 21, 2020,
Crédito Real took out a
syndicated line of credit
totaling USD$110 million at
3 years. Of the proceeds,
USD$50 million went to
Crédito Real and USD$50
million to Instacredit. In
the same month, it secured
a USD$50 million line of
credit with BNP Paribas.
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GRI 205: Anti-Corruption 2016
103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

84

103-2

The management approach and its
components

84

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

84

54, 57

GRI 202: Market presence 2016
103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

16

205-1

Operations assessed for risks related to
corruption

84

103-2

The management approach and its
components

16

205-2

Communication and training about
anti-corruption policies and procedures

84

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

16

202-1

Confirmed incidents of corruption and
actions taken

84

Ratios of standard entry level wage by gender
compared to local minimum wage

205-3

35, 46

GRI 206: Anti-Competitive Behavior 2016

GRI 203: Indirect economic impacts 2016

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

84

103-2

The management approach and its
components

84

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

54

103-2

The management approach and its
components

54

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

84

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

54

203-1

Legal actions for anti-competitive behavior,
anti-trust, and monopoly practices.

84

Infrastructure investments and services
supported

206-1

54, 94

203-2

Significant indirect economic impacts

14, 69

GRI 207: Tax Approach 2019

GRI 204: Procurement Practices 2016

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

32

103-2

The management approach and its
components

32

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

32

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

27, 30

103-2

The management approach and its
components

27, 30

207-1

Fiscal approach

32

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

27, 30

207-2

Fiscal governance, control and risk management

81

204-1

Proportion of spending on local suppliers

27, 30

207-4

Country-by country reporting

96

104
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Content

SPECIFIC STANDARDS
GRI 103: MANAGEMENT APPROACH 2016
GRI 300: ENVIRONMENTAL STANDARDS
GRI 301: Materials 2016
103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

71

103-2

The management approach and its
components

71

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

71

301-1

Materials used by weight or volume

76

301-2

Recycled input materials used

76

301-3

Reclaimed products and their packaging
materials

76

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

71, 72

103-2

The management approach and its
components

71, 72

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

71, 72

302-1

Energy consumption within the organization

72

302-2

Energy consumption outside of the
organization

72

302-3

Energy intensity

72

302-4

Reduction of energy requirements of products
and services

72
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103-2

The management approach and its
components

71

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

71

303-1

Water withdrawal by source

75

303-3

Water withdrawal

75

303-4

Water sources significantly affected by
withdrawal of water

75

303-5

Total volume of water recycled and reused

75

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

71, 74

103-2

The management approach and its
components

71, 74

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

71

305-1

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions

74

305-2

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions

74

305-3

Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions

74

305-4

GHG emissions intensity

74

305-5

Reduction of GHG emissions

74

305-7

Nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur oxides (SOX),
and other significant air emissions

74

GRI 306: Effluents and waste 2016

GRI 303: Water and effluents 2018
Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

GRI 305: Emissions 2016

GRI 302: Energy 2016

103-1

COMMITMENT

71

97

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

75

103-2

The management approach and its
components

75

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

75

306-1

Water discharge by quality and destination

75
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401-3

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

71

The management approach and its
components

71

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

71

307-1

Non-compliance with environmental laws and During 2020, we did not
receive fines or penalties.
regulations

103-2

Number and total value of investments
and loans incorporating integration of
environmental, social, and governance
(ESG) factors, by industry

27, 30, 52, 64, 71, 78, 81

SPECIFIC STANDARDS
GRI 103: MANAGEMENT APPROACH 2016
GRI 400: SOCIAL STANDARDS
GRI 401: Employment 2016
103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

43

103-2

The management approach and its
components

43

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

43

401-1

New employee hires and employee turnover

401-2

Benefits provided to full-time employees that
are not provided to temporary or part-time
employees
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Parental leave

42, 43

GRI 403: Occupational Health and Safety 2016

SASB SUSTAINABILITY ACCOUNTING STANDARDS COMMERCIAL BANKING
FN-CB 410a.2
Incorporation of
environmental,
social, and
governance
(ESG) factors
in investment
banking &
brokerage
activities

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Content

GRI 307 Environmental compliance 2016
103-1

COMMITMENT

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

52

103-2

The management approach and its
components

52

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

52

403-1

Occupational health and safety management
system

52

403-2

Hazard identification, risk assessment, and
incident investigation

52

403-3

Occupational health services

52

403-4

Worker participation, consultation, and
communication on occupational health
and safety.

52

403-5

Worker training on occupational health and
safety

52

403-6

Promotion of worker health

52

403-7

Prevention and mitigation of occupational
health and safety impacts directly linked by
business relationships

52

403-8

Workers covered by an occupational health
and safety management system

52
52

403-9

Work-related injuries

403-10

Work-related ill health

35, 41
43

98

The absenteeism and
accidents rate is 0.0%.
This is because a as of
March 17 97.2% of the
workforce works remotely.

52
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Content

GRI 404: Training and Education 2016
Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

47

103-2

The management approach and its
components

47

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

47

404-1

Average hours of training per year per employee

47

404-2

Programs for upgrading employee skills and
transition assistance programs

47

404-3

Percentage of employees receiving regular
performance and career development reviews

49

407-1

103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

34, 35, 59, 78, 87

103-2

The management approach and its
components

34, 35, 59, 78, 87

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

34, 35, 59, 78, 87

405-1

Diversity of governance bodies and employees

405-2

Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of
women to men
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Page or response

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

65

103-2

The management approach and its
components

65

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

65

408-1

Operations and suppliers at significant risk for
incidents of child labor

65

411-1

103-2

The management approach and its
components

34, 59, 78, 87

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

34, 59, 78, 87

There were no reported
cases of discrimination
in 2020.

Incidents of violations involving rights of
indigenous peoples

There were no reported
cases of violation of the
rights of indigenous
people in 2020.

GRI 412: Human Rights Assessment 2016

35, 46

34, 59, 78, 87

There were no reported
cases of violation of this
right in 2020.

103-1

35

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

Operations and suppliers in which the right
to freedom of association and collective
bargaining may be at risk

GRI 411: Rights of indigenous people 2016

GRI 406: Nondiscrimination 2016

Incidents of discrimination and corrective
actions taken

ABOUT THIS
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GRI 408: Child labor 2016

GRI 405: Diversity and equal opportunity 2016

406-1

RECOGNITIONS

GRI 407: Freedom of association and collective bargaining 2016

103-1

103-1
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103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

66

103-2

The management approach and its
components

66

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

66

412-1

Employee training on human rights policies or
procedures

66

412-2

Employee training on human rights policies or
procedures

66

412-3

Significant investment agreements and
contracts that include human rights clauses
or that underwent human rights screening

65

99

1% of our investment
agreements (IDB) contain
human rights clauses.
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Content

GRI 413: Local communities 2016
413-1

413-2

Operations with local community
engagement, impact assessments, and
development programs
Operations with significant actual and
potential negative impacts on local
communities

54, 69

There were no operations
with significant negative
impacts on local
communities in 2020.

GRI 415: Public policy 2016

415-1

Contributions to political parties and/or
representatives

Crédito real conducts
business with respect for
political pluralism in the
societies where we are
present, and accordingly
we do not make donations,
sponsorships or funding to
political parties.
Our employees enjoy the
fullest right to participate
in political activities as long
as they do so strictly on a
personal basis.

GRI 416: Customer health and safety 2016
416-1
416-2

Assessment of the health and safety impacts
of product and service categories
There were no reported
Incidents of non-compliance concerning the cases of non-compliance
in this area in 2020.
health and safety impacts of products and
services

103-1
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103-2

The management approach and its
components

16

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

16

417-1

Requirements for product and service
information and labeling

417-2

Incidents of non-compliance concerning product
and service information and labeling

417-3

Incidents of non-compliance concerning
marketing communications

There were no reported
cases of non-compliance
in this area in 2020.

GRI 418: Customer privacy 2016
418-1

Substantiated complaints concerning
breaches of customer privacy and losses
of customer data

84

SASB SUSTAINABILITY ACCOUNTING STANDARDS COMMERCIAL BANKING
FN-CB 230a.2 Description of approach to identifying and
Data Security addressing data security risks

28, 54, 57, 83, 84

GRI 419: Socioeconomic compliance 2016
103-1

Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

16

103-2

The management approach and its
components

16

103-3

Evaluation of the management approach

16

419-1

Non-compliance with laws and regulations
in the social and economic area

16

GRI INDUSTRY SUPPLEMENT. FINANCIAL SERVICES
FS PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

GRI 417: Marketing and Labeling 2016
Explanation of the material topic and its
boundaries

COMMITMENT

FS1
16

100

Policies with specific environmental and
social components applied to business lines

54
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Procedures for the evaluation and selection
of environmental and social risks in lines of
business

Processes to monitor implementation and
compliance with environmental and social
requirements included in agreements or
transactions with customers

FS4

Processes to improve personnel competence
in implementing environmental and social
policies and procedures applicable to lines of
business

FS5

Interactions with customers in terms of
environmental and social opportunities and
risks

FS6

Percentage of the portfolio for business lines by
specific region, size (e.g. micro/SME/ large) and by
sector.

FS7

Monetary value of products and services
designed to deliver a specific social benefit
for each business line broken down by
purpose.
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Content
81

In 2020, the Internal Audit
team conducted a review
of the main controls for
processes relating to the
Marketing area as part of
the Annual Audit Plan.

FS9

RECOGNITIONS

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Description

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
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FS COMMUNITIY
FS13

Access points in low-populated or
economically disadvantaged areas by type.

54

FS14

Initiatives to improve access to financial
services for disadvantaged people.

54

FS PRODUCT AND SERVICE LABELING

The results of that audit
found that most processes
and controls established
for the Marketing area
are appropriate for their
purpose.

FS15

We work with the
Marketing Department to
ensure that all of Crédito
Policies for the design and sale of financial
Real’s services offer
products and services in a fair and reasonable tangible benefits to our
manner
customers, seeking to
meet not only their needs
but those of investors as
well.
FS LOCAL COMMUNITIES

34, 59, 78, 87

FS16

Initiatives to improve financial literacy
and education by type of beneficiary

54

81

PRINCIPLES OF THE GLOBAL COMPACT
16

16

PM1

66

PM2

64

PM4

64

PM5

64

PM10

FS AUDIT
Coverage and frequency of audits to assess
implementation of environmental and social
policies and risk assessment procedures.
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64, 84

DOW JONES SUSTAINABILITY INDEX (DJSI)
81

101

DJSI

84
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GRI 102-56

EXTERNAL

assurance letter

GRI 102-56

MADRID - A CORUÑA
AMSTERDAM – LONDRES – PARIS
ISTANBUL – CIUDAD DE MÉXICO - QUITO

MADRID - A CORUÑA
AMSTERDAM – LONDRES – PARIS
ISTANBUL – CIUDAD DE MÉXICO - QUITO

Informe de Revisión Independiente para la Dirección de Crédito Real, S.A.B. de C.V., SOFOM, E.N.R.
A la Dirección de Crédito Real, S.A.B. de C.V., SOFOM, E.N.R. (en adelante “Crédito Real”),
Conforme a su solicitud, hemos sido requeridos para proporcionar un nivel de aseguramiento limitado sobre la información
correspondiente contenida en el Informe Sostenible 2020 (en adelante el “Informe Sostenible”) de Crédito Real, para el ejercicio
comprendido del 1° de enero al 31 de diciembre de 2020.

Anexo 1.
Detalle de los Estándares GRI revisados:

El Informe ha sido preparado de conformidad con los contenidos propuestos en los Estándares de Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
y el Suplemento Sectorial de Servicios Financieros de la Guía GRI versión G4 y los parámetros de contabilidad del Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board (SASB) del estándar para la industria de Bancos comerciales.

Contenido
102-8
102-17
102-18
102-22
102-29
102-43
102-46

Responsabilidades de Crédito Real
Crédito Real ha sido responsable de la preparación, del contenido y presentación del Informe Sostenible, incluyendo el cumplimiento
de los requerimientos de la opción de conformidad “Esencial” en la aplicación de los Estándares GRI.
Esta responsabilidad considera el diseño, la implantación y el mantenimiento del control interno que se considere necesario para
permitir que la información contenida en el Informe Sostenible esté libre de incorrección material, debido a fraude o error.
Nuestra responsabilidad

201-1
203-1

Nuestra responsabilidad consistió en llevar a cabo una revisión limitada sobre el contenido del Informe Sostenible en cuanto a los
contenidos verificados enlistados en el Anexo 1 del presente Informe de Revisión Independiente de los Estándares GRI.
Con el fin de asegurar que el proceso de verificación cumple con los requerimientos éticos necesarios para asegurar la independencia
de nuestro trabajo como auditores de información no financiera, nuestro trabajo se desarrolló de acuerdo a la Norma ISAE3000,
Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information, emitida por la International Auditing and
Assurance Standard Board (IAASB) de la International Federation of Accountants (IFAC).

302-1
303-3
305-1
305-2

Alcance

401-1
403-9
404-1
404-2
405-1
406-1

El alcance de nuestra revisión independiente, así como de los procedimientos de recopilación de evidencias realizados fue de
seguridad limitada, el cual es menor al de un trabajo de seguridad razonable y por ello también el nivel de seguridad que se
proporciona. El presente informe en ningún caso debe entenderse como un informe de auditoría.
Los procedimientos que realizamos, se describen a continuación:
 Selección de información a verificar con base en la materialidad y conocimiento previo de la compañía.
 Entrevistas con el personal responsable de proporcionar la información contenida en el Informe para conocer los principios,
sistemas y enfoques de gestión aplicados.
 Revisión de los procesos de recopilación, control interno y consolidación de los datos.
 Revisión de la cobertura, relevancia e integridad de la información incluida en el Informe en función de las operaciones y
los aspectos materiales previamente identificados.
 Revisión de evidencias con base en un muestreo de la información de acuerdo a un análisis de riesgo.
 Revisión de la aplicación de lo requerido de conformidad con los Estándares GRI.

Estándares GRI
Contenidos Generales

Descripción
Información sobre colaboradores
Mecanismos de asesoramiento y preocupaciones éticas
Estructura de gobernanza
Composición del máximo órgano de gobierno y sus comités
Identificación y gestión de impactos económicos, ambientales y sociales
Enfoque para la participación de los grupos de interés
Definición de los contenidos de los informes y las Coberturas del tema
Contenidos Económicos
Valor económico directo generado y distribuido
Inversiones en infraestructuras y servicios apoyados
Contenidos Ambientales
Consumo energético dentro de la organización
Extracción de agua
Emisiones directas de GEI (alcance 1)
Emisiones indirectas de GEI al generar energía (alcance 2)
Contenidos Sociales
Nuevas contrataciones de empleados y rotación de personal
Lesiones por accidente laboral
Media de horas de formación al año por empleado
Programas para mejorar las aptitudes de los empleados y programas de ayuda a la transición
Diversidad en órganos de gobierno y empleados
Casos de discriminación y acciones correctivas emprendidas

Fin del documento

Conclusión
Basados en nuestra revisión y la evidencia presentada por Crédito Real no tuvimos conocimiento de situación alguna que nos haga
creer que la información contenida en el Informe Sostenible 2020 no haya sido obtenida de manera fiable, no esté presentada de
manera adecuada, tenga desviaciones u omisiones significativas, o que no haya sido preparada de acuerdo con los requerimientos
establecidos en los Estándares GRI.

Luis Miguel Vilatela Riba
Director General Valora México
Valora Sostenibilidad e Innovación S.A. de C.V.
Ciudad de México, a 27 de Julio de 2021
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CRÉDITO REAL, S.A.B. DE C.V., SOCIEDAD FINANCIERA DE OBJETO MÚLTIPLE, ENTIDAD NO REGULADA AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEPENDENT

auditors’ report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Crédito Real, S.A.B. de C.V.,
Sociedad Financiera de Objeto Múltiple, Entidad No Regulada and Subsidiaries

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Crédito Real, S.A.B. de C.V., Sociedad Financiera
de Objeto Múltiple, Entidad No Regulada and Subsidiaries, (the “Entity”), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the consolidated statements of income, the consolidated statements
of changes in stockholders’ equity and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Other Matter
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated into English for the convenience of readers.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined that the matters described below are the key audit matters, which
should be communicated in our report.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting criteria established by the National Banking and Securities Commission (the “Commission”),
through the “General Provisions applicable to public bonded warehouses, exchange houses, credit unions and regulated
multiple purpose financial institutions” (the “Accounting Criteria”).

Valuation of Derivative Financial Instruments (See Notes 3 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements)
The Entity enters into transactions with derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes, maintains Interest Rate
Swaps, Currency Swaps and options. These transactions are performed on an over-the-counter market (“OTC”) basis.
The Entity’s counterparties are primarily Mexican and international banking institutions with financial guarantee agreements. The valuation of derivative financial instruments is considered to be a key area of our audit approach mainly due
to the significance of the carrying amounts (fair value) of derivative financial instruments and because management
utilizes its judgment to determine fair value and the key assumptions used for this purpose, such as exchange rates,
rate curves, volatilities, etc., as these instruments are traded on an OTC basis.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Independent Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial
Consolidated Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) and with the
Ethics Code issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants A.C. (“IMCP Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and IMCP Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit procedures selected for this significant item were as follows:
–	Test the design and implementation of the key controls used to identify, measure and record the Entity’s derivative
financial instruments.
–	Involve Deloitte’s internal expert valuation specialists to independently determine the fair value of a sample of
derivative financial instruments, while also considering market data, which we matched with the values determined
by management.
–	As of December 31, 2020, validate the appropriate presentation and disclosure of these instruments in the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
Due to its rapid global expansion and serious health impacts, on March 11, 2020 it was declared a “Global Pandemic”
by the World Health Organization (“WHO”) the new infectious disease caused by SARS-CoV-2 coronavirus (“COVID-19”).
In response to this situation, at the governmental, business and individual levels, different containment measures have
been stablished in order to stop the spread of this virus. These measures, coupled with the uncertainty regarding the
development and duration of the Global Pandemic, have had impacts on the economic environment of the country,
creating a contraction in Gross Domestic Product by 2020 of approximately 8.5%. In Note 2 it is described the different
measures taken to control and minimize the effects of the Pandemic in the Entity. Our opinion remains unchanged
on this matter.

The results of our audit procedures were reasonable.
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Allowance for loan losses (See Notes 3 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements)
The Entity creates an allowance for loan risks for its credit portfolio based on the portfolio rating rules detailed in the
Provisions issued by the Commission, which establish methodologies for the evaluation and creation of reserves by
credit type. When rating its credit portfolio, the Entity considers the Probability of Default, the Severity of the Loss and
Exposure at Default. It also rates its credit portfolio based on different groups and by establishing different variables to
estimate the probability of default, as follows: i) consumer loans: the possibility of non-payment, potential losses and
credit risk; ii) commercial loans: evaluation of the debtor’s ability to settle the loan (country risk, financial risk, industry
risk and payment history), as well as the respective credit enhancements.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the Accounting Criteria, and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Entity´s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters, related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The above has been classified as a key audit matter due to the significance of the carrying amount of the loan portfolio
and the related allowance for loan losses, and because the determination process requires the consideration of different
data inputs, as described in the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, the completeness and accuracy of the information
used for this purpose is fundamental.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor´s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter included:
– 	We tested the design and implementation of the relevant controls with a focus on the review-type controls, addressing the classification of the commercial loan portfolio into different groups, as well as consumer loans.
– 	We reviewed the variables for the estimate of the probability of default for each type of loan.
– 	We tested the design and implementation of the determination of the credit rating and/or score, which are determined based on the quantitative factors related to the financial information of the borrower, credit bureau information and qualitative factors related to their environment, behavior and performance.
– 	We tested a sample of loans as of August 31 and December 31, 2020, assessing the reasonableness of the criteria
and considerations used for the determination of the estimate based on an independent calculation procedure,
compared the results against those recorded by the Entity with the aim of assessing any indication of error or

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

management bias, and concluded that the results were within reasonable ranges.

–	Identify and asses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or override of internal control.
–	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s
internal control.
–	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by Management.
–	Conclude on the appropriateness of Management´s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors´ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity
to cease to continue as a going concern.

The results of our audit procedures were reasonable.
Other Information Included in the Document Containing the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information will include the consolidated financial
information which will be included in the Annual Report that the Entity is required to prepare in accordance with Article
33, section I, subsection b) of Title Four, First Chapter of the General Provisions Applicable to Issuers and Other Stock
Market Participants in Mexico (the “Annual Report”) and the instructions accompanying such provisions (the “Provisions
applicable to Issuers”). The Annual Report is expected to be available after the date of this audit report.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements will not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance thereon.
In relation to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility will be to read the Annual Report,
when it is available, and when we do so, to consider whether the other information contained therein is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or appears to contain a
material misstatement. When we read the Annual Report, we will issue the representations on the reading of the annual
report, as required in Article 33, section I, subsection b) number 1.2 of the Provisions applicable to Issuers.
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–	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
presentation in accordance with the accounting criteria established by the Commission.
–	We obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Entity to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Entity regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance of the Entity with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance of the Entity, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Galaz, Yamazaki, Ruiz Urquiza, S.C.
Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
C.P.C. KAREN JAZMÍN PÉREZ OLVERA

Local Registration in the General
Administration of Audit Tax No. 18739
Mexico City, Mexico
April 22, 2021
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CRÉDITO REAL, S.A.B. DE C.V., SOCIEDAD FINANCIERA DE OBJETO MÚLTIPLE, ENTIDAD NO REGULADA AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED

balance sheets
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020, 2019 AND 2018
(IN THOUSANDS OF MEXICAN PESOS)

ASSETS		
2020		
2019		
2018
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investment in securities:
Trading securities
					

1,097,422

$

1,180,867

$

Derivatives:
Trading purposes
Hedging purposes		

1,964,453		
1,964,453		

940,865
940,865

Bank loans:
Short-term loans
Long-term loans		
					
Derivatives:
Hedging purposes		
						

–		 1,028,013
–		 1,028,013

Performing loan portfolio:
Commercial loans:
		 Commercial or business activity

34,356,239		 34,619,967		26,090,647

Consumer loans		
				 Total performing loan portfolio

11,564,607		 11,705,735		 9,610,914
45,920,846		 46,325,702		35,701,561

Non-performing loan portfolio:
Commercial loans:
		 Commercial or business activity

1,049,868		

343,817		

307,551

Consumer loans
				 Total non-performing loan portfolio		

539,216		
1,589,084		

288,901		
632,718		

310,004
617,555

				

Notes payable (Securitized Certificates)
$
Senior notes payable 		
						

575,719

1,091,747		 1,294,358		
1,091,747		 1,294,358		

Other accounts payable
Income taxes payable		
Employee profit sharing payabler
Accrued liabilities and other accounts payable		
						
Deferred taxes, net		
		Total liabilities

Less – Allowance for loan losses

(2,031,581)		 (1,390,046)		 (1,067,923)

				 Loan portfolio, net		

45,478,349		 45,568,374		35,251,193

Other accounts receivable, net

9,379,308		 6,796,910		 5,378,802

Foreclosed assets, net

1,343,059		

10,774		

10,510

Property, furniture and fixtures, net

3,512,235		

625,326		

341,453

Long-term investment in shares

1,244,288		 1,273,557		 1,193,412

Other assets, net			
Deferred charges, advance payments and intangibles		
4,901,695		 4,590,582		 4,793,722
Other short and long-term assets		
304,314		
250,944		
48,771
			
					
5,206,009		 4,841,526		 4,842,493
TOTAL ASSETS

$

70,316,870

$

61,591,692

$

760,951
$
1,260,978
$
1,463,518
27,705,871		 24,636,734		17,018,849
28,466,822		 25,897,712		18,482,367
13,780,347		 7,597,612		 7,359,690
7,578,949		 8,015,873		 4,804,689
21,359,296		 15,613,485		12,164,379
619,731		
619,731		

765,329		
765,329		

–
–

310,808		
13,054		
1,691,226		
2,015,088		

313,630		
16,863		
513,740		
844,233		

263,951
18,290
439,074
721,315

1,787,417		 2,407,056		 2,258,849
54,248,354		 45,527,815		33,626,910

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

47,509,930		 46,958,420		36,319,116

Loan portfolio

LIABILITIES		
2020		
2019		
2018

Paid in capital:
Capital stock		
Share subscription premium		
Perpetual bond
						
Earned capital:
Legal reserve		
Retained earnings		
Result from valuation of cash flow hedges, net 		
Cumulative translation adjustment
Re-measurements of employee defined benefits		
Net income attributable to controlling interest
Non-controlling interest		
						

132,030		
132,030		 132,030
9,288,946		 7,664,422		 6,561,118
(1,054,032)		
(708,201)		
128,622
69,860		
5,489		
(30,074)
(13,087)		
(18,174)		
5,611
756,355		 1,980,109		 1,955,358
1,032,251		
949,098		 908,524
10,212,323		 10,004,773		 9,661,189

		 Total stockholders’ equity

16,068,516		 16,063,877		15,935,550

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

49,562,460
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$

660,154		
660,154		 660,154
989,354		 1,192,265		 1,407,522
4,206,685		 4,206,685		 4,206,685
5,856,193		 6,059,104		 6,274,361

70,316,870

$

61,591,692

$

49,562,460
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CONSOLIDATED

balance sheets
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020, 2019 AND 2018
(IN THOUSANDS OF MEXICAN PESOS)

MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS (NOTE 23)		
2020		
2019		

2018

Credit commitments

$

335,248

$

227,878

$

354,728

Uncollected interest earned on
non-performing portfolio

$

231,097

$

151,125

$

366,701

Unused credit lines

$

121,828

$

131,904

$

156,023

Other control accounts

$

3,724,270

$

–

$

–

“The historical balance of the share capital as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 is $ 660,154, for each year. The effect of indexing recognized in share capital as of December 31, 2007 is $ 2,916.”
“These consolidated balance sheets were prepared in accordance with the accounting criteria for Credit Institutions issued by the National Banking and Securities Commission based on the provisions of Articles 99, 101 and 102 of the Credit Institutions Law, of general
and obligatory observance, applied in a consistent manner, reflecting the operations carried out by the Entity through the above-mentioned dates, which were carried out and valued in accordance with sound practices and the applicable provisions.”
“These consolidated balance sheets were approved under the responsibility of the executives who subscribe them. The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020 is pending approval by the Board of Directors. The consolidated balance sheets as of December
31, 2019 and 2018 were approved by the Board of Directors.”
“These consolidated financial statements may be consulted on the page http://www.creal.mx.”

ING. ÁNGEL ROMANOS BERRONDO

LIC. CARLOS ENRIQUE OCHOA VALDÉS

GENERAL DIRECTOR

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR AND FINANCE DIRECTOR

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CRÉDITO REAL, S.A.B. DE C.V., SOCIEDAD FINANCIERA DE OBJETO MÚLTIPLE, ENTIDAD NO REGULADA AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED

statements of income
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 2020, 2019 AND 2018
(IN THOUSANDS OF MEXICAN PESOS)

				 		
2020		
2019		
2018

				 		
2020		
2019		
2018

Interest income
$
Interest expense		
		Financial margin

10,453,728
$
11,932,952
$ 10,287,586
(4,915,082)		 (4,671,080)		 (3,207,389)
5,538,646		 7,261,872		 7,080,197

Current income taxes		
Deferred income taxes		

(707,578)		
619,639		

(587,737)		
(148,207)		

(355,305)
(295,295)

						

(87,939)		

(735,944)		

(650,600)

Allowance for loan losses		
		 Financial margin after provision for loan losses		

(2,112,646)		 (1,306,626)		 (1,540,335)
3,426,000		 5,955,246		 5,539,862

		Net income		

804,735		 2,100,584		 2,012,917

Commissions and fees income		
Commissions and fees paid
Intermediation result
Other operating income		
Administrative and marketing expenses		
		Operating result		

137,274		
515,700		 564,138
(247,347)		
(373,447)		 (255,989)
(79,125)		
156,248		
(20,822)
1,097,303		
126,597		 164,742
(3,539,169)		 (3,607,017)		 (3,483,129)
794,936		 2,773,327		 2,508,802

Non-controlling interest		

(48,380)		

97,738		
63,201		 154,715
892,674		 2,836,528		 2,663,517

Equity in income of associates
		 Income before income taxes

120,475		

57,559

		 Net income attributable to controlling interest

$

756,355

$

1,980,109

$

1,955,358

		 Earnings per share

$

2.03

$

5.04

$

4.99

Weighted average shares outstanding

369,208,913		 392,219,424		392,219,424

“These consolidated statements of income were prepared in accordance with the accounting criteria for Credit Institutions, issued by the National Banking and Securities Commission based on the provisions of Articles 99, 101 and 102 of the Credit Institutions Law, of
general and obligatory observance, applied in a consistent manner, reflecting the operations carried out by the Entity through the aforementioned dates, which were carried out and valued in accordance with sound practices and applicable provisions.”
“These consolidated statements of income were approved under the responsibility of the executives who subscribe them. The consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2020 is pending approval by the Board of Directors. The consolidated
statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were approved by the Board of Directors.”
“These consolidated financial statements may be consulted on the page http://www.creal.mx.”

ING. ÁNGEL ROMANOS BERRONDO

LIC. CARLOS ENRIQUE OCHOA VALDÉS

GENERAL DIRECTOR

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR AND FINANCE DIRECTOR

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CRÉDITO REAL, S.A.B. DE C.V., SOCIEDAD FINANCIERA DE OBJETO MÚLTIPLE, ENTIDAD NO REGULADA AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED

statements of changes in stockholders’ equity
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 2020, 2019 AND 2018
(IN THOUSANDS OF MEXICAN PESOS)

PAID IN CAPITAL

EARNED CAPITAL

						
									
NET INCOME
		
SHARE				
RESULTS FROM
CUMULATIVE
RE-MEASUREMENTS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO		
		
SUBSCRIPTION
PERPETUAL
LEGAL
RETAINED
VALUATION OF CASH
TRANSLATION
OF EMPLOYEE
CONTROLLING
NON-CONTROLLING
CAPITAL STOCK
PREMIUM
BOND
RESERVE
EARNINGS
FLOW HEDGES, NET
EFFECT
DEFINED BENEFITS
INTEREST
INTEREST

Balances as of December 31, 2017

$

660,154

$

1,462,618

$

4,206,685

$

132,030

$ 5,442,351

$

359,727

$

93,665

$

1,087

$

1,661,144

$

748,890

TOTAL
STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY

$ 14,768,351

Changes arising from stockholders’ decisions		 Transfer of prior year results 		
–		
–		
–		
–		 1,661,144		
–		
–		
–		 (1,661,144)		
–		
–
		
Dividend payments		 –		 –		–		–		
(193,436)		 –		 –		–		–		–		
(193,436)
		
Sale of own shares		 –		
(55,096)		–		–		
(91,528)		 –		 –		–		–		–		
(146,624)
		
Dividends of subordinate obligation payments		 –		 –		–		–		
(252,889)		 –		 –		–		–		–		
(252,889)
				

Total entries approved by stockholders		

–		

(55,096)		

–		

–		

1,123,291		

–		

–		

–		

(1,661,144)		

–		

(592,949)

Changes affecting comprehensive income		 Result from consolidation of minority interest companies		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
121,558		
121,558
		 Result from valuation of cash flow hedging instruments		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
(231,105)		
–		
–		
–		
–		
(231,105)
		
Cumulative translation effect		 –		 –		–		–		–		 –		
(123,739)		–		–		
(19,483)		
(143,222)
		
Re-measurements of employee defined benefits		 –		 –		–		–		
(4,524)		 –		 –		
4,524		–		–		–
		
Net income		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		 1,955,358		
57,559		 2,012,917
				 Total comprehensive income		
Balances as of December 31, 2018		

–		
660,154		

–		
1,407,522		

–		
4,206,685		

–		
132,030		

(4,524)		
6,561,118		

(231,105)		

(123,739)		

4,524		

1,955,358		

159,634		

1,760,148

128,622		

(30,073)		

5,611		

1,955,358		

908,523		 15,935,550

Changes arising from stockholders’ decisions		
Transfer of prior year results		 –		 –		–		–		
1,955,358		 –		 –		–		
(1,955,358)		–		–
		
Dividend payments		 –		 –		–		–		
(265,768)		 –		 –		–		–		–		
(265,768)
		 Purchase / Sale of own shares		
–		
(215,257)		
–		
–		
81,318		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
(133,939)
		
Dividends of subordinate obligations payment		 –		 –		–		–		
(659,966)		 –		 –		–		–		–		
(659,966)
		
Others		 –		 –		–		–		
(1,982)		 –		 –		–		–		–		
(1,982)
				

Total entries approved by stockholders		

–		

–		

–		
–		
–		
–		
–		

–		
–		
–		
–		
–		

–		
–		
–		
(5,656)		
–		

–		
(836,823)		
–		
–		
–		

–		
–		
35,562		
–		
–		

–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
(23,785)		
–		
–		 1,980,109		

(80,005)		
(80,005)
–		
(836,823)
105		
35,667
–		
(29,441)
120,475		 2,100,584

Total comprehensive income		
–		
–		
–		
											
Balances as of December 31, 2019
$
660,154 $ 1,192,265
$ 4,206,685
$

–		

(5,656)		

(836,823)		

35,562		

(23,785)		 1,980,109		

40,575		 1,189,982

Changes affecting comprehensive income		 Result from consolidation of minority interest companies		
		 Result from valuation of cash flow hedging instruments		
		
Cumulative translation effect		
		 Re-measurements of employee defined benefits		
		
Net income		

–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		

(215,257)		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		

132,030

110

1,108,960		

$ 7,664,422

$

–		

(708,201)

$

–		

5,489

$

–		

(18,174)

$

(1,955,358)		

1,980,109

$

–		

949,098

(1,061,655)

$ 16,063,877
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CRÉDITO REAL, S.A.B. DE C.V., SOCIEDAD FINANCIERA DE OBJETO MÚLTIPLE, ENTIDAD NO REGULADA AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED

statements of changes in stockholders’ equity
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 2020, 2019 AND 2018
(IN THOUSANDS OF MEXICAN PESOS)

PAID IN CAPITAL

EARNED CAPITAL

						
									
NET INCOME
		
SHARE				
RESULTS FROM
CUMULATIVE
RE-MEASUREMENTS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO		
		
SUBSCRIPTION
PERPETUAL
LEGAL
RETAINED
VALUATION OF CASH
TRANSLATION
OF EMPLOYEE
CONTROLLING
NON-CONTROLLING
CAPITAL STOCK
PREMIUM
BOND
RESERVE
EARNINGS
FLOW HEDGES, NET
EFFECT
DEFINED BENEFITS
INTEREST
INTEREST

Balances as of December 31, 2019

$

660,154

$

1,192,265

$

4,206,685

$

132,030

$ 7,664,422

$

(708,201)

$

5,489

$

(18,174)

$

1,980,109

$

949,098

TOTAL
STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY

$ 16,063,877

Changes arising from stockholders’ decisions		 Transfer of prior year results		
–		
–		
–		
–		 1,980,109		
–		
–		
–		 (1,980,109)		
–		
–
		 Purchase / Sale of own shares		
–		
(202,911)		
–		
–		
87,573		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
(115,338)
		
Dividends of subordinate obligations payment		 –		 –		–		–		
(376,162)		 –		 –		–		–		–		
(376,162)
				

Total entries approved by stockholders		

–		

(202,911)		

–		

–		

1,691,520		

–		

–		

–		

(1,980,109)		

–		

(491,500)

Changes affecting comprehensive income		 Result from consolidation of minority interest companies		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
34,773		
34,773
		 Result from valuation of cash flow hedging instruments		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
(345,831)		
–		
–		
–		
–		
(345,831)
		
Cumulative translation effect		 –		 –		–		–		–		 –		
64,371		–		–		–		
64,371
		 Re-measurements of employee defined benefits		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
5,087		
–		
–		
5,087
		
Net income		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		
–		 756,355		
48,380		 804,735
		
Other equity movements		 –		 –		–		–		
(66,996)		 –		 –		–		–		–		
(66,996)
				Total comprehensive income		
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

$

–		
660,154

$

–		
989,354

$

–		
4,206,685

$

–		
132,030

(66,996)		

$ 9,288,946

$

(345,831)		
(1,054,032)

$

64,371		
69,860

$

5,087		
(13,087)

$

756,355		
756,355

$

83,153		
1,032,251

496,139

$ 16,068,516

“These consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity were prepared in accordance with the accounting criteria for Credit Institutions, issued by the National Banking and Securities Commission based on the provisions of Articles 99, 101 and 102 of the
Credit Institutions Law, of general and obligatory observance, applied in a consistent manner, reflecting the operations carried out by the Entity through the above-mentioned dates, which were carried out and valued with adherence to sound practices and applicable
provisions.”
“These consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity were approved under the responsibility of the executives who subscribe them. The consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ equity for the year ended December 31, 2020 is pending
approval by the Board of Directors. The consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were approved by the Board of Directors”.
“These consolidated financial statements may be consulted on the page http://www.creal.mx.”
ING. ÁNGEL ROMANOS BERRONDO

LIC. CARLOS ENRIQUE OCHOA VALDÉS

GENERAL DIRECTOR

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR AND FINANCE DIRECTOR

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CRÉDITO REAL, S.A.B. DE C.V., SOCIEDAD FINANCIERA DE OBJETO MÚLTIPLE, ENTIDAD NO REGULADA AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED

statements of cash flows
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2020, 2019 AND 2018
(IN THOUSANDS OF MEXICAN PESOS)

				 		
2020		
2019		
2018

				 		
2020		
2019		
2018

Net income
$
804,735
$
2,100,584
$
2,012,917
Adjustments for items that do not result in cash flows:			
		 Depreciation of furniture and fixtures		
599,252		
47,395		
47,355
		 Amortization of intangibles assets		
19,266		
19,838		
36,579
		Provisions		
68,639		
14,778		
40,689
		 Deferred income taxes		
(619,639)		
672,910		
650,600
		 Equity in income of associates		
(97,738)		
(63,201)		 (154,715)

Investing activities
Acquisitions of property and equipment		
Dividends received in cash		
(Increase) decrease in investments in shares		

(762,532)		
–		
(168,138)		

(47,760)		
94,667		
(215,258)		

(46,638)
113,895
179,192

			 Net cash flows from investing activities		

(930,670)		

(168,351)		

246,449

Financing activities:
Cash flow generated from hedging instruments 		
Dividends paid in cash		
Sell (Repurchase) of own shares		
Subordinated obligations		
Dividends paid on subordinated obligations		

(2,093)		
–		
214,580		
5,087		
(374,069)		

–		
(265,768)		
(110,231)		
–		
(659,966)		

–
(193,436)
(91,528)
–
(252,889)

			 Net cash flows from financing activities		

(156,495)		 (1,035,965)		

			 Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents		

(147,816)		

						

774,515		 2,792,304		 2,633,425

Operating activities			
Change in investment in securities		
202,611		 (353,493)		 (411,097)
Change in derivatives (asset)		
(2,455,882)		
956,520		
524,143
Change in loan portfolio (net)		
23,028		(10,317,182)		 (7,303,695)
Change in other accounts receivables (net)
(2,582,398)		 (1,418,107)		 (749,129)
Change in foreclosed assets (net)		
(1,332,285)		
(263)		
(7,241)
Change in other assets		
(383,748)		
(18,871)		 (420,579)
Change in senior notes and notes payable		
2,569,110		 7,415,345		 3,938,493
Change in bank loans
5,745,811		 3,449,106		 3,123,747
Acquisitions of property and equipment		
(2,723,630)		
–		
–
Change in other accounts payable		
1,102,217		 (731,456)		 (1,128,344)
			 Net cash flows from operating activities		

Effect of change in the value of cash and equivalents		
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

164,834		 (1,018,401)		 (2,433,702)

$

569,586		

64,371		

35,562		

1,180,867		

575,719		

1,097,422

$

1,180,867

$

(537,853)
(91,681)
(143,222)
810,622
575,719

“These consolidated statements of cash flows were prepared in accordance with the Accounting Criteria for Credit Institutions, issued by the National Banking and Securities Commission based on the provisions of Articles 99, 101 and 102 of the Credit Institutions
Law, of general and obligatory observance, applied in a consistent manner, reflecting the operations carried out by the Entity through the above-mentioned dates, which were carried out and valued in accordance with sound practices and the applicable provisions.”
“These consolidated statements of cash flows were approved under the responsibility of the executives who subscribe them. The consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2020 is pending approval by the Board of Directors. The
consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were approved by the Board of Directors.”
“These consolidated financial statements may be consulted on the page http://www.creal.mx.”
ING. ÁNGEL ROMANOS BERRONDO

LIC. CARLOS ENRIQUE OCHOA VALDÉS

GENERAL DIRECTOR

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR AND FINANCE DIRECTOR

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CRÉDITO REAL, S.A.B. DE C.V., SOCIEDAD FINANCIERA DE OBJETO MÚLTIPLE, ENTIDAD NO REGULADA AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES

to consolidated financial statements

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 2020, 2019 AND 2018
(IN THOUSANDS OF MEXICAN PESOS)

1. ACTIVITIES, REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT AND SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The payroll loans are settled through semimonthly installments which are made by the borrowers’ employers, which
consist of government agencies and other entities, in accordance with loan agreements signed by the borrower.
Based on such loan agreements, a borrower authorizes the employer to use amounts deducted from the payroll
for the fixed installment payments of the loan during its effective term. The risk of non-performance decreases
substantially over the term of the typical loan. The maximum limit established by government agencies in terms
of the percentage of a worker’s net salary that can be applied to settle a loan is 30%. The Entity offers certain
customers the option of renewing their loans before they expire. However, the Entity does not preauthorize loans
under any circumstances.

Crédito Real, S.A.B. de C.V., Sociedad Financiera de Objeto Múltiple, Entidad No Regulada (formerly Crédito Real,
S.A.B. de C.V., Sociedad Financiera de Objeto Múltiple, Entidad Regulada) and subsidiaries, (the “Entity” or “Crédito
Real”), is a non- banking institution in Mexico, focused on consumer lending which has diversified business platform integrated mainly by five business lines: (i) payroll lending, (ii) consumer loans, (iii) small and medium business
loans, (iv) group loans, and (v) used car loans. Loans paid via the payroll are offered to unionized government employees through a national network of 15 distributors with which credit granting agreements have been executed.
Crédito Real has executed exclusive agreements with three of the main distributors and also holds a significant
amount of their common stock. The origination of consumer loans ceased as of July 2017, and only internal collection activities for the performing portfolio are being carried out. Loans are granted to small and medium businesses
to cover the working capital requirements and investment activities of micro, small and medium enterprises; these
resources are provided through a specialized broker or under the Entity’s own trademark. Group loans are mainly
offered to groups of women with a productive activity by using the joint credit methodology; these loans are granted
by two associate entities with a network of 1,561 promoters and 203 branches. Used car loans are granted to
acquire preowned automobiles through agreements with 5 car dealers specialized in the purchase-sale of automobiles and a subsidiary with a network of 20 branches that offers financing by receiving automobiles and commercial
vehicles as collateral; and finally through two entities which focus mainly on the Hispanic-American market with
limited credit history in the United States of America (“EUA”): CR USA Finance (formerly AFS Acceptance), which has
around of 1,338 distributors in 26 US states. The Entity has presence in Costa Rica, Nicaragua and Panama with
the brand Instacredit, through a network of 65 branches and more than 362 promoters. Instacredit is a recognized
brand in Central America, with more than 19 years’ experience, and has a multiproduct platform offering loans in
the segments of personal loans, automobile loans, PYMES and mortgage-secured loans.

The relationships that have been established by the distributors, directly and through service providers such as
public relations agencies, with the entities and unions that they use or affiliate workers of the federal government
agencies and state agencies in different parts of the country, have been formalized through the execution of cooperation agreements, which enable the distributors to offer payroll loans to the affiliated workers of such unions and
establish that the government agencies and entities execute the instruction received from the borrowers for the
installments of principal and interest on the loans.
In accordance with the cooperation agreements, the government agencies and entities or unions process and grant
the “discount codes” so that such agencies or entities can pay the loans by payroll directly (on behalf of the borrowers).
Apart from making the payroll deductions and rendering payments directly to the collection trust in which the Entity
is the beneficiary, the employers compile periodic reports to the distributors regarding the payroll deductions made
on behalf of borrowers. The Distributors are responsible for coordinating with the different agencies and entities, so
that the respective computer systems are accurate, and the payments are issued on a timely fashion. The employers
do not intervene in any way in the negotiation, credit approval process or in the negotiations of the terms of the loan
contract executed by the distributors with the affiliated workers.

Payroll loans
The Entity purchases loans with payment via payroll from distributors which offer credit products to the unionized
workers of government agencies. These loans are also offered at times to pensioners or retired persons from the
public sector. These loans are granted by distributors with which the Entity operates, and are then acquired by the
Entity through financial factoring contracts in portfolio purchase transactions.

The Entity estimates that the cost of procurement and maintenance of the aforementioned cooperation agreements
ranges between 3% and 5% of the revenues generated by the payroll loan portfolio. Such cost is fully covered by the
distributors.
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Group loans
Group loans are originated through two specialized operators which have 1,561 promoters in a network comprising
203 branches. The promoters are familiar with the specific needs of micro-entrepreneurs and the self-employed.

The Entity’s business model enables both the Entity and its distributors to make the most of their respective competitive advantages. While the Entity concentrates on administrating the credit risk, minimizing financial costs and maintaining diversified financing sources, the Distributors concentrate on increasing the number of possible customers
through the execution of contracts with additional government agencies and entities or unions or renewing existing
contracts, and on promoting the Entity’s products among the affiliated workers of such agencies.

The aforementioned group credit loans refer to non-revolving consumer loan portfolio, with a weekly or half-monthly payment period, granted to groups of persons in which each member is held jointly and severally liable for
the total payment of the loan, although the classification of such loan is made individually for each member of
the group.

PYMES loans
The Entity has a partnership with Fondo H, S.A. de C.V. SOFOM, ENR (“Fondo H”), a company engaged in making short
and medium-term loans to small and medium businesses (PYMES) in Mexico. Its customer base includes businesses
from manufacturing, distribution and services sectors. Based on this partnership, financing is provided exclusively for
loans originated by Fondo H.

Financial factoring operations
The Entity is engaged on providing liquidity through discounted acquisitions of receivables to moral persons with
periods from 20 to 180 days, at the end of the financial year there are 13 clients who add up to 40 receivables within
an average period of 46 days.

Commercial Loans originated by CR-Arrendamiento
The Entity grants credits to natural and moral persons who have had a positive credit history within the entity for
working capital use, the credits are made with an average period of 24 months and with a rate of 21%, currently has
58 active clients.

Financial and operational leasing operations
The Entity is engaged on leasing all kinds of movable property for use or temporary enjoyment of the goods. It mainly
grants operative lease to natural and moral persons from different sectors. The transaction is formalized by means of
a contract where the period of 24, 36 or 48 months is formalized paying an income for the use or enjoyment of the
asset. The leasable goods are: transport equipment, machinery, computer equipment, furniture and constructions.

Used car loans
Used car loans in Mexico are originated through contracts with car companies which sell used cars. Currently 5
partnerships have been executed with distributors in more than 475 points of sale. Additionally, the Entity holds 51%
in a company which operates under the brand “Drive & Cash”, which is engaged in offering financing through the
warranty of automobiles and commercial vehicles. As of December 31, 2020, the distribution network of Drive & Cash
is composed of 20 branches and 506 agreements located in 32 States Nationwide.

Regulatory environment
Article 87-D of the General Law on Credit Organizations and Ancillary Activities (“LGOAAC”) establishes that multiple purpose financing companies that issue securities listed on the National Securities Registry pursuant to the
Securities Law must prepare consolidated financial statements according to the accounting criteria set forth in the
General Provisions applicable to public bonded warehouses, exchange houses, credit unions and regulated multiple
purpose financial institutions (the “Provisions”) established by the National Banking and Securities Commission (the
“Commission”).

The Entity has a majority participation in a credit operator for used cars doing business as “CR USA Finance”. Such
operator has a service platform which enables it to operate in 26 states throughout the US, and also operating agreements in place with more than 1,338 distributors in that country.
Consumer loans
On February 22, 2018, the Entity announced the acquisition of 70% of the share capital of Instacredit. The Entity
decided to invest in Instacredit to diversify and expand to the Central American market, focusing in the same type of
customer segment that serves in Mexico, the middle and low income segment of the population unattended by the
traditional banking system.

As the Entity is a not regulated multiple purpose financial institution, it is obligated to prepare its consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting criteria established by the Commission as set forth in the Provisions.
Significant events 2020 –
a)	January 27, 2020. Crédito Real announced the cancellation of 3,000,000 ordinary, nominative, single series,
Class II shares, representing the variable portion of the Company’s capital stock. The Shares represent 0.8% of
the Entity’s capital stock and were acquired through Crédito Real’s stock buyback program.

At the end of 2020, Instacredit contributed 24.4 % of the Entity’s consolidated income. It also represented 11.3% of
the total credit portfolio. Instacredit has a recognized brand with a multiproduct platform, with 19 years of experience
and 65 branches located in Costa Rica, Nicaragua and Panama with a customer base of 172,628. Instacredit offers
credit services through the following products: personal loans, car loans, small and medium business loans, and
mortgage-secured loans.
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b)	During the 2Q 2020 Crédito Real began to consolidate CReal Arrendamiento due to the control gained. This
transaction is considered as a business combination within the scope of NIF B-7”Business Acquisition”, according
to which a business acquisition is considered to be a transaction through which the entity acquires, directly or
indirectly, the net assets of one or more businesses and thus gains control.
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Results recognized for the period from January 1 to March 31, 2020 (unaudited):
				

AMOUNT

Statement of Income

	The Acquisition of CReal Arrendamiento shares by the Entity is considered a combination of businesses within the
scope of NIF B-7, considering that immediately prior to the purchase of the shares these entities were not under
common control.

Total revenues

	As a result of the foregoing, in relation to the analysis carried out by the Entity´s management, the following assets
and liabilities were identified at fair value:
					

15,540

Financial margin after allowance for loan losses		

78,005

Operating expenses		

(57,762)

$

5,929
26,172

30,000

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets and liabilities

Accounting effects from the acquisition of CReal Arrendamiento:

		 assumed as of March 31, 2020 (unaudited):

	During the period from the date of its acquisition until March 31, 2020, CReal Arrendamiento has contributed
with interest income of $ 134,046 and a net profit of $ 26,172, consolidated amounts that are reported in the
statement of income. Combined interest income and combined net income for 1Q-2020 (Crédito Real consolidated
and CReal Arrendamiento), estimated effect to the acquisition if they had been made as of January 1, 2020, are
$ 303,169 and $ (11,017) respectively.

Current assets:
		 Cash and cash equivalents

(71,581)

Allowance for loan losses		

		 Net income
$

134,046

Interest expenses		

Other operating income		

AMOUNT

Balance Sheet
Transaction consideration paid

$

$

30,805

		 Other accounts receivable		

1,576

		 Loan portfolio 		

2,899,253

		 Property furniture and fixtures		

1,489,077

		 Other assets		

337,517

Total assets		

4,758,228

Short term liabilities		

(4,695,828)

Long term liabilities		

(4,695,828)

Non controlling interest		

(31,850)

$

Excess of net assets acquired over the consideration paid

$

d)	April 27, 2020. Crédito Real launched a Medium-Term Note Program (“MTN Program”) for up to US$1.5 billion. The
MTN Program will provide Crédito Real with access to a wide array of debt securities (notes) in various international
markets, currencies and maturities. BNP Paribas and SMBC Nikko acted as arrangers for the MTN Program.

–

		 Total liabilities		

Net assets acquired

c)	April 24, 2020. Crédito Real signed a credit line for US$50,000,000 with a one-year term, with BNP Paribas.

e)	May 4, 2020. Crédito Real obtained Ps.625 million from a credit line with the Japanese bank Sumitomo Mitsui
Banking Corporation (SMBC).

30,550

f)	May 29, 2020. Crédito Real announced the renewal of two credit lines for Ps.2,200 million with two of the largest
banks in Mexico (Ps.1,500 million with Citibanamex and Ps.700 million with BBVA).

(550)
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g)	May 29, 2020. Crédito Real obtains Ps.800 million from a credit line with Banco Santander México, after such
institution authorized a new credit line, with a 4-year term.
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d)	On October 2, 2019, the Entity announced the issuance of senior bonds with maturity in 2027, with the option of
total or partial settlement as of October 1, 2022, for the amount of €350,000,000. These bonds pay interest at the
annual rate of 5% and were rated as “BB +” worldwide by Fitch Ratings and Standard and Poor’s.

h)	June 22, 2020. Japan Credit Rating Agency (“JCR”) assigns “BBB-” credit rating on global scale with a “Stable”
outlook to Crédito Real´s MTM Program. Additionally, JCR affirmed the Entity’s “BBB-” long-term issuer rating with
a “Stable” outlook.

e)	On October 2019, the Entity carried out the third issuance of a portfolio securitization program by the amount of
MXP $750,000,000, which accrues interest at the TIIE rate + 215 points over a period of five years, according to
the securitization program approved by the Commission through document No. 153/12238/2019.

i)	June 25, 2020. Crédito Real is included in the “S&P/BMV Total Mexico ESG Index”, the new ESG index launched
by S&P Dow Jones Indices (“S&P DJI”) and the Mexican Stock Exchange (“BMV”), which seeks to raise awareness
among investors regarding the most representative shares of the BMV which meet ESG (“Environmental, Social,
and Governance”) investment objectives, in order to encourage sustainability without reducing profitability.

f)	On December 10, 2019, the Entity contracted a credit line of US$50 million for a five-year period with BID Invest,
a member of the Inter-American Development Bank group (BID), in line with the Entity’s financing strategy, which
focuses on obtaining alternative funding sources with enhanced conditions.

j)	July 23, 2020. Crédito Real informs the beginning of an alliance with Grupo Famsa, S.A.B. de C.V. (“Grupo Famsa”)
in order to consolidate Credito Real’s presence in the north of Mexico. This alliance will strongly contribute to
the following: i) sum the remarkable expertise and financial strength of Crédito Real with the knowledge and
commercial presence of Grupo Famsa on the aforementioned products (payroll lending and consumer loans)
and their respective markets; and, ii) contribute with over $3,500 million pesos annually of expected origination
from those products.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Explanation for translation into English - The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated
from Spanish into English for use outside of Mexico. These consolidated financial statements are presented under the
accounting rules issued by the Commission. Certain accounting practices applied by the Entity that are in conformity
with the accounting rules issued by the Commission may not conform with accounting principles generally accepted
in the country of use.

k)	September 30, 2020. Crédito Real signed a new credit line for US$50’000,000 for a 15-month term with Barclays.

Monetary unit of the consolidated financial statements - The consolidated financial statements and notes as of
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 and for the years then ended include balances and transactions denominated in
Mexican pesos of different purchasing power. Cumulative inflation rates over the three-year periods ended December
31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, were 11.03%, 15.03% and 15.71% in each period. Accordingly, the economic environment
is not inflationary in either such period and no inflationary effects were recognized in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. Inflation rates for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 were 3.22%, 2.76% and
4.92%, respectively.

l)	
Additionally, the Entity arranged a senior unsecured financing for US$25’000,000 for a 3-year term with
ResponsAbility, an investment management company focused on microfinance and small, and medium-sized enterprises financing.
Significant events 2019
a)	On January 20, 2019, Crédito Real acquired, through its repurchase fund, and approved the cancellation of
12,551,534 ordinary, nominative Single Series, Class II shares representing the Entity’s variable capital, which
comprise 3.2% of its common stock.

Going Concern - The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by Management under the assumption
that the Entity will continue as a going concern.

b)	On February 7, 2019, unsecured notes were issued in the amount of US$400 million and offered in the United
States, with maturity in 2026, with a 9.50% interest rate payable half-yearly, which may be prepaid starting from
the fourth year following the issuance date.

Disclosures and actions generated by the pandemic, COVID 19 effects
Derived from the health emergency generated by the COVID-19 virus pandemic decreed by the General Health Council
in March 2020, the Entity, directly or indirectly, implemented programmes to support those accredited from the Payroll
Discount, Personal, Autos and SMEs credit portfolio.

	Fitch Ratings and Standard & Poor’s issued a rating of “BB+”.

It should be noted that according to the release issued by the National Banking and Securities Commission (CNBV)
dated April 1, 2020, which refers to the special accounting criteria on a temporary basis applicable to Popular Financial
Companies, Cooperative Savings and Loan Companies, with respect to consumer, housing and commercial loans, and

c)	On August 5, 2019, a syndicated credit line was contracted with Credit Suisse for the amount of US$ 110 million
(one hundred and ten million US dollars), with maturity in three years.
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Credits in CR-USA. Aid programs were carried out, consisting of the deferment of a monthly payment, supporting
an average of 583 and 2,211 customers in SMEs and Used Cars respectively, during the period April to December.
The portfolio with relief programs in SMEs was 22.05% and in Used Cars it was 33.87% during the same period
mentioned above. This measure did not result in any changes to the accounting rule affecting those appropriations
in particular.

The Entity took action based on its business model. These measures emphasize that deferral of payments will have no
negative impact on accredited payments, as it will not generate additional costs or surcharges for any amount. These
programmes are described below with their respective financial impacts:

Personal Credits in Central America (Instacredit), the decision was made to implement the “Current Portfolio
Support” initiative, this initiative was structured in such a way that qualified current portfolio clients were not
affected in their credit history due to a temporary reduction in their income. This initiative corresponded to a freeze
of non-compliance carried out by the Entity that lasted from April to June 2020. Postponing for the time agreed
with the accredited the decrease of the account receivable by not receiving amortization and assuming on the part
of the entity the financial costs incurred.

Payroll discount awarded to active workers, retired employees and pensioners of the Mexican Institute of Social
Security (IMSS).
–	In the Payroll Discount line of business, the collection was constant and normal, through distributors. As regards
the IMSS Pensioners and Pensioners segment, IMSS and various financial institutions (including Distributors) generated a support program applicable in May, June and July 2020, consisting of the granting of non-financial cost
credits by the debtor, up to the amount of withholdings they received during the supporting period. Such credits
would be paid after the current credit has been settled. In this way, the beneficiaries of this program received
amounts equivalent to the withholdings they received during the supporting period.

The behavior of the overdue portfolio from March to December 2020 had the following effects in implementing this
program, as well as the Entity estimates the effect it would have without such relief programs.

–	As of December 2020, the impact of funding this program accounted for $29.0 million pesos as a financing cost.
Other impacts on the Payroll Discount business could be attributed to the COVID-19 crisis during these months,
such as the lower origination from market conditions, the effects on pricing by focusing on current customers
for renewals, and increased delinquency, the estimated amount of those impacts is around $455 million in lower
interest incomes.

				

The Auto Portfolio (Mexico) generated payment agreements with customers who had outstanding payments, consisting of making attempt payments equivalent to a depreciation. Recognizing attempt payments as a decrease in the
receivables account in terms of capital and recognizing within the financial margin what corresponds to the income.

FREEZING

NO FREEZING

March

4.7%

4.7%

June

1.3%

9.9%

September

4.1%

14.4%

December

5.1%

N/A

	A total of 6,528 customers participated in this initiative from April to December. December’s delinquency increased
to 5.1% this year, up from 4.8% in the same month last year. The estimated impact on revenue related to current
customers who qualified in the above program is $144.7 million pesos, the Entity also showed an increase in
punishments for the impact of Covid-19 estimated at $70 million pesos.

From April to December 2020, an average of 292 customers were registered in this program, representing an average
of 3.6% of the car portfolio in these 6 months. The delinquency of Autos in December this year is 1.0% than last year,
however, the main impact on Autos corresponds to the decrease in revenue of $20.7 million pesos considering the
period from April to December that represents 6.5% of the interest income of this portfolio.

	For the 2020 financial year, the Stockholders’ Meeting of the Entity has not decreed the payment of dividends, in
which case, the amounts of the amounts resulting from the accounting affectation, derived from the non-application of the special accounting criteria, would not be subtracted from the profits.

Credits granted to SMEs (Mexico). Relief programs were mainly granted in the Leasing business, where the service
segment, such as hospitality, has been severely impacted; in this way the Entity, through CReal Arrendamiento, granted some support measures to its customers, mainly reductions in the payment of rent and in specific cases, grace
periods. Deferring for the time agreed with the accredited the decrease of the receivables account by not receiving
amortization, this without reflecting affectation that could impair the rating by the established deferral.

Consolidation of financial statements – The consolidated financial statements include those of the Entity and those
of its subsidiaries, in which it has control as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 and for the years ended on
those dates. The balances and significant transactions between the consolidated entities have been eliminated. The
shareholding in its capital stock is shown below:

As of December 31, 2020, the financial impact of this program on that company was about $180 million in pesos of
decline in Other Operating Revenue.
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2020

2019

2018

Servicios Corporativos Chapultepec, S.A. de C.V.

99.99%

99.99%

99.99%

Directodo México, S.A.P.I. de C.V.

99.99%

99.99%

99.99%

CR–Fact, S.A.P.I. de C.V.

99.28%

51.00%

51.00%

Controladora CR México, S.A. de C.V.

99.99%

99.99%

99.97%

CRholdingint, S.A. de C.V.

99.99%

99.99%

99.94%

Crédito Real USA, Inc.

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

CR–Seg, Inc.

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Fideicomiso irrevocable de emisión,
administración y pago No. 3200

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Fideicomiso irrevocable de emisión,
administración y pago No.3670

–

–

100.00%

Fideicomiso irrevocable de emisión,
administración y pago No.4217

100.00%

100.00%

–
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I.	CAT 60, S.A.P.I. de C.V. (“CAT 60”). - As of December 22, 2020, Controller CR sells its entire participation in CAT 60
from which it obtained a profit reflected in the statement of income of $31,550, so it ceases to consolidate the
financial information.

SHAREHOLDING PERCENTAGE
SUBSIDIARIES

COMMITMENT

II.	Confianza Digital, S.A.P.I. de C.V., SOFOM, E.N.R. (“Credilikeme”) - Credilikeme became an associate of Controladora
CR on December 1, 2015 by virtue of Controladora CR’s shareholding of 35.06%. Credilikeme’s main activity is
financing by granting loans through a Plataforma Digital Gamificado (Digital Gaming Platform), which incorporates
gaming elements into its digital platform to generate stimulating experiences, as well as desirable credit behavior
and habits. The payment terms range from 2 to 6 months and the credit amounts from $2,800.
III.	CReal Arrendamiento, S.A. de C.V. (“CReal Arrendamiento”) - As of April 1, 2020, CReal Arrendamiento is a subsidiary of Controladora CR, which participates with a shareholding of 49.00%. Its main activity is financing by granting
operational leases.
Crédito Real USA, Inc. (“CR USA”) - As of June 1, 2015, CR USA is a subsidiary of Crédito Real. The main activity is
making investments in companies’ resident in the USA; it currently maintains the following investment:
I.	Crédito Real USA Finance, LLC (Crédito Real USA) (formerly AFS Acceptance, LLC) 	As of October 21, 2016, Crédito Real USA is a subsidiary of CR USA, which holds 99.28% of its equity.
	Crédito Real USA is a financial institution that focuses on offering loans to buy used cars in the US. The most
notable characteristics of CR USA Finance are: (1) its management team, who are also principal stockholders, have
broad experience in the used car market in the US, as well as specific market intelligence with regard to the US
Hispanic market; (2) operations in 29 states with a network of 1,637 used car dealerships; (3) sound knowledge
of the Hispanic market; and (4) a proven sophisticated process for handling collections, risk analysis and loan
origination. It currently holds an investment in Auto Funding Services, LLC.

Servicios Corporativos Chapultepec, S.A. de C.V. (“Servicios Corporativos”) –
The main activity of Servicios Corporativos is the provision of services. The majority of service revenues are derived
from contracts with Crédito Real.
Directodo México, S.A.P.I. de C.V. (“Directodo”) Directodo’s main activity is lending cash to employees of government entities with which Directodo has entered into
payroll discounting agreements, which are given in factoring arrangements with Crédito Real.

II. CR MPM, LLC (“CR MPM”)
	After the merger of Crédito Dallas, LLC with Crédito Real USA went into effect. CR MPM consolidates its financial
information with Crédito Real USA.

CR-Fact, S.A.P.I. de C.V. (“CR-Fact”).
CR-Fact’s main activity is providing financing through lending that is secured by cars and commercial vehicles.

III.	CREAL Houston, LLC
	Established on June 22, 2016, with the aim of operating a used car minority concessionaire business in the
metropolitan Houston area, 80% owned by Crédito Real USA. CREAL Houston, LLC was settled in 2019.

On December 1, 2020, through CR-Fact’s stockholders’ meeting, its share capital was increased to MXN $137,254,
through the same act of assembly Real Credit expressed its intention to participate in the increase in capital in the
amount of MXN $70,000 in this act increased its shareholding from 50.1% to 99.28%.

IV.	CR Fed, LLC
	Established on February 22, 2018, the company provides invoice discounting services to other companies, mainly
in the construction industry, for purposes of short-term liquidity and working capital. The company is 51% owned
by Crédito Real USA.

Controladora CR México, S.A. de C.V. (“Controladora CR”).
Controladora CR became a subsidiary of Crédito Real on November 6, 2015. The principal activity is to make investments in companies acquired in national territory; at the end of December 2019, it maintains the following
investments:
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V.	CR-FED, Leasing LLC
	Established on June 22, 2017, with the aim of providing equipment leasing services to other businesses. The
company is 51% owned by Crédito Real USA.
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Irrevocable issuance, management and payment Trust No. 3670
In November 2018, Trust No. 3670 was established for the portfolio securitization of the product “payroll discount” for
$615,000 with a capacity of 1.5 at a five-year term with repayments beginning in month 25. As of September 2019,
the Trust was settled.

VI. CR-FED ABL, LLC
	Established on November 15, 2018, with the aim of rendering loan services for asset returns to other businesses.
The company is 51% owned by Crédito Real USA.

Irrevocable issuance, administration and payment trust No. 4217
In October 2019, Trust No. 4217 was established corresponding to the securitization of the portfolio of the product
“payroll discount” for $ 750,000 with a capacity of 1.5 at a term of 5 years beginning the amortization in month 25.

VII. DC Reinsurance Company, LTD
	DC Reinsurance Company, LTD is registered to carry out reinsurance activities under US laws.

Conversion of financial statements of subsidiaries in foreign currency - In order to consolidate the financial statements
of foreign operations, they are modified in the recording currency to be presented under NIF. The financial statements
are converted to Mexican pesos based on the following methodologies:

VIII. CR-MPM, LLC
	CR-MPM, LLC was established on September 19, 2014 and began operations on February 1, 2015. The company
operates used-car concessions located in the metropolitan area of Dallas/Fort Worth in Texas. The company is 80%
owned by Crédito Real USA. The concessionaires of CR-MPM, LLC sell used vehicles and provide their custodians
with minority installation contracts in their purchases of such vehicles. These contracts are mainly with persons
who have a limited or problematic credit history. During 2018, the businesses changed to a used-car operation
only for retail sales.

The foreign operations whose recording and functional currency are the same convert their financial statements using
the following exchange rates: 1) closing for assets and liabilities and 2) historical for stockholders’ equity and 3) that
of the accrual date for revenues, costs and expenses. The effects of conversion are recorded in stockholders’ equity.
The recording and functional currencies of the foreign operations and the exchange rates used in the different conversion processes are as follows:

CRholdingint, S.A. de C.V. (“CRholdingint”) - CRholdingint as of November 6, 2015 is a subsidiary of Crédito Real, which
holds 99.99% of its equity. Its primary activity is to make investments in companies acquired abroad; at the end of
December 2020 it holds the following investments:

COMPANIES

I. Marevalley Corporation 	
CRholdingint holds 70.00% of the shares of Marevalley Corporation, which is the holding company of the entities
located in Costa Rica, Nicaragua and Panama operating under the brand “Instacredit”. Instacredit is a group of
financial institutions which collectively offer loans geared to medium and low income segments, whose credit
needs are poorly served by traditional banking institutions.

RECORDING CURRENCY

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

REPORTING CURRENCY

Crédito Real USA

US dollar

US dollar

Mexican peso

CR Seg

US dollar

US dollar

Mexican peso

Marevalley Corporation

US dollar

US dollar

Mexican peso

Crédito Real Honduras

Lempira

US dollar

Mexican peso

Comprehensive income and loss. This item reflects the modification of stockholders’ equity during the year for items
which are not capital contributions, reductions and distributions; it comprises the net gain (loss) for the year plus
other items that represent a gain or loss for the same period, which are presented directly in stockholders’ equity
without affecting the statement of income. As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, comprehensive income and
losses are comprised of the net result, the result of the valuation of cash flow hedge instruments and the actuarial
losses on defined benefit plans.

 s of December 31, 2020, it has 65 branches in the aforementioned three countries, deals with 153,259 customA
ers and has a total portfolio of more than $4,995.
II.	Crédito Real Honduras, S.A. de C.V. (“Crédito Real Honduras”) Crholdingint holds 99.99% of the shares of Crédito Real Honduras, is a company engaged in the provision of
financing through factoring and has a commercial partnership with “CA Capital”.

Classification of costs and expenses - These are presented in accordance with their function consistent with the
practice of the sector to which the Entity belongs.

Irrevocable issuance, management and payment Trust No. 3200
In November 2017, Trust No. 3200 was established for the portfolio securitization of the product “payroll discount” for
$800,000 with a capacity of 1.22 at a five-year term with repayments beginning in month 25.
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Results of operations - Is determined based on the financial margin adjusted for credit risks plus the commissions
and charges collected and other revenues from the operation, less commissions and charges paid, the result from
intermediation and administrative expenses. Even though it is not a requirement under NIF B-3, Statement of comprehensive income and loss, this caption is included in the statements of income presented because the Entity believes
it is a relevant data for users of its financial information.
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As a result of the health emergency due to force majeure to the disease epidemic generated by the COVID-19
virus decreed by the General Health Council last March 2020, the Entity did not implement any program to support
those accredited, in accordance with the Special Accounting Criteria issued by the Commission by trade number
P-285/2020 dated 26 March 2020.
Accounting changes issued by the CINIF –
As of January 1, 2020, the CINIF issued the following NIF:

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies of the Entity are in accordance with the accounting criteria prescribed by the
Commission, which are set forth in the Provisions, which require management to make certain estimates and use
certain assumptions to determine the valuation of certain items and disclosures included in the consolidated financial
statements. Although actual results may differ, management believes that the estimates and assumptions used were
appropriate under the current circumstances.

Improvements to the 2020 Mexican Financial Reporting Standards (NIF) that generate accounting changes:

According to Accounting Criterion A-1 issued by the Commission, entities shall apply Mexican Financial Reporting
Standards (“MFRS”, which is comprised of individual standards that are referred to as “NIF”) as issued by the Mexican
Board of Financial Reporting Standards, A.C. (“CINIF”), except when in the opinion of the Commission, it is necessary
to apply a specific accounting standard or criterion.

NIF D-4, Income taxes – Clarifies the accounting recognition of income taxes incurred by the distribution of dividends
as regards the transaction that generated distributable profits.

NIF D-4, Income taxes and NIF D-3, Employee benefits– Include paragraphs on uncertain tax treatments when considering the basis used to determine income tax (ISR) and employee statutory profit-sharing (PTU), while also assessing
the probability whereby the tax or labor authorities may or may not accept an uncertain tax treatment.

NIF D-5, Leases – a) Given the complexity that may arise when determining the discount rate, this standard establishes the possibility of utilizing a risk-free rate to discount future lease payments and subsequently recognize a lessee’s
lease liability. b) The use of the practical expedient to prevent material and identifiable components that are not leases
from being included in the measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities was restricted.

The regulations of the Commission referred to in the previous paragraph refer to standards of recognition, valuation,
presentation, and, as the case may be, disclosure, applicable to specific captions within the consolidated financial
statements, as well as those applicable to their preparation.

Recognition of the effects of inflation - As of January 1, 2008, the Entity suspended recognition of the effects of
inflation in the financial statements; however, stockholders’ equity includes the effects of re-expression recognized
up to December 31, 2007.

In this regard, the Commission clarifies that the application of accounting criteria, or the concept of deficiency supplementation, will not be appropriate in the case of operations which by express law are not permitted, or are prohibited,
or are not expressly authorized.

Below is a description of the significant accounting policies followed by the Entity:

Below we describe the principal accounting practices followed by the Entity:

Cash and cash equivalents - It consists mainly of bank deposits in checking accounts, which are presented at nominal
value, bank deposits and equivalent in foreign currency are valued at the exchange rate issued by Banco de Mexico
at year end.

Accounting changes issued by the Commission –
The Ministry of Finance and Public Credit (SHCP) and the Commission in view of the “Agreement Establishing
the SARS-CoV2 Virus Epidemic (COVID-19) in Mexico as a serious priority care illness, as well as establishing the
activities to prepare and respond to this epidemic”, published in the Official Journal of the Federation on March 23,
2020, and to the negative impact that is being generated on various activities of the economy, issued during 2020
various temporary regulatory facilities in accounting matters, in order to support those accredited from various
financial institutions.

Investments in securities - The Entity invests in highly liquid, readily convertible into cash and subject to non-significant risk of changes in value. The investments of the Entity as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, are classified
as trading securities, which are securities that are acquired with the purpose of selling them in the near term to
realize gains arising from changes in market prices. The investments are initially recognized at their acquisition price,
and subsequently valued at fair value using market values provided by price vendors authorized by the Commission.
Changes in fair value are recorded in results of the year.
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Impairment in the value of investments in securities - The Entity assesses whether the date of the consolidated
balance sheet there is objective evidence that a security is impaired. A security is considered to be impaired and,
therefore, a loss from impairment is incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of the impairment as a
result of one or more events that took place after the initial recognition of the security, which had an impact on its
estimated future cash flows that can be determined reliably. It is highly unlikely that one event can be identified
that is the sole cause of the impairment, and it is more likely that the combined effect of different events might
have caused the impairment. The expected losses as a result of future events are not recognized, regardless of how
probable they are. As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, management has not identified objective evidence
of impairment of any investment in security.
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A hedging relationship qualifies for being designated as such when all the following conditions are met:
– Formal designation and sufficient documentation of the hedging relationship
–	Hedge must be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk.
– For cash flow hedges, the forecasted transaction to be hedge must be highly likely to occur.
– Hedge must be reliably measurable.
- Hedge must be continually evaluated (at least quarterly).
The Entity suspends hedge accounting when the derivative instrument matures, has been sold, canceled or exercised,
when the derivative does not reach a high effectiveness to offset the changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged
item, or when the Entity decides to cancel the hedge designation.

Transactions with derivative financial instruments - The Entity recognizes all derivative financial instruments on the
balance sheet at fair value, regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them. The accounting for changes in
the fair value of the derivative financial instruments varies, depending on whether the derivative is considered to
be in a hedge for accounting purposes, and whether the hedging relationship is a fair value or a cash flow hedge,
as follows:

The Entity formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objectives and strategies for undertaking various derivative transactions. The Entity´s policy is not to
acquire these instruments for speculative purposes.

1.	Certain derivative financial instruments, although considered to be an effective hedge from an economic perspective, are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. Such contracts are recognized in the balance
sheet at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in earnings.

Foreign currency transactions - Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate of
the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted into Mexican
pesos at the exchange rate published by Banco de México in effect at the balance sheet date; the effect of changes
in exchange rates is recorded in the statement of income as profit or loss.

2. 	For fair value hedges, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument and the hedged item are recognized
to the income or expense line item that is affected by the hedged item.

Loan portfolio - Represents amounts granted to borrowers plus uncollected and interest which is accrued on the
unpaid balance. Interest collected in advance is recognized in the statement of income during the period in which it
is earned.

3. 	For cash flow hedges, the effective portion is recognized in stockholders’ equity under other comprehensive
income and the ineffective portion is recognized in earnings. The unrecognized gain or loss of the hedging
instrument is recognized in earnings when the hedged transaction occurs.

The unpaid balance of the loans is classified as non-performing loan portfolio when the borrower fails to pay
installments under the original contractual terms and the loan is 90 days past due. The unpaid balance of the loans
considers the joint and several obligations of the distributor. The distributor is considered jointly and severally liable
with the debtors for the unpaid amounts in the non-performing loan portfolio. The joint and several obligations arise
in accordance with the financial factoring contracts and executed agreements. The amount of the joint and several
obligations is equivalent to the percentages of the unpaid balances determined as part of each origination. The
recognition of the interest income on these loans is suspended and is only recorded as income once it is collected.
For control purposes, this unrecognized interest is recorded in memorandum accounts. The Entity’s policy is to
write off loans that are more than 180 days past due against the respective allowance for loan losses.

4. 	Derivatives are presented in a specific heading of assets or liabilities, depending on whether their fair value (as
a result of the rights and/or obligations they may establish) refers to a debit or credit balance, respectively. Such
debit or credit balances may be offset subject to compliance with the applicable criteria.
Management performs transactions with derivatives for hedging purposes using interest rate and foreign exchange
swaps to cover fluctuations in both interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates.
Financial assets and liabilities that are designated and qualify to be designated as hedged items and derivative
financial instruments which are part of a hedging relationship are recognized in accordance with the provisions
relating to hedge accounting in accordance with the provisions of Criterion B-5, Derivatives and hedging, issued by
the Commission.

Payroll loans are originated by Directodo México, S.A.P.I. de C.V., SOFOM, E.N.R., by certain subsidiaries of Grupo
Empresarial Maestro, S.A., de C.V. and Publiseg, S.A.P.I. de C.V. SOFOM ENR (“Publiseg”) under the brand names
“Kondinero”,” Credifiel” and “Crédito Maestro”, respectively, and other independent distributors from which the Entity
acquires them subsequently through financial factoring contracts in portfolio purchase transactions.
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Such financial factoring contracts stipulate (i) the payment owed by the Entity (principal) of a fixed price to the distributor (agent) for the acquisition of the credit rights (the financial factoring contracts contain the formulas to determine
the final price based on variable discount rates, considering the quality of the credit rights acquired, in accordance
with their actual collection); (ii) the payment of the price in installments (part of the price is paid at the time the credit
rights are acquired and part is paid subsequently under the terms established in the financial factoring contract); (iii)
the establishment of the distributor as partial joint and several obligor, if the debtor of the credit rights acquired by
the Entity does not settle the amounts owed to the Entity, under the terms established in article 419, section II of the
LGTOC (for the percentage of the unpaid amount owed); and (iv) the Entity’s right to offset, pursuant to article 2185 of
the Federal Civil Code (“CCF”), any and all amounts which are owed to it by the distributors as a result of such partial
joint and several obligation, against the amounts owed by the Entity to the distributor in question.
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The repayments of the credit referred to in the preceding paragraph shall cover at least 20% of the principal or the
total amount of any interest that under the restructuring or renewal payment scheme has accrued. For this purpose,
accrued interest recognized in order accounts is not considered.
In addition, credits with a one-time principal payment at maturity and periodic interest payments, which were restructured or renewed during the term of the credit as long as there is no evidence of sustained payment, and those
in which at least 80% of the original term of the credit have not elapsed, which would not have covered all interest
accrued, are considered to be an overdue , and covered the principal of the original amount of the credit, which at the
date of renewal or restructuring should have been covered.
The accrual of accrued interest on credit transactions is suspended, at the time the credit is classified as an overdue
portfolio including credits that contractually capitalize on interest in the amount of the debit. As long as the credit is
held in an overdue portfolio, control of accrued interest is recorded in order accounts. When such overdue interest is
charged, they are recognized in the results of the financial year under “Interest income”.

Pursuant to Article 419, section II of the LGTOC, the financial factoring contracts executed by the Entity establish
the partial resource against the distributor if the debtor of the credit rights acquired by the Entity does not fulfill its
respective payment obligations. Pursuant to the financial factoring contracts themselves, the distributors are considered jointly and severally liable with the debtors for the percentages defined in such contracts for any amounts not
paid to the Entity.

With respect to unpaid accrued ordinary interest on credits considered to be an overdue portfolio, the Entity creates
an estimate of the total amount of such interest at the time of the transfer of credit as an overdue portfolio.

Non-performing loans - The Entity has the following criteria for classifying uncashed credits as a non-performing
loans:

The transfer of expired portfolio to current portfolio is made when the account meets the sustained payment of the
credit and does not present any arrears. Sustained payment refers to the fulfillment of payment of at least three consecutive depreciations and covering the entire payment scheduled for the total amount payable principal and interest.
Advance payment of depreciation is not considered as a sustained payment.

–	If the debits consist of credits with one-time principal payment and interest at maturity and have 30 or more days
of due.
–	If the debits relate to credits with a one-time principal payment at maturity and with periodic interest payments
and have 90 or more days of due the respective interest payment, or 30 or more days of maturity the principal.
– If the debits consist of credits with partial periodic principal payments and interest and 90 or more days of due.
– If the accredited is declared in commercial competition, with the exception of those credits that:

Troubled portfolio
Those commercial loans for which it is determined that, on the basis of current information and facts, as well as in the
process of reviewing the loans, there is a considerable probability that both their principal and interest component will
not be recovered in their entirety, in accordance with the terms and conditions originally agreed. Both the performing
and non-performing loans are capable of identifying themselves as a troubled portfolio.

Continue to receive payment in terms of what is provided for in section VIII of Article 43 of the Law on Commercial
Competitions, or

Restructurings and renewals
A restructuring is a transaction which derives from any of the following situations:
a) Extension of credit enhancements (i.e. guarantees or collateral) which cover the loan in question, or,
b) Modifications to the original conditions of the loan or the payment scheme, which include:
– A change in the interest rate established for the remaining term of the credit:
– A change in currency or account unit, or
–	T he granting of a payment grace period that offers temporary relief from compliance with the payment obligations under the original terms of the loan, unless such concession is granted after the conclusion of the original
contractual term, in which case it will be treated as a renewal.

They are granted under Article 75 in relation to Fractions II and III of Article 224 of that law.
The credits mentioned before will be transferred to non-performing loans portfolio when they incur the cases mentioned in the previous points.
Non-performing loans restructured or renewed shall remain within the non-performing loans portfolio, as long as there
is no sustained payment evidence, i.e. compliance with payment of the credited without delay, for the total amount
payable of principal and interest, at least three consecutive repayments of the credit payment scheme, or in the case
of credits with repayments covering periods greater than 60 calendar days , the payment of an exhibition, as set out
in the Commission’s Accounting Criteria.
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(b)	Credits granted to commercial companies. Taking into account the needs of each of the accredited, the deferral
of the payment of capital and / or interest up to 24 months is granted, with the possibility of extending it to an
additional period according to the business needs for each particular case.

Restructurings do not include transactions that involve performing loans and only result in modifications to one or
more of the following original conditions of the loan:
Credit enhancements: only when they involve the extension or substitution of credit enhancements for others of
higher quality.

–		 No commission will be charged arising from the implementation of this contingency plan.
–		 No contractual modifications shall be made involving the capitalization of interests in a lawful or explicit manner.
–		 Previously agreed credit lines will not be restricted, cancelled or modified in any way.
–		 No additional guarantees will be requested or replaced from those already constituted.
–		 Accredited members must formalize the application for membership of the program.

Interest rate: when the interest rate is agreed.
Currency: provided that the market exchange rates applicable to the new currency are used.
Payment date: only if the change does not mean extending or modifying the scheduled payments. The change in
scheduled payments must under no circumstances permit nonpayment in any period.

(c)	Credits granted to SMEs. Taking into account the needs of each of the accredited, the deferral of the payment of
capital and/or interest is granted for a period raised on the basis of the analysis of each specific case.

A renewal occurs when the term of the loan is extended during such term or upon its maturity, or when settlement
occurs using the proceeds derived from a new loan entered into among the same counterparties or when the debtor
is another party that, due to common stockholders with the original debtor, has similar credit risks. Take-downs on
existing credit lines are not considered to be renewals.

	
	
	
	

Accounting treatment of the support program derived from the COVID-19 contingency - Derived from the health
emergency due to force majeure to the disease epidemic generated by the COVID-19 virus decreed by the General
Health Council last March 2020, the Entity implemented programs to support those accredited from the discount
credit portfolio via payroll, corporate and SMEs, and then describe these programs:

Accredited members must formalize the application for membership of the program.

(a) P
 ayroll discount credits granted to active workers, retired employees and IMSS pensioners - In April 2020 H.
Technical Council approves that IMSS differs for three months withholdings for payment of loans to payroll or pension account. Active workers, retired employees and pensioners will defer their payments for discounted personal
loans via payroll for three months.

The Entity classifies direct loans, including liquidity loans which do not have collateral for real property, granted to
individuals, derived from credit card operations, personal loans, payroll loans, loans for the acquisition of consumer
durables, including among others, auto loans and finance leasing operations carried out with individuals, as consumer loans.

	This temporary suspension of payments to personal claims granted by the 42 financial institutions in which the
IMSS has an agreement applied during May, June and July, thereby seeking to support the economy of workers’
families, in the face of the health emergency by COVID-19.

Charge offs, applications and recoveries of credit loans portfolio - The Entity periodically assesses whether an expired
credit should remain on the balance sheet, or be charged off. Such application is carried out by cancelling the outstanding balance of the credit against the allowance for loan losses. When the credit to write-off exceeds the balance
of its associated estimation, before the write-off, that estimation is increased by up to the amount of the difference.

–		 No commission will be charged arising from the implementation of this contingency plan.
–		No contractual modifications shall be made involving the capitalization of interests in a lawful or explicit manner.
–		 Previously agreed credit lines will not be restricted, cancelled or modified in any way.
–		 No additional guarantees will be requested or replaced from those already constituted.

Classification of loan portfolio - The loans made by the Entity to businesses or individuals with a commercial or financial business activity are classified as commercial portfolio.

	It was established that withholdings made for amortization of personal credits during these months will be refunded in payroll payments 24 hours later, and it will be until August that the collections are restarted.

Any recovery arising from previously charged-off or application is recognized in the results of the financial year within
the allowance for loan losses.

	The agreement stresses that deferral of payments will have no negative impact on accredited payments, as it will
not generate additional costs or surcharges for any amount.
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Unsecured loans

Allowance for loan losses
The Entity recognizes the allowance for loan losses on commercial portfolio based on the criteria of the Commission,
as follows:

The Severity of Loss (SPi) of commercial loans which are not secured by real, personal guarantees or creditbased
collateral will be:

Methodology for commercial loan portfolio
When classifying the commercial loan portfolio, the Entity considers the Probability of Default, Severity of Loss and
Exposure to Default, and also classifies the aforementioned commercial loan portfolio into different groups and establishes different variables for the estimate of the probability of default.

a. 45%, for Preferential Positions.
b.	75%, for Subordinated Positions, in the case of syndicated loans, those which for purposes of their payment order
or preference, are contractually subordinated in relation to other creditors.

The amount of the allowance for loan losses of each loan will be determined by applying the following formula:
c.	100%, for loans which report 18 or more months of arrears in payment of the due and payable amount under the
terms originally agreed.

Ri = P Ii x SP i x E Ii

The Exposure to Default of each loan (EIi) will be determined based on the following:

Where:
Ri = Amount of the allowance for loan losses to be created for the nth credit.
PIi = Probability of default of the nth credit.
SPi = Severity of loss of the nth credit.
EIi = Exposure to default of the nth credit.

I.	For disposed balances of uncommitted credit lines, which may be cancelled unconditionally or which in practice
permit an automatic cancellation at any time and without prior notice:

EI

The probability of default of each credit La (PI i), will be calculated using the following formula:

P li =

1 +

( 500 – TotalCreditScorei ) x

EIi = Si

In (2)
40

For purposes of the above:

*

Max

Si
AuthorizedLineofCredit

– 0.5794

, 100%

Where:
S i : T he unpaid balance of the i-esimo credit at the classification date, which represents the amount of credit effectively granted to the borrower, adjusted for interest accrued, less payments of principal and interest, as well as
debt reductions, forgiveness, rebates and discounts granted. In any case, the amount subject to the classification
must not include uncollected accrued interest recognized in memorandum accounts on the balance sheet, for
loans classified as non-performing portfolio.

The total credit score of each borrower will be obtained by applying the following:
Total credit scorei = ∝ x (Quantitative credit scorei ) + (1 – ∝) x (Qualitative credit scorei )
Where:
Quantitative Credit Scorei
Qualitative Credit Scorei
∝

= Si

II. For the other credit lines:

1
–

i

= is the score obtained for the i-esimo borrower when evaluating the risk factors.
=	is the score obtained for the i-esimo borrower when evaluating the risk factors.
= is the relative weight of the quantitative credit score.

Authorized Credit Line: the maximum authorized amount of the credit line at the classification date.
The Entity may recognize the security interest in personal or real property, personal security and credit derivatives in
the estimate of the Severity of the Loss of the loans, in order to decrease the reserves derived from the portfolio classification. In any case, it may elect not to recognize the aforementioned securities if greater reserves are generated
as a result. The provisions established by the Commission are utilized for such purpose.
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The classification of the commercial portfolio is carried out quarterly and is calculated based on the outstanding
balance as of the final day of each month, considering the classification levels of the portfolio classified at the last
known quarter, restated for the modification of the risk at the close of the current month. The allowance for loan losses
is calculated according to the current methodology, as explained below.

Original value of the asset: The amount applicable to the value of the financed asset recorded by the borrower at the
time the loan is granted. If the loan is not to finance the purchase or acquisition of an asset, the original value of the
asset will be equal to the original amount of the loan. Also, the original amount of the loan may be used for loans which
do not reflect the original value of the asset and were granted prior to the enactment of these Provisions.

Methodology for consumer loan portfolio
When classifying the consumer portfolio, the Entity considers the Probability of Default, the Severity of the Loss and
Exposure to Default, while also classifying the aforementioned portfolio into different groups of risks.

Loan balance: The unpaid balance at the classification date, which represents the amount of the loan granted to the
borrower, adjusted for accrued interest, less payments for financed insurance coverage, collections of principal and
interest, and any applicable reductions, waivers, rebates and discounts granted.

As it is a non-revolving consumer credit portfolio, the calculation of the Probability of Default, Severity of the Loss and
Exposure to Default, must adhere to the following:

In any case, the amount subject to the classification must not include uncollected accrued interest, recognized in
memorandum accounts on the balance sheet for loans classified as non-performing portfolio

Determination of the following items for each credit operation.

Type of loan: Personal loans include those that are collected by the Entity through any means of payment other than
from the payroll account.

Due and payable amount: The amount payable by the borrower in the billing period in accordance with the loan agreement. For loans with weekly and half-monthly billing periods, the accumulation of previous unpaid due and payable
amounts must not be included. For loans with a monthly billing period, the due and payable amount must include both
the amount applicable to the month and the previous unpaid due and payable amounts, as the case may be.

The recognition of the allowance for loan losses on the non-revolving consumer loan portfolio are based on outstanding balances as of the final day of each month.
The Entity determines the percentage used to determine the allowances to be created for each loan, which will be the
result of multiplying the Probability of Default by the Severity of the Loss.

Rebates and discounts may decrease the due and payable amount, only when the borrower fulfills the conditions
required in the credit contract to do so.

Ri = P1i x SPi x EIi

Payment made: The amount applicable to the sum of the payments made by the borrower in the billing period.

Where:
Ri = Amount of reserves to be established for the nth credit.
PIi = Probability of Default on the nth credit.
SPi = Severity of the Loss on the nth credit.
EIi = Exposure to Default of the nth credit.

Write-offs, reductions, waivers, rebates and discounts made to the credit or group of loans are not considered as
payments. The value of this variable must be greater than or equal to zero.
Days in arrears: The number of calendar days at the classification date, during which the borrower has not fully paid
off the receivable and payable amount under the terms originally agreed.

The Probability of Default of the non-revolving consumer loan portfolio whose Billing Periods are monthly or when
involving loans with a single payment at maturity, as follows:

Total term: The number of billing periods (weekly, half-monthly or monthly) established contractually in which the
credit must be settled.

a) Si ATR Mi > = 4 then PI Mi = 100%
Remaining term: Number of weekly, half-monthly or monthly billing periods which, as established in the contract,
remain pending to settle the credit at the portfolio classification date. In the case of loans whose maturity date has
elapsed without the borrower making the respective payment, the remaining period must be equal to the total term
of the credit.

b) Si ATR Mi < 4 then:

P iM =

Original loan amount: The amount applicable to the total loan amount at the time it is granted.
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a)	When the acquisition price is lower than its contractual value, a gain is recognized in “Other revenues from operations” up to the amount recognized as allowance for loan losses, with the remaining difference recognized as a
deferred credit, which will be recognized as the loan is amortized.

= Probability of monthly noncompliance nth for the loan.
=	Number of observed late payments at the date of calculation of new reserves, which are derived from the
application of the following formula:

Number of Monthly Days in Arrears =

COMMITMENT

b)	When the acquisition price of the portfolio is greater than its contractual value, a deferred charge is recognized
which will be recognized as the collections are made according with the proportion which these represent in the
credit contract.

)

c) For revolving loans, such difference will be recognized directly to results of the year on the acquisition date.
Other accounts receivable, net – Represents amounts owed to the Entity but not included in the loan portfolio and includes recoverable taxes, amounts paid to distributors and the amounts to be received from the distributors, interest
accrued in a period before the first repayment of the loan, other debtors, as well as allowances for bad debts on these
accounts. The amounts paid or to be received from the distributors are comprised of both (a) the amounts related to
the distributor’s jointly and severally liable for the amounts not paid by the debtors established in the financial factoring contracts, which are in non-performing portfolio and (b) the advances applicable to the distributor established in
the financial factoring contract.

When this number is not complete, it will take the value of the immediately higher complete number.
VECES Mi =	Number of times that the borrower pays the original value of the asset or, if there is no financed asset, the
number of times that the borrower pays the original amount of the loan. This number will be the coefficient
resulting from dividing the sum of all the scheduled payments at the time of origination, by the original
value of the asset.
If the payments of the loan include a variable component, the Entity’s best estimate will be used to determine the
value of the sum of all the scheduled payments to be made by the borrower. The value of such sum cannot be less
than or equal to the original amount of the credit.

These items are also comprised of balances that are aged less than 90 days from initial recognition. Balances older
than 90 days are reserved in full against income, regardless of their chances of recovery or the collection process for
such assets.

%PAGO Mi = Average Percentage which the payment made represents of the due and payable amount in the last four
monthly billing periods at the calculation date. The average must be obtained after having calculated the payment as a
percentage of the due and payable amount for each of the most recent four monthly billing periods at the calculation
date of the reserves. If less than four monthly billing periods have elapsed at the calculation date of the reserves,
the percentage of those monthly billing periods remaining needed to comprise four billing periods will be 100% for
purposes of calculating this average, so that the variable of this calculation element will always be obtained using the
average of four monthly percentages.

Foreclosed assets - Foreclosed assets are recorded at fair value and are presented net on the balance sheet, discounting the reserve for impairment due to the drop in value, which is calculated as established in Accounting Criteria
B-7 and Article 132 of the General Provisions Applicable to Credit Institutions. The reserve is recorded in the statement
of income under other income (expenses) from operations.
Furniture and fixtures, net – Furniture and fixtures are recorded at acquisition cost. Depreciation and amortization are
calculated using a percentage based on the economic useful life of the assets.

The Severity of the Loss (SP) for the non-revolving consumer loan portfolio will be 65%, provided that the element
ATR Mi does not exceed 9. Otherwise, an SP of 100% is determined.
The Exposure to Default (EIi) of each loan from the non-revolving consumer loan portfolio will be equal to the Loan
Balance (Si).
Loan portfolio acquisitions - On the acquisition date of the loan portfolio, the contractual value of the acquired portfolio
is recognized and classified in accordance with the type of portfolio acquired. Any difference between the acquisition
price and the contractual values are recorded as follows:

				

USEFUL LIFE

				

( AVERAGE YEARS)

Office furniture and fixtures

10

Machinery

10

Transportation equipment
Building
Computers
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subsidiary and the distribution of earnings or capital reimbursements thereof.
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Other assets, net - Are represented mainly by (i) fees and expenses required by financing activities as bank credit lines
and debt issues in the market that are amortized according to the term of the related contract, (ii) ISR, (iii) advance to
third parties and (iv) other intangible assets. Intangible assets are classified as definite and indefinite useful life, the
amortization of intangible assets is calculated using the straight-line method over the remaining life and are subject
to impairment tests. Within this category in other assets short and long term car inventory is presented. Vehicles are
initially recognized at acquisition value. The acquisition value of vehicles, including the costs have been incurred initially to be acquired and subsequently incurred to replace or increase its service potential. The repair and maintenance
costs are recognized in the statement of income as incurred.

When the fair value of the consideration paid is greater than the value of the investment in the subsidiary, the difference represents goodwill, which is presented as part of the same investment.
Other permanent investments – Permanent investments made by the Entity over which control, joint control or significant influence are not exercised are recorded at acquisition cost.

Notes payable (Securitized certificates), bank loans and other loans - Include financial liabilities from the issuance of
debt financial instruments in the stock market and bank loans and other agencies, which are recorded at the value
of the contractual obligation to represent and includes accrued interest related to the debt. In the case of foreign
currency obligations these are valued at the exchange rate on the last day of the year. Accrued interest is recorded in
the statement of income under “Interest expense”.

Goodwill: The excess of cost over the fair value of the shares of subsidiaries at the date of acquisition is not amortized
and is subject to impairment tests at a minimum, on an annual basis.
Impairment of long-lived assets in use – The Entity makes an impairment tests for the long-lived assets in use when
an impairment indicator suggests that such amounts might not be recoverable, considering the greater of the present
value of future net cash flows or the net sales price upon disposal. Impairment is recorded when the book value
exceeds the greater of the aforementioned amounts.

Senior notes - They include financial liabilities from the issuance of financial instruments of unsecured debt securities
in US dollars, listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. These notes are aimed at institutional investors under
Regulation 144A (CUSIP 22547AAA9) and under Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933 of USA. The value of the
Senior Notes at year-end is estimated considering the exchange rate on the last day of the year and the valuation of
the primary position using the same consideration valuation Instrument Cross Currency Swaps (“CCS”) and accrued
interest. Furthermore, all premiums and discounts paid for the issuance of the Senior Notes are recorded in such item.
Likewise, the Entity issued Swiss bonds (“Swiss Bonds-CHF”), which are not guaranteed and cannot be exchanged
before maturity. Swiss Bonds-CHF are not allowed in transactions in a regulated market in the European Economic
Area or any other outside it, and will be quoted exclusively in the SIX Swiss (Securities Market in Switzerland).

Income taxes – Income tax (“ISR”) is recorded in the result of the year in which it is incurred. The Entity records
deferred taxes by comparing accounting and tax basis of assets and liabilities. The resulting deductible and taxable
temporary differences are multiplied by the tax rate expected to be in effect when such items reverse.
Employee benefits – They are those granted to personnel and / or their beneficiaries in return for services rendered
by the employee including all kinds of remuneration accrues as follows:

Sundry creditors and other payables - They are represented mainly by disposals of portfolio and Value Added Tax
(“VAT”) derived from portfolio purchases to various distributors pending payment.

I.	Direct benefits to employees – They are assessed in proportion to the services provided, considering their current
	salaries and liability is recognized as it accrues. It includes mainly the Employee Profit Sharing (“PTU”), compensated absences, such as vacation and vacation premiums, and incentives.

Lease liabilities - At the commencement date of the lease, these liabilities are recognized by considering the present
value of the lease payments to be made. Future payments include: i) fixed payments less any incentives; ii) variable
payments that depend on an index or rate; iii) payments expected to guarantee the residual value; iv) purchase
options, when the Entity is reasonably certain to exercise them; v) payments made when exercising an option at the
end of the lease period and which are discounted by utilizing the discount rate implicit in the lease or, otherwise, by
utilizing the Entity’s incremental borrowing rate. These items are subsequently valued by i) adding accrued interest,
ii) reducing for lease payments, and iii) remeasuring the effects of revaluations or modifications, together with the
effect of changes to substantially fixed lease payments. The variable payments that are not included in the valuation
of lease liabilities are recognized in the results of the period as they arise. As of December 31, 2020, these liabilities
are included in the category of Sundry creditors and other payables.

II.	Employee benefits from termination, retirement and other The liability for seniority premiums and termination of
	the employment relationship are recognized as they accrue and are calculated by independent actuaries based
on the method of projected unit credit using nominal interest rates, as indicated in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
III.	E mployee participation in profits - PTU is recorded in income for the year in which it is incurred and presented
	under the heading of “Administrative expenses” in the statement of income. Deferred PTU is derived from temporary
differences that result from comparing the accounting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and is recognized only
when it can be reasonably assumed that a liability may be settled or a benefit is generated, and there is no indication
that circumstances will change in such a way that the liabilities will not be paid or benefits will not be realized.
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At the beginning of January 1, 2020, the right-of-use assets are depreciated for the shorter period between the lease
term and the useful life of the underlying asset. If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of
the right-of-use asset reflects that the purchase option will be exercised, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated
during the useful life of the underlying asset. Depreciation begins on the starting date of the lease.
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As of December 31, 2020 2019 and 2018, the main concepts that comprise the financial margin are as follows:
		2020
AMOUNT IN PESOS VALUED AT:

Provisions - When the Entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event, which will probably result in the use
of economic resources and that can be reasonably estimated, a provision is recognized.

IN ME XICAN

IN US

PESOS

DOLL ARS

TOTAL

Interest income:

Recognition of interest income - Interest income is determined by applying the applicable interest rate to the outstanding principal balance during the reporting period.

Interest and return on factoring and credit portfolio

$

Fees charged for initial credit grant
Interest and return on securities		

The accrual of interest is suspended when an outstanding loan balance is deemed to be non-performing and is
recorded as non-performing portfolio. Interest on non-performing loans is recognized as collected.

6,262,360

3,805,362

$

10,067,722

142,440		

163,167		

305,607

42,379		

10,625		

53,004

–		

27,395		

27,395

Financial leasing interests and yields

6,447,179		 4,097,068		 10,453,728

Total interest income

When installment payments are received on past due repayments which include principal and interest, they are first
applied to the oldest interest.

$

Interest expense:

Interest income recognized by the Entity refers exclusively to the Entity’s share and, accordingly, excludes the share
applicable to the distributors. Pursuant to the agreements executed, the Entity shares with each distributor the credit
risk and the revenues generated on the loans originated by the distributor. The distributor is responsible for servicing
the loan and covering all of the operating expenses related to the portfolio that it originates.

Interest on bank loans and other agencies		

4,131,827		

783,254		 4,915,082

Total interest expense		

4,131,827		

783,254		 4,915,082

Financial margin

$

2,315,351

$

3,313,813

$

5,629,165

		
2019

Financial margin - The net interest margin of Entity consists of the difference resulting from total interest income less
interest expense.

AMOUNT IN PESOS VALUED AT:

Interest income is integrated by the income generated by the credit portfolio, based on the deadlines set out in
the contracts concluded with the accredited and the agreed interest rates, amortization of the interest charged in
advance, as well as the prizes or interest on deposits in financial institutions and investments in securities.

IN ME XICAN

IN US

PESOS

DOLL ARS

TOTAL

Interest income:
Interest and return on factoring and credit portfolio

Interest expenses consider bank loans. The amortization of the costs and expenses associated with the initial granting
of the credit are part of the interest expense.
Both income and interest expense are usually adjusted on a regular basis depending on the market situation and the
economic environment.

$

8,161,523

$

Fees charged for initial credit grant		

2,179		

3,508,600

$

11,670,123

150,613		

152,792

Interest and return on securities		

75,701		

9,827		

85,528

Financial leasing interests and yields		

–		

24,509		

24,509

Total interest income		

8,239,403		

3,693,549		

11,932,952

Interest on bank loans and other agencies		

4,750,671		

748,725		

5,499,396

Total interest expense		

4,750,671		

748,725		

5,499,396

Financial margin

3,488,732

Interest expense:
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2018
Earnings per share - Basic earnings per common share are calculated by dividing consolidated net income of the con-

TOTAL

trolling interest by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per
share are determined only when there is income from continuing operations by adjusting consolidated net income and
common shares on the assumption that the Entity’s commitments to issue or exchange its own shares are to be met.

9,999,863

Memorandum accounts (see Note 25)
Loan commitments – The balance represents irrevocable letters of credit and unused credit lines.

AMOUNT IN PESOS VALUED AT:
IN ME XICAN

IN US

PESOS

DOLL ARS

Interest income:
Interest and return on factoring and credit portfolio

$

7,013,615

$

2,989,248

$

Fees charged for initial credit grant		

247		

207,095		

207,342

Interest and return on securities		

62,298		

9,275		

71,573

Financial leasing interests and yields		

–		

8,808		

8,808

Total interest income		

7,076,160		

3,211,427		

10,287,586

Uncollected interest earned on non performing portfolio – They represent accrued interest recognized in the statement of income, because loans are classified as non-performing loans.
Credit lines not drawn down - Represent credit lines authorized but not drawn done by the Entity.

Interest expense:
Interest on bank loans and other agencies		

2,685,376		

522,013		

3,207,389

Total interest expense		

2,685,376		

522,013		

3,207,389

Financial margin

4,390,784

$

$

2,689,414

$

Other control accounts – They represent the amount of depreciation that has not been settled within 30 calendar days
of the payment due date, for which income accumulation is suspended.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

7,080,197

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the cash and cash equivalents were as follows:

Other income and expenses – Are recorded in the other income (expense) account associated with the sale of fixed
assets and operating lease revenues. Other expenses refer to expenses other than operating expenses.

				

Collected commissions – Are recognized as income when collected as they involve transactions of a short duration.

2020		

2019		

2018

Banks:
National currency

Interest expenses - They are recorded as accrued in accordance with contracts made are recorded in the statement
of income monthly.

$

Foreign currency (1)
			

Statements of cash flows – The cash flows statement presents consolidated Entity’s ability to generate cash and
cash equivalents, as well as how the entity uses those cash flows to meet its needs. The preparation of the cash flow
statement is performed on the indirect method, based on the net income for the period based on the provisions of
Criterion D-4, cash flow statements, of the Commission.

34,004

$

1,063,418		
$

1,097,422

$

645,756

$

535,111		
1,180,867

$

148,022
427,697
575,719

(1) A s of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, foreign currency deposits delivered to counterparties according to margin calls received are recognized as restricted availability and are valued at the closing exchange rate of the period, which amounted to $656,146, $230,802 respectively,
in 2018 there are no restricted cash or cash equivalents.
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5. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, investments in securities were as follows:

		
2018

		2020
AMOUNT INVESTED

R ATE

AMOUNT INVESTED

AMOUNT

		 Total securities to trade in pesos

$
$

677,442 		

3.37%

677,442			

$
$

677,442

Bank promissory notes

677,442

Government paper		

80,004		

8.16%		

80,004

Commercial paper		

55,214		

5.00%		

55,214

Total securities to trade in dollars

859,266				

859,266

$

414,305		 0.47%

$

414,305

$

414,305			

$

414,305

Total investments in securities

$

1,091,747			

$

724,048		

7.55%

$

724,048

Investments in foreign currency USD (b)

			
			
			

$

		 Total securities to trade in pesos		

Investments in foreign currency USD (b)
Bank promissory notes

AMOUNT

Investments in Mexican pesos (a)

Investments in Mexican pesos (a)
Bank promissory notes

R ATE

Bank promissory notes		

81,599		

4.50%		

81,599

		 Total securities to trade in dollars		

81,599				

81,599

1,091,747
			

Total investments in securities

$

940,865			

$

940,865

		
2019
(a)

AMOUNT INVESTED

R ATE

•	Investments in bank promissory notes are comprised of bank debt in pesos, with a 4 - 180 day maturity. As
of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, they represent a total value of $677,442, $410,654 and $724,048
respectively.

Investments in Mexican pesos (a)
Bank promissory notes

410,654		

6.78%

Government paper		

743,179		

7.33%		

743,179

Commercial paper		

47,329		

6.29%		

47,329

		 Total securities to trade in pesos

$

$

1,201,162			

$

$

410,654

•	Investments in government paper are comprised of government debt in pesos with a 2 day maturity. As of
December 2019 and 2018, they represent a total value of $743,179 and $80,004 respectively.

1,201,162

•	Investments in commercial paper are comprised of corporate debt in pesos with a 4 day maturity. As of December
2020, 2019 and 2018, they represent a total value of $0, $47,329 and $55,214 respectively.

Investments in foreign currency USD (b)
Bank promissory notes

$

93,196		

2.38%

$

93,196

Total securities to trade in dollars
			

Total investments in securities

Investments denominated in Mexican pesos are comprised as follows:

AMOUNT

(b) A
 s of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, investments in bank promissory notes denominated in US dollars, with
a maturity of between 4 and 360 days, represent a total value of $414,305, $93,196 and $81,599 respectively.
$

1,294,358			

$

1,294,358
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Senior Notes Relationship with maturity in 2023 (figures in US dollars expressed in thousands)
The Entity uses financial derivatives for hedging purposes to manage the risks related to the fair value of its issuance
of Senior Notes with a coupon rate of 7.25%, maturing in 2023.

The policy established by management is to contract financial derivatives with the aim of hedging the risks inherent
to exposure in foreign currency (exchange rate) and due to interest rate risk generated by the contracting of debt
instruments established in a currency other than the Mexican peso or a variable interest rate.

On August 5, 2016, the Entity contracted five Cross Currency Swaps which hedge the fair value of the principal debt
for the Senior Notes maturing in 2023 with the following financial institutions: (i) Barclays, (ii) Morgan Stanley, (iii) UBS,
(iv) Banamex and (v) Deutsche Bank. This is because it is being converted from a debt that pays a fixed rate in US
dollars to one payable in Mexican pesos at a variable rate. The issuance of the Senior Notes maturing in 2023 was for
US $625,000, while the financial derivatives were only contracted for a portion of the amount exposed.

Margin Call
Any appreciation of the Mexican peso with respect to the U.S. dollar during the term of the debt issued by Crédito
Real, S.A.B. de C.V., Sociedad Financiera de Objeto Múltiple, Entidad No Regulada may result in mark-to-market
losses, which in turn, could trigger margin calls. Therefore, the Entity has entered into credit lines with its cross
currency swap counterparties that help mitigate the risks of having to post collateral with its swap counterparties
in order to satisfy margin calls. As of December 31, 2020, foreign currency deposits delivered to the counterparty
according to the margin calls received are recognized at the exchange rate at the end of the period, at their value
within the restricted availability item, presented in national currency, which amounts to MXP $656,146 at the end
of December 2020.

Given that in the Cross Currency Swaps acquired at the beginning, the Entity paid $4 million pesos at a variable rate,
the Entity executed 4 interest rate swaps to partially change from the variable rate to a fixed rate during the current
year with the following institutions: Barclays, Morgan Stanley and two IRS with Credit Suisse. These instruments are
designated as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes, with the changes in the fair value of the derivative recorded
in other comprehensive income and loss and any ineffective portion and the respective amounts reclassified to the
statement of income when the hedged projected cash flows hedged affect the results for the period.

Derivatives for hedging purposes
Derivatives designated as hedges recognize the changes in valuation according to the type of hedge in question: (1)
when they are fair value hedges, the fluctuations of the derivative and the item hedged are valued at fair value and are
recognized in earnings; (2) when they are cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the result of the hedge instrument
is recognized in stockholders’ equity as part of other comprehensive income and loss, and the ineffective portion of
the result of the hedge instrument is recognized immediately in results for the period.

On March 4, 2019, the Entity contracted a Coupon-Only Swap and Call Spread with Morgan Stanley to hedge both the
notional amount and interest of part of the 2023 Senior Notes. This instrument was contracted for an amount equal
to $50 million dollars, at an exchange rate of 19.3000 pesos per US dollar, with commencement on January 22, 2019
and maturity on July 20, 2023. The Coupon-Only Swap has a fixed rate of 11.72% denominated in Mexican pesos,
while the Call Spread is composed by a long call with an agreed value of $19.30 and a short call of $27.00.
On March 8, 2019, the Entity contracted a Coupon-Only Swap and Call Spread with BNP Paribas to hedge both the
notional amount and interest of part of the 2023 Senior Notes. This instrument was contracted for an amount equal to
$25 million dollars, at an exchange rate of 19.4900 pesos per US dollar, with commencement on March 12, 2019 and
maturity on July 20, 2023. The Coupon-Only Swap has a fixed rate of 11.80% denominated in Mexican pesos, while
the Call Spread is composed by a long call with an agreed value of $19.49 and a short call of $27.00.

Furthermore, in fair value hedges, the fair value of the debt in foreign currency is recognized on the consolidated
balance sheet, and changes to this debt are recognized in earnings.
The changes in fair value of the financial derivatives and the changes in fair value of the debt are recorded in the
intermediation income. The valuation of financial derivatives and primary position is based on valuation techniques
widely accepted in the financial community.

In October, the Entity brought forward the settlement of the Cross Currency Swap derivative contracted with Morgan
Stanley and the derivative contracted with Barclays to leave an outstanding notional amount of US$ 25,000 after a
debt prepayment. Following the change to this hedged item, the Entity restructured its current hedge ratios, leaving
two Cross Currency (UBS and Banamex) Swaps as cash flow hedges, one fair value hedge (Deutsche Bank) and the
Cross Currency instrument contracted with Barclays, divided into a 47% cash portion and a 53% fair value portion.

First syndicated line relationship with maturity in 2020 (amounts expressed in thousands)
On February 21, 2020 this instrument was settled (natural maturity) due to the remaining payment of USD $44,000
of the debt that was contracted with Credit Suisse for USD $110,000 (Syndicated Line), amounted to MXP $216,418
(equivalent to USD $9,773) recorded as an expense.

131

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

CRÉDITO REAL
TODAY

RESILIENCE

TRANSFORMATION

LEADERSHIP

TRADING CHARACTERISTICS

COLLABORATION

FOCUS

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

COMMITMENT

RECOGNITIONS

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

BARCLAYS 9010978

MORGAN STANLEY 1111

BANAMEX 32754151EC_1

DEUTSCHE BANK 9767201M

Currency A:

Dollars (USD)

Dollars (USD)

Dollars (USD)

Dollars (USD)

Currency B:

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Barclays

UBS

Banamex

Deutsche Bank

CR

CR

CR

CR

October 9, 2019

August 5, 2016

August 5, 2016

August 5, 2016

At the beginning and at maturity

At the beginning and at maturity

At the beginning and at maturity

At the beginning and at maturity

Starting date:

October 9, 2019

July 20, 2016

July 20, 2016

July 20, 2016

Maturity date:

July 20, 2023

July 20, 2023

July 20, 2023

July 20, 2023

USD 25,000

USD 100,000

USD 100,000

USD 125,000

Obligated to pay fixed rate for amounts in currency A:
Obligated to pay floating or fixed rate for amounts in currency B:
Date of transaction:
Swap reference amount in both currencies:

Reference amount in currency A:
Reference amount in currency B:
Exchange rate used to calculate reference amount in currency B:

MXN $472,250

MXN $1,889,000

MXN $1,889,000

MXN $2,361,250

$18.8900 MXN per USD

$18.8900 MXN per USD

$18.8900 MXN per USD

$18.8900 MXN per USD

7.25%

7.25%

7.25%

7.25%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Fixed rate for amounts in currency A:
Spread
Fraction for counting of days applicable to fixed rate for amounts in currency A:

30/360

30/360

30/360

30/360

The 20th day of every January

The 20th day of every January

The 20th day of every January

The 20th day of every January

and July as of January 20, 2020

and July as of July 20, 2016

and July as of July 20, 2016

and July as of July 20, 2016

Settlement date currency A:

July 20, 2023

July 20, 2023

July 20, 2023

July 20, 2023

Payment dates currency B:

Every 28 days as of

Every 28 days as of

Every 28 days as of

Every 28 days as of

November 6, 2019

July 20, 2016

July 20, 2016

July 20, 2016

TIIE 28D

TIIE 28D

TIIE 28D

TIIE 28D

6.13%

6.215%

6.19%

6.17%

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the floating rate for amounts in currency B:

Current/360

Current/360

Current/360

Current/360

Market value MXN (thousands)

$

60,594

$

237,328

$

239,605

$

300,661

Market value USD (thousands)

$

3,044

$

11,921

$

12,035

$

15,102

Collateral MXN

$

–

$

–

$

–

$

–

Payment dates currency A:

Floating rate for amounts in currency B:
Spread Currency B:
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CREDIT SUISSE 9003699

Notional:
Currency:

FOCUS

$

BARCLAYS 9009053

1,500

$

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Required to pay fixed rate:

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

COMMITMENT

MORGAN STANLEY OZNJJ

1,000

Mexican Pesos (MXN)
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$

CREDIT SUISSE 9003793

1,000

Mexican Pesos (MXN)
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$

500

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

CR

CR

CR

CR

Required to pay floating rate:

Credit Suisse

Barclays

Morgan Stanley

Credit Suisse

Transaction date:

April 18, 2017

May 15, 2017

June 14, 2017

June 14, 2017

March 29, 2017

May 16, 2017

May 24, 2017

May 24, 2017

July 29, 2023

July 20, 2023

July 23, 2023

July 20, 2023

7.26%

7.27%

7.12%

7.12%

TIIE

TIIE

TIIE

TIIE

Real/360

Real/360

Real/360

Real/360

Every 28 days as of

Every 28 days as of

Every 28 days as of

Every 28 days as of

March 29, 2017

May 16, 2017

June 21, 2017

May 24, 2017

Start date:
Maturity date:
Fixed rate:
Floating rate:
Fraction for the count of days applicable to floating or fixed rate:
Interest payment dates:

Market value MXN (thousands)

$

(106,850)

$

(71,495)

$

(67,702)

$

(33,843)

Market value USD (thousands)

$

(5,367)

$

(3,591)

$

(3,401)

$

(1,700)

CHARACTERISTICS OF CCS

Currency A:

MORGAN STANLEY ID PHE7D

BNP PARIBAS ID MD21303775

OPTION DETAIL

MORGAN STANLEY ID WAW1A

Dollars (USD)

Dollars (USD)

Option style

European

				
Currency B:
Obligated to pay fixed rate for amounts in currency A:
Obligated to pay floating or fixed rate for amounts in currency B:
Date of transaction:
Start date:
Due date:

Buy USD / Sell USD

Mexican pesos (MXN)

Mexican pesos (MXN)

Option type

Call Largo/ Call Corto

Morgan Stanley

BNP

Curency and call amount

USD 50,000

CR

CR

Currency and Sale Amount:

USD 50,000

March 4, 2019

March 8, 2019

Mínimum exchange rate:

$

19.30

At starting date and maturity

At starting date and maturity

Rate ceiling:

$

27.00

January 20, 2019

March 12, 2019

Maturity date:

July 20, 2023

July 20, 2023

July 20, 2023

Payment date

July 20, 2023

A currency settlement date A:

USD 50,000

USD 25,000

Premium:

A currency settlement date B:

MXN $965,000

MXN $487,250

Market value MXN (thousands)

$

116,077

$19.3000 MXN per USD

$19.49 MXN per USD

Market value USD (thousands)

$

5,830

7.25%

7.20%

N/A

N/A

30/360

30/360

A currency payment dates A:

20th day of each month

20th day of each month

A currency settlement date A:

March 13, 2019

March 13, 2019

Fix rate for the amount in currency B for the first period:
Floating of fixed rate for currency A:
Spread

–

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the fixed rate for amounts
in foreign currency A:
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MORGAN STANLEY ID WAW1A

Every 28 days starting 		

Buy USD / Sell USD

on January 22, 2019

on March 12, 2019

Option type

Call Long/ Call Short

8.00%

11.8%

Currency and call amount

USD 25,000

Current/360

Current/360

Currency and sell amount:

USD 25,000

Minimum Exchange rate:

$

19.49

Rate ceiling:

$

27.00

Floating or fixed rate for currency B:
Fraction for the count of days applicable to floating or fixed
rate amounts in currency B:
Market value MXN (thousands)

$

25,384

$

12,197

Market value USD (thousands)

$

1,275

$

613

			

Maturity date:

			

Payment date

July 20, 2023

			

Premium:

			

Market value MXN (thousands)

$

55,062

			

Market value USD (thousands)

$

2,766

As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the Cross Currency Swaps in relation to the hedges contracted for the
Senior Notes with maturity in 2023 is MXP $838,188 (equal to USD $42,102), which was recorded as an asset with an
offsetting entry recorded in the supplementary stockholders’ equity account through comprehensive income (based
on the portion designated as a cash flow hedge) for the amount of MXP $505,417 (equal to USD $25,387), together
with a credit of MXP $332,771 (equal to USD $16,715), which was recorded as a profit in the statement of income
(based on the portion designated as a fair value hedge). The effect recognized in net worth at December 31, 2020 is
MXP $152,784 (equal to USD $7,674), together with an exchange rate gain plus accrued interest of MXP $352,633
(equal to USD $15,618), which was recognized in the statement of income. The effect recognized at December 31,
2020 for the hedged item in the statement of income (related to the currency swaps contained in the fair value hedge)
is a loss of MXP $332,771 (equal to USD $16,715).

July 20, 2023

recognized in the statement of income as an intermediation income due to the option value of $75,017 (equal to
USD $8,596) for the Call Spread. The effect reclassified to the statement of income as income derived from accrued
interest is $46,415 (equal to USD $2,331). At the beginning of the derivative instrument, a liability of $246,157 (equal
to USD $13,052) was recorded for the premium cost, which has been settled by applying a debit of MXP $103,608
(equal to USD $5,204) to results.
The periods in which the cash flows derived from the derivatives in relation to the hedge of the Senior Bonds that
mature in 2023 are expected to occur and impact the statement of income as follows:
YE AR

As of December 31, 2019, the fair value of the interest rate swaps for the Senior Notes 2023 in a hedging relationship is MX $(279,890) (equal to USD ($14,059)), which was recorded as an asset with a debit to stockholders’
equity through comprehensive income. The effect as of December 31, 2020 recognized in equity is MX $(279,588),
(equal to USD ($14,043)) and in the statement of income with an effect of MX $302 (equivalent to USD $15) due
to the accrued interest.

PESOS

US DOLL ARS

2021

$

(143,307)

$

(7,198)

2022

$

(122,930)

$

(6,175)

2023

$

130,598

$

6,560

Perpetual Bond Relationship (figures in US dollars expressed in thousands)
The Entity uses financial derivatives as hedges to manage the risks related to redemptions in the interest rate applicable to their issuance of the perpetual bonds,(long-term notes, which were offered on November 29, 2017 and accrue
interest at a fixed rate of 9.125%.

As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the Coupon Only Swap with a Call Spread for the hedging relationship of
the Senior Notes with maturity in 2023 is $208,721 (equal to USD $10,484), which was recorded as an asset. As
of December 31, 2020, the effect recognized in net worth is $(8,835) (equal to USD ($ 444)), while an effect was
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On December 5,2018, the Entity contracted six Cross Country Swaps (CCS) with Morgan Stanley, Credit Suisse and
Barclays for $230,000, of these, a first tranche with three derivatives has a fixed rate of 9.125%, maturing in 2019,
while the second tranche with the remaining three derivatives pays a variable rate (28 day TIIE) plus a spread, to cover
100% of the perpetual bonds.
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CHARACTERISTICS OF CCS

Currency A:
Currency B:
Required to pay floating rate amounts in currency A:

BARCLAYS 9009344

Dollar (USD)

Dollar (USD)

Currency B:

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Transaction date:

Transaction date:

CREDIT SUISSE 9003980

November 29, 2019
November 29, 2022

Reference amount in currency A:

USD

Reference amount in currency B:

MXN $

Exchange rate used to calculate reference amount in currency B:

Dollar (USD)
CR

Fraction for counting of days applicable to fixed rate for amounts in currency A:

CR

CR

Payment dates currency A:

December 5, 2017

December 5, 2017

Start date:

November 29, 2019

November 29, 2019

Payment dates currency B:

Maturity date:

November 29, 2022

November 29, 2022

USD 65,000

USD 65,000

Fixed rate for the amount in currency B

$18.7200 MXN per USD

$18.7200 MXN per USD

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the fixed

9.13%

9.13%

30/360

30/360

Half – year as

Half – year as

November 29, 2019

November 29, 2019

A currency settlement date A:

November 29, 2019

November 29, 2022

A currency payment dates B:

Every 28 days as of

Every 28 days as of

November 29, 2018

November 29, 2019

TIIE 28D

TIIE 28D

3.57%

3.60%

Current/360

Current/360

Floating or fixed rate for currency B:
Spread currency B:
fixed rate amounts in currency B:

$

57,966

$

57,352

Market value USD (thousands)

$

2,912

$

2,881

Collateral MXN

$

–

$

–

November 29, 2022
Every 28 days as of
TIIE 28D

Spread currency B:

3.60%

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the floating rate for amounts in currency B:

Current/360

Market value MXN (thousands)

$

86,473

Market value USD (thousands)

$

4,343

As of December 31, 2002, the fair value of derivatives related to perpetual bond hedge is MX $201,790 (equivalent to
$10,136 US dollars), which was recorded as an asset and income in the statement of income.
CHF Bond Relationship (figures in US dollars expressed in thousands)
The Entity uses financial derivatives as hedges to manage the risks related to redemptions in the interest rate applicable to their issuance of the CHF Bond, which were offered on February 13, 2018 and accrue interest at a fixed rate
of 2.875%.
On February 13, 2018, the Entity contracted three Cross Currency Swaps to hedge the exchange rate of the interests
and principal for the CHF Bond, with the following financial institutions: (i) Credit Suisse, (ii) Deutsche Bank, (iii)
Barclays. The debt is being converted from one that pays a fixed rate in CHF to Mexican pesos at a fixed rate. The
issuance of the Bond maturing in 2022 was for CHF $170,000, while the financial derivatives were only contracted for
a 71% of the amount exposed. For accounting purposes these three Cross Currency Swaps were designated as cash
flow hedges; i.e., the fluctuations of the derivative and the item hedged are valued at fair value and are recognized in
other comprehensive income in the same periods.

Fraction for the count of days applicable to floating or
Market value MXN (thousands)

Half – year as

Floating rate for amounts in currency B:

rate for amounts in foreign currency A:
A currency payment dates A:

30/360

November 29, 2019

for the first period:
Floating rate for currency A:

9.13%

November 29, 2019

N/A

MXN $1,216,800

$18.7200 MXN per USD

Fixed rate for amounts in currency A:

Barclays

MXN $1,216,800

N/A

Maturity date:

N/A

A currency settlement date B:

December 5, 2017

Start date:

Settlement date currency A:

A currency settlement date A:

CR

Reference exchange amount in both currencies:

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Reference exchange amount in both currencies:

Morgan Stanley

Required to pay fixed rate amounts in currency B:

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Required to pay fixed rate amounts in currency B:

MORGAN STANLEY HL0U0

Currency A:
Required to pay floating rate amounts in currency A:

For accounting purposes, the Entity has designated the aforementioned financial derivatives as fair value hedges;
i.e., the fluctuations of the derivative and the item hedged are valued at fair and are recognized in results in the same
periods.
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On June 7, 2018, the Entity contracted a Cross Currency Swap to hedge to hedge the exchange rate on an additional 18% of the principal and the interest rate for the CHF Bond, with Deutsche Bank. This portion of the debt is being
converted from one that pays a fixed rate in CHF to Mexican Pesos at a variable rate. For accounting purposes this
Cross Currency Swap was designated as a fair value hedge; i.e., the fluctuations of the derivative and the hedged
item are valued at fair value and are recognized in results in the same periods. In total, the Entity has hedged 88%
of the debt.
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On March 8, 2019, the Entity contracted a coupon-only swap and call spread with BNP Paribas to hedge both the
notional amount and interest as part of a Swiss bond with maturity in 2022. This instrument was contracted for an
amount equal to 20 million Swiss francs, at an exchange rate of 19.3500 pesos per Swiss franc, with commencement
on March 12, 2019 and maturity on February 7, 2022. The coupon-only swap has a 9.45% fixed interest rate denominated in Mexican pesos, while the call spread consists of a long call with an agreed value of $19.35, together with a
short call of $25.00.

CREDIT SUISSE 9004110

DEUTSCHE BANK D948548M

BARCLAYS 9009487

DEUTSCHE BANK G370871M

Currency A:

Swiss Francs (CHF)

Swiss Francs (CHF)

Swiss Francs (CHF)

Swiss Francs (CHF)

Currency B:

Mexican Pesos (MXP)

Mexican Pesos (MXP)

Mexican Pesos (MXP)

Mexican Pesos (MXP)

Deutsche Bank

Deutsche Bank

Barclays

Deutsche Bank

Required to pay amounts in currency A:
Required to pay amounts in currency B:

CR

CR

CR

CR

February 13, 2018

February 13, 2018

February 13, 2018

June 7, 2018

At the beginning and at maturity

At the beginning and at maturity

At the beginning and at maturity

At the beginning and at maturity

Start Date:

February 9, 2018

February 9, 2018

February 9, 2018

February 9, 2018

Maturity date:

Transaction date:
Reference exchange amount in both currencies:

February 9, 2022

February 9, 2022

February 9, 2022

February 9, 2022

A currency settlement date A:

CHF 40,000

CHF 40,000

CHF 40,000

CHF 30,000

A currency settlement date B:

MXP $797,857

MXP $625,942

MXP $796,600

MXP $625,942

$19.9464 MXP por CHF

$19.9150 MXP por CHF

$19.9150 MXP por CHF

$20.8647 MXP por CHF

Fixed rate for the amount in currency B for the first period:
Fix rate for currency A:

2.88%

2.88%

2.88%

2.88%

30/360

30/360

30/360

30/360

Annually as of

Annually as of

Annually as of

Annually as of

February 9, 2018

February 9, 2018

February 9, 2018

February 9, 2018

A currency payment dates A:

February 9, 2022

February 9, 2022

February 9, 2022

February 9, 2022

A currency payment dates B:

Monthly as of

Monthly as of

Monthly as of

Monthly as of

February 9, 2018

February 9, 2018

February 9, 2018

February 9, 2018

11.97%

11.97%

11.96%

TIIE 28D

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the fixed rate for amounts in foreign currency
A currency settlement date A:

Fix rate for currency B:

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

3.26%

Fraction for the count of days applicable to floating or fixed rate amounts in currency B:

Spread currency B:

Current/360

Current/360

Current/360

Current/360

Market value MXP (thousands)

$

91,505

$

92,356

$

93,043

$

52,459

Market value USD (thousands)

$

4,596

$

4,639

$

4,674

$

2,635

Collateral MXP

$

–

$

–

$

–

$

–
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BNP PARIBAS ID MD21304233		

BNP ID MD21304233

Currency A:
Currency B:

Swiss franc (CHF)

Option style:

European

			
Required to pay amounts in currency A:

Type of option

Long Call / Short Call

BNP

Currency and amount of the call

USD 20,000

CR

Currency and sales amount:

USD 20,000

Required to pay amounts in currency B:
Transaction date:

Call CHF / Put CHF

Mexican pesos (MXN)

March 8, 2019

Minimum Exchange rate:

$

19.35

At the beginning and at Maturity

Ceiling Exchange rate:

$

25.00

Start Date:

March 12, 2019

Due date:

February 7, 2022

Maturity date:

February 9, 2022

Payment day

February 7, 2022

Reference exchange amount in both currencies:

A currency settlement date A:

CHF $20,000

Premium:

A currency settlement date B:

MXN $387,000

Fair value MXN (thousands)

$

66,519

$19.35 MXN per CHF

Fair value USD (thousands)

$

3,341

Fixed rate for the amount in currency B for the first period:
Floating rate for currency A:

–

2.88%

Spread

N/A

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the fixed rate for amounts in foreign currency A:

30/360

A currency payment dates A:

Yearly

A currency settlement date A:

February, 9 2019

Payment dates currency B

Every 28 days as of February 9, 2019

Floating rate for amounts un currency B (call spread premium implicit in rate):

9.45%
The call spread premium is implicit in the rate

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the floating rate for amounts in currency B:

Current/360

Market value MXN (thousands)

$

11,727

Market value USD (thousands)

$

589

As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the Cross Currency Swaps in relation to the hedge of the CHF Bond
maturing in 2022 is MXP $329,364 (equivalent to USD $14,621, which was recorded as a liability, against an impact
as a loss other comprehensive income of MXP $87,506 (equivalent to USD $4,395) due to the portion as a cash flow
hedge, as a loss in profit or loss of MXP $52,459 (equivalent to USD $2,635) due to the portion as a fair value hedge
and as a loss in profit or loss of MXP $364,411 (equivalent to USD $18,034) due to the exchange rate and accrued
interests. The effect as of December 31, 2020 recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the hedged
item (related to the fair value hedge portion) is a gain of MXP $52,459 (equivalent to USD $2,635).

The effect reclassified in the statement of income as income derived from accrued interest is $10,973 (equal to USD
$ 487). At the beginning of the derivative instrument, a liability was recorded for the premium cost of $ 71,545 (equal
to USD $3,176), which has been settled by applying a debit of MXP $42,860 (equal to USD $ 2,153) to banks.
The periods in which the cash flows from the derivatives in relation to the hedging of the CHF Bond Relationship are
expected to occur and impact the consolidated statement of income are as follows:
YE AR

As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the Coupon Only Swap with a Call Spread related to the hedges contracted
for the CHF Bonds with maturity in 2022 is $78,246 (equal to USD $3,930), which was recorded as an asset. As of
December 31, 2020, the effect recognized in equity is $473 (equal to USD $24), while the effect recognized in the
statement of income is a trading gain, due to the option value of $ (5,025) (equal to USD $ (252)) for the Call Spread.
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Second syndicated credit line with maturity in 2022 (figures in thousands)
The Entity utilizes derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes to manage the risks related to exchange
rate at interest rate fluctuations applicable to the credit line contracted with Credit Suisse for the amount of USD
$110,000 on August 21, 2019, which will be payable on August 5, 2022 at the monthly Libor rate plus 4%, with an
initial exchange rate of 19.6250.

Dollar (USD)

Currency B:

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Transaction date:
Reference exchange amount in both currencies:
Start date:
Maturity date:
A currency settlement date A:
A currency settlement date B:
Fixed rate for the amount in currency B for the first period:
Floating rate for currency A:
Spread

A currency payment dates A:

CREDIT SUISSE ID 9004706

Every 28 days,

Floating or fixed rate for currency B:

10.99%

Spread currency B:

Current/360

Market value MXN (thousands)

$ (15,831)

Market value USD (thousands)

$

(795)

Collateral MXN

$

–

As of December 31, 2020 the fair value of the aforementioned financial derivatives for the syndicated hedging relationship is MXP $ (15,831) (equivalent to USD $ (795)), which was recorded as a liability with a debit to the complementary account of stockholders’ equity with the effect of the period through comprehensive income. The effect
as of December 31, 2020 recognized in equity is a debit of MXP $ (50,167) (equivalent to USD $ (2,520)), and the
effect to the intermediation result as interest loss and accumulated exchange effect is MXP $ 34,336 (equivalent to
USD $ 1,275).
The periods in which the cash flows derived from the derivatives in relation to the hedge of the syndicate line are
expected to occur and impact the statement of income are as follows:

Credit Suisse

YE AR		

CR
August 22, 2019
N/A
August 21, 2019
August 5, 2022

PESOS

US DOLL ARS

2021

$

(27,474)		

(1,380)

2022

$

77,641		

3,900

Senior Notes with maturity in 2026 (figures in thousands)
The Entity utilizes derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes to manage the risks related to exchange rate
at interest rate fluctuations applicable to the 2026 Notes for the amount of USD $400,000, contracted on February 7,
2019 and with maturity in 2026 and a fixed 9.5% interest rate payable half-yearly.

USD 110,000
MXN $2,158,750
$19.6250 MXN per USD
USD–LIBOR–BBA
4.00%

On February 26, 2019, the Entity contracted a derivative financial instrument composed by a Cross Currency Swap
with Barclays to hedge both the notional amount and interest of part of the 2026 Senior Notes. This instrument was
contracted for an amount equal to $150 million dollars, at an exchange rate of $19.1735 pesos per dollar, a fixed
interest rate of 15.84% denominated in Mexican pesos, with commencement on February 7, 2019 and maturity on
February 7, 2026.

Current/360
Half year,
August 21, 2019

A currency settlement date A:
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

as of August 21, 2019

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the fixed
rate for amounts in foreign currency A::
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CREDIT SUISSE ID 9004706

Currency A:

Required to pay fixed rate amounts in currency B:

RECOGNITIONS

A currency payment dates B:

For accounting purposes, the Entity has designated this derivative financial instrument as a cash flow hedge, recording
changes in the fair value of the derivative in other comprehensive income and reclassifying any ineffective portion and
the respective amounts in the statement of income when forecast hedged cash flows affect the results of the year.

Required to pay floating rate amounts in currency A:

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

CHARACTERISTICS OF CC

On August 22, 2019, the Entity contracted a Cross Currency Swap with Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch (“CS”)
at the rate of $19.6250 Mexican pesos per US dollar, whereby it obtains a floating LIBOR interest rate plus 4% and
pays interest at a fixed rate of 10.99% denominated in Mexican pesos, with interest rate and principal payment swaps
to hedge the credit line contracted with Credit Suisse.

CHARACTERISTICS OF CC

COMMITMENT

N/A
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On February 27, 2019, the Entity contracted a Cross Currency Swap with Goldman Sachs to hedge both the notional
amount and interest of part of the 2026 Senior Notes. This instrument was contracted for an amount equal to $150
million dollars, at an exchange rate of $19.2458 pesos per dollar, a fixed interest rate of 15.75%, denominated in
Mexican pesos, with commencement on February 7, 2019 and maturity on February 7, 2026.

COMMITMENT

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

RECOGNITIONS

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

As of December 31, 2020 the fair value of the Cross Currency Swaps in relation to the hedge of the Senior Note 2026
is MXP $41,553 (equivalent to USD $2,087) which was recorded as a liability, and a loss in other comprehensive
income. The effect as of December 31, 2020 recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the hedged item.
The effect as of December 31, 2020 recognized in equity is a debit of MXP $ (198,059) (equivalent to USD $(9,948)),
and the effect to the intermediation result as interest loss and accumulated exchange effect is MXP $239,612 (equivalent to USD $12,034).

For accounting purposes, the Entity has designated this derivative financial instrument as a cash flow hedge, recording
changes in the fair value of the derivative in other comprehensive income and reclassifying any ineffective portion and
the respective amounts in the statement of income when forecast hedged cash flows affect the results of the year.

The periods in which the derivative’s cash flows are expected to occur in the syndicated hedge relationship and have
an impact on the statement of income are as follows:

		
GOLDMAN SACHS ID
CHARACTERISTICS OF CCS

BARCLAYS ID 9010142

SDBB7MM3333PLZHZZP111
YE AR		

Currency A:

Dollars (USD)

Dollars (USD)

Currency B:

Mexican pesos (MXN)

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

2021

$

Barclays

Goldman Sachs

2022

CR

CR

2023

February 26, 2019

February 27, 2019

N/A

Start date:
Maturity date:

7,711

$

132,784 		

6,670

$

113,496 		

5,701

2024

$

95,572 		

4,801

N/A

2025

$

78,647 		

3,950

February 7, 2019

February 7,2019

2026

$

(772,082)		

(38,781)

Required to pay fixed rate amounts in currency B:
Reference exchange amount in both currencies:

February 7, 2026

February 7,2026

Reference amount in currency A:

USD 150,000

USD 150,000

Reference amount in currency B:

MXN $2,876,025

MXN $2,886,870

MXN per USD

MXN per USD

Fixed rate for the amount in currency B for the first period:
Floating rate for amounts in currency A:

Fixed

Fixed

Spread

9.50%

9.50%

amounts in currency A:

30/360

30/360

Payment dates currency A:

Half year,

Half year,

February 7, 2019

February 7, 2019

Settlement date currency A:

February 7,2026

February 7,2026

Payment dates currency B:

Every 28 day,

Every 28 day,

As of March 19, 2019

As of March 19, 2019

15.84%

15.75%

Current/360

Current/360

Senior Notes with maturity in 2027 (figures in thousands)
The Entity utilizes derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes to manage the risks related to exchange
rate and interest rate fluctuations applicable to the 2027 Notes for the amount of €350,000 offered on international
markets. These instruments were contracted on October 1, 2019, with maturity in 2027 and a fixed 5.00% interest
rate payable half-yearly.

Fraction for counting of days applicable to fixed rate for

Floating rate of fixed rate for amounts in currency B:

On October 1, 2019, the Entity contracted two derivative financial instruments (Principal-Only Swap and Coupon-Only
Swap) with Barclays to hedge both the notional amount and interest of part of the 2027 Senior Notes. This instrument was contracted for an amount equal to €150 million, at an exchange rate of $21.4706 pesos per euro, a fixed
11.33% interest rate denominated in Mexican pesos, with commencement on October 1, 2019 and maturity on
February 1, 2027.
On October 1, 2019, the Entity contracted two derivative financial instruments (Principal-Only Swap and Coupon-Only
swap) with Morgan Stanley to hedge both the notional amount and interest of part of the 2027 Senior Notes. This
instrument was contracted for an amount equal to €150 million, at an exchange rate of $22.4550 pesos per euro, a
fixed interest rate of 11.33% denominated in Mexican pesos, with commencement on October 1, 2019 and maturity
on February 1, 2027.

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the floating
rate to fixed for amounts in currency B:

US DOLL ARS

153,524 		

Required to pay floating rate amounts in currency A:
Transaction date:

PESOS

Market value MXN (thousands)

$ 117,457

$ (75,904)

Market value USD (thousands)

$

5,900

$

(3,813)

Collateral MXN

$

–

$

–
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For accounting purposes, the Entity has designated the above derivative financial instruments as cash flow hedges,
recording changes in the fair value of these derivatives in other comprehensive income and reclassifying any ineffective portion and the respective amounts to other comprehensive income when forecast hedged cash flows affect the
results of the year.
CHARACTERISTICS OF CCS

BARCLAYS ID 9010994

COMMITMENT

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

RECOGNITIONS

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the aforementioned derivative financial instruments as regards the hedging
relationship with the 2027 Senior Notes is MXP $317,277 (equal to USD $15,937), which was recorded as a liability
with a debit applied to the supplemental stockholders’ equity account with the effect of the period through comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2020, the effect recognized in net worth is a debit of MXP $(491,620) (equal to
USD $(24,694)), while the effect of the intermediation result is recorded as an interest loss, together with an accrued
exchange effect of MXP $(808,897) (equal to USD $(40,630)).

MORGAN STANLEY ID AQOKP

		
Currency A:

Euros (EUR)

Euros (EUR)

Currency B:

Mexican pesos (MXN)

Mexican pesos (MXN)

Barclays

Morgan Stanley

in currency B:

CR

CR

Date of transaction:

October 1, 2019

October1, 2019

N/A

N/A

Start date:

October

October

Maturity date:

February

February

A currency settlement date A:

EUR 150,000

EUR 150,000

A currency settlement date B:

MXN $3,220,596

MXN $3,218,250

The periods in which the derivative’s cash flows are expected to occur in the syndicated hedging relationship and have
an impact on the statement of income are as follows:

Obligated to pay fixed rate for amounts
in currency A:

YE AR		

Obligated to pay floating or fixed rate for amounts

Reference exchange amount in both currencies:

Fixed rate for the amount in currency B for the first period:

$21,4706 MXN per EUR

$21,4550 MXN per EUR

Floating rate for currency A:

5%

5%

Spread

N/A

N/A

rate for amounts in foreign currency A:

A currency settlement date A:
A currency payment dates B:

Act/Act

Act/Act

Half year,

Half year,

February 1, 2020

February 1, 2020

February 1,2027

February 1, 2027

Every 28 days,

Every 28 days,

as of November 2019

as of November 1, 2019

11.33%

11.33%

Spread currency B:

Current/360

Current/360

Market value MXN (thousands)

$ 266,416

$

50,861

Market value USD (thousands)

$

13,382

$

2,555

Collateral MXN

$

–

$

–

Floating or fixed rate for currency B:

US DOLL ARS

2021

$

(192,771)		

(9,683)

2022

$

(171,877)		

(8,633)

2023

$

(152,133)		

(7,642)

2024

$

(345,795)		

(17,369)

2025

$

(115,728)		

(5,813)

2026

$

486,685		

24,446

Second Syndicated Credit Line due 2023 (figures expressed in thousands)
The Entity uses derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes to manage exchange rate risks at interest rate
and principal fluctuations as well as the interest rate applicable to the line of credit contracted with Morgan Stanley in
the amount of $60,000 on February 21, 2020, which will be payable on February 21, 2023 at the monthly Libor rate
plus 3.75% , with an initial exchange rate of 18,9138.

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the fixed
A currency payment dates A:

PESOS

On May 19, 2020, Crédito Real contracted a financial instrument derived from exchange rate and interest rate (Cross
Currency Swap) hedges with Morgan Stanley, with the aim of covering both notional credit and interest from subsidiaries. The instrument was contracted for an amount equivalent to $40 million, at an exchange rate of $19.00 pesos
per dollar, at a fixed rate in pesos of 9.36%; starting May 21, 2020 and a due date on February 21, 2023.
On June 1, 2020, Crédito Real contracted a financial instrument derived from Cross Currency Swap with Morgan
Stanley, with the aim of covering both notional credit and interest from subsidiaries. The instrument was contracted
for an amount equivalent to $20 million, at an exchange rate of $22.00 pesos per dollar, at a fixed rate in pesos of
8.62%; staring May 21, 2020 and a due date on February 21, 2023.

140

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

CRÉDITO REAL
TODAY

RESILIENCE

TRANSFORMATION

LEADERSHIP

COLLABORATION

FOCUS

For accounting purposes, the Entity has designated this derivative financial instrument as cash flow hedge, recording
changes in the fair value of the derivative in another comprehensive result and reclassifying any ineffective amounts
and the respective amounts in the statement of income when the covered cash flows are projected.

COMMITMENT

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

RECOGNITIONS

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

The periods in which derivative cash flows are expected to occur in the syndicated line coverage ratio and have an
impact on the statement of income are as follows:
YE AR		

CCS FEATURES

MORGAN STANLEY ID WDUVU

Currency B:

Dollar (USD)

$

(6,981)		

$

51,649		

Mexican Pesos (MXN)
Morgan Stanley

Forced to pay fixed rate for currency amounts B:

CR

CR

May 19, 2020

June 01, 2020

N/A

N/A

May 21, 2020

May 21, 2020

February 21, 2023

February 21, 2023

Currency Reference Amount A:

$ 40,000

$ 20,000

Currency Reference Amount B:

MXN $760,000

MXN $440,000

$19.00 MXN for USD

$22.00 MXN for USD

USD–LIBOR–BBA

USD–LIBOR–BBA

3.75%

3.75%

Up-to-date/360

Up-to-date/360

Every 90 days from

Every 90 days

Expiration date:

Floating rate for amounts in currency A:
Spread

Date of payment currency A:

May 21, 2020

from 21 2020

Currency settlement date A:

N/A

N/A

Currency settlement date B:

Every 28 days,

Every 28 days,

from May 21 2020

from May 21 2020

Floating rate for amounts in currency B:
Spread currency B:

9.36%

8.62%

Up-to-date/360

Up-to-date/360

MXN market value (thousands)

$

27,630

Market value USD (thousands)

$

1,388

$

(2,308)

MXN collateral

$

–

$

–

(351)
2,594

On 30 April 2020, the Royal Credit contracted a cross currency swap financial instrument with BNP Paribas, with the
aim of covering both the notional and interest of the line of credit contracted with the same counterparty. The instrument was contracted for an amount equivalent to $50 million, at an exchange rate of $24,0450 pesos per dollar, at a
variable rate of TIIE plus spread; April 24, 2020 and a due date on April 23, 2021.

Fraction for the day count applicable to the fixed rate for
amounts in currency A:

(1,487)

Second line of Syndicated Credit due 2021 BNP (figures expressed in thousands)
The Entity uses derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes to manage exchange rate risks at interest rate
and principal fluctuations as well as the interest rate applicable to the line of credit contracted with BNP Paribas in
the amount of USD $50,000 on April 24, 2020, which will be payable on April 24, 2021 at the monthly Libor rate plus
4.5%, with an initial exchange rate of 24,0450.

Exchange rate used to calculate the reference
amount in currency:

(29,608)		

2023

Morgan Stanley

Exchange reference amount in both currencies:

$

2022

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Starting date:

USD DOLL AR

Dollar (USD)

Forced to pay fixed rate for currency amounts to:
Date of concertation:

PESOS

MORGAN STANLEY ID WFQC4

2021
		
Currency A:

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

FINANCIAL
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For accounting purposes, the Entity has designated this derivative financial instrument as cash flow hedge, recording
changes in the fair value of the derivative in another comprehensive result and reclassifying any ineffective amounts
and the respective amounts in the income statement when the covered cash flows are projected. affect the results
of the year.

$ (45,949)

CCS FEATURES

BNP PARIBAS MD23424649

Currency A:

Dollar (USD)

Currency B:

Pesos Mexicanos (MXN)

Required to pay variable interest rate amounts in currency A:

BNP Paribas

Required to pay variable interest rate amounts in currency A:

CR

Transaction Date:
Reference transaction amount in both currencies:

As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of financial derivatives for the syndicated hedging ratio is MXP $18,319
(equivalent to $920), which was recorded as a liability against the supplementary account of total equity with the
effect of the period through comprehensive income. The effect as of December 31, 2020 recognized on equity is an
MXP $ debit (15,060) (equivalent to USD $ (756)), and the effect to the brokerage result as interest loss and cumulative exchange rate effect is MXP $3,258 (equivalent to $164).

N/A

Start date:

April 24, 2020

Expiration date:

April 23, 2021

Currency Amount A:
Currency A:
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BNP PARIBAS MD23424649

Currency B:

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Required to pay variable interest rate amounts in currency A:

FOCUS

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

RECOGNITIONS

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

amount equivalent to 25 millions of dollars, at an average exchange rate of $21.70 pesos per dollar, at a fixed rate on
September 30, 2020 and a due date on October 2, 2023.
For accounting purposes, the Entity has designated this derivative financial instrument as cash flow hedging, recording changes in the fair value of the derivative in other comprehensive results and reclassifying any ineffective and
respective reclassifications in the statement of income when the covered cash flows affect results.

BNP Paribas

Over-rate

COMMITMENT

4.50%

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the variable or
fixed rate for amounts in currency A:

Up-to-date/360

Currency payment Date A:

Every 90 days, from April 24, 2020
N/A

Currency payment date B:

Every 28 days, from 24, 2020

Variable or fixed interest rate for currency B:

TIIE + 4.83%

$ (210,209)

Merchandise value USD (thousands)

$

(10,559)

Collateral MXN

$

–

Currency A:

Dollars (USD)

Currency B:

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

in currency A:

Up-to-date/360

MXN market value (thousands)

DEUTSCHE BANK ID CL211658M

Required to pay variable interest rate amounts

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the variable or
fixed rate for amounts in the currency B:

CCS FEATURES

Deutsch Bank

Required to pay fixed interest rate amounts
in the currency B:
Transaction Date:

CR
October 2, 2020

Reference transaction amount in both currencies:

As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the aforementioned financial derivatives for the syndicated hedging ratio is
MXP $ (210,209) (equivalent to USD $ (10,559)), which was registered as a liability from the supplementary accounting capital account with the effect of the period through comprehensive income. The effect as of December 31, 2020
recognized on equity is an MXP debit $(3,970) (equivalent to USD $ (199), and the effect to the brokerage result as
interest loss and cumulative exchange rate effect is MXP$ (206,239) (equivalent to USD $ (10,359)).

Start date:
Expiration date:

N/A
September 30, 2020
October 2, 2023

Currency Amount A:

$ 25,000

Currency Amount B:

MXN $542,500

Fixed rate for the amount in currency B for the first period:

$21.70 MXN for USD

Variable interest rate for currency A:

N/A

Margin
YE AR

2021

PESOS

$

USD DOLL AR

(3,970)		

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the fixed rate for

6.30%
Up-to-date/360, bi

amounts in foreign currency A:

(199)

Payment dates A currency A:

Biannual beginning on
March 30, 2021

Responsability line of credit due 2021 BNP (figures expressed in thousands)
The Entity uses derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes to manage risks related to the interest
exchange rate and the principal of the line of credit contracted with Responsability in the amount of USD $25,000 on
September 30, 2020. This credit will be payable on October 2, 2023 at the rate of 6.3% and with an initial exchange
rate of 21.7000.

Currency settlement date A:

N/A

Currency payment dates B:

Every 28 days, starting on

On 2 October 2020, Crédito Real contracted a cross currency financial swap instrument with Deutsche Bank, with
the aim of covering both the notional and interest of a dollar line of credit. The instrument was contracted for an

MXN market value (thousands)

$

(44,346)

Market value USD (thousands)

$

(2,227)

MXN Warranty

$

–

October 30, 2020
Variable or fixed interest rate for currency B:

11.03%

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the variable or
fixed rate for amounts in currency B:
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As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the aforementioned financial derivatives for the syndicated hedging ratio is
MXP $ (44,346 (equivalent to USD $ (2,227)), which was registered as a liability from the supplementary accounting
capital account with the effect of the period through comprehensive income. The effect as of December 31, 2020
recognized on equity is an MXP debit $(7,577) (equivalent to USD$ (311), and the effect to the brokerage result as
interest loss and cumulative exchange rate effect is MXP$ (36,769) (equivalent to USD $ (1,847)).
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RECOGNITIONS

CCS FEATURES

PESOS

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

BARCLAYS ID 9012568

BNP ID MD24273999

		
Currency A:

Dollars (USD)

Dollars (USD)

Currency B:

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Required to pay variable interest rate amounts in currency A:

Barclays

BNP

Required to pay fixed interest rate amounts in the currency B:

CR

CR

October 1, 2020

October 1, 2020

N/A

N/A

Starting date:

September 28, 2020

September 28, 2020

December 28, 2021

December 28, 2021

Transaction Date:
YE AR

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

Reference transaction amount in both currencies:

USD DOLL AR

2021

$

(68,476)		

(3,439)

Expiration date:

2022

$

(69,197)		

(3,476)

Currency settlement date A:

$ 25,000

$ 25,000

2023

$

130,096		

6,535

Currency settlement date B:

MXN $546,000

MXN $545,750

Barclays ID 9012568

BNP ID MD24273999

USD

USD

Variable interest rate for currency A:

Libor

Libor

Margin:

5.00%

5.00%

Up-to-date/360

Up-to-date/360

Biannual, beginning

Biannual, beginning

CCS Features
Fixed rate for the amount in currency B

Barclays credit line due 2021 BNP (figures expressed in thousands)
The Entity uses derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes to manage exchange rate risks at interest rate
and principal fluctuations, as well as the interest rate applicable to the line of credit contracted with Barclays for an
amount of USD $50,000. This line was contracted on September 28, 2020 and will be payable on December 28, 2021
at the Libor 3M rate plus on a rate of 5.0%, with an average exchange rate of 21.84.

for the first period:

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the fixed rate for
amounts in foreign currency A:
Payment dates A currency A:

On October 1, 2020, Crédito Real contracted two financial instruments derived from exchange rate and interest rate
(Cross Currency Swap) coverage with Barclays and BNP Paribas, with the aim of covering both the notional and interest of a dollar line of credit. The instruments were contracted for an amount equivalent to $50 million, at an average
exchange rate of $21.84 pesos per dollar, where it receives a Libor 3M rate plus 5% surcharge and pays an average
fixed rate in MXN of 9.61%. They have a starting date on September 28, 2020 and an expiration date of December
28, 2021.

December 28, 2020

December 28, 2020

Currency settlement date A:

N/A

N/A

Currency payment dates B:

Every 28 days, starting

Every 28 days, starting

October 28, 2020

October 28, 2020

Variable or fixed interest rate for currency B:
Fraction for the count of days applicable to the variable or

9.63%

9.60%

Up-to-date/360

Up-to-date/360

$ (51,893)

$ (51,634)

fixed rate for amounts in currency B:

For accounting purposes, the Entity has designated these derivative financial instruments as cash flow hedging,
recording changes in the fair value of the derivative in another comprehensive result and reclassifying any ineffective
and respective reclassifications in the statement of income when the covered cash flows affect results.

MXN market value (thousands)
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Market value USD (thousands)

$

(2,606)

$

(2,594)

MXN Warranty

$

–

$

–
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As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the aforementioned financial derivatives for the syndicated hedging ratio is
MXP $ (103,527) (equivalent to USD $ (5,200)), which was registered as a liability from the supplementary accounting
capital account with the effect of the period through comprehensive income. The effect as of December 31, 2020
recognized on equity is an MXP $ debit (6,998) (equivalent to USD $ (351), and the effect to the brokerage result as
interest loss and cumulative exchange rate effect is MXP $(96,350) (equivalent to USD $ (4,840)).
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CCS FEATURES

PESOS

$

USD DOLL AR

(6,998)		

DEUTSCHE BANK ID CL545502M

CITIBANAMEX ID WFQC4

Currency A:

Suns (PEN)

Dollars (USD)

Currency B:

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Mexican Pesos (MXN)

Required to pay variable interest rate amounts in currency A:

Deutsche Bank

Citibanamex

Required to pay fixed interest rate amounts in the currency B:

CR

CR

December 2, 2020

December 2, 2020

N/A

N/A

Reference transaction amount in both currencies:
Expiration date:

2021

2020
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FINANCIAL
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Transaction Date:
YE AR

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

(287)

February 21, 2023

February 21, 2023

Currency settlement date A:

PEN 65,000

USD 7,500

Currency settlement date B:

MXN $358,020

MXN $148,151

$5.5080 MXN

$19.7535 MXN

Fixed rate for the amount of currency B

Credit Suisse credit line due 2023 (figures expressed in thousands)
The Entity uses derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes to manage exchange rate risks at interest rate
and principal fluctuations, as well as the interest rate applicable to the line of credit contracted with Barclays in the
amount of USD $25,524 on December 2, 2020, which will be payable on February 21, 2023 at the Libor 3M rate plus
over 7.0% rate.

per PEN

per USD

Variable interest rate for currency A:

for the first period:

Fixed

Libor

Margin

7.65%

7.00%

Fraction for the count of days applicable to the fixed
rate for amounts in foreign currency A:

Current/360

Current/360

Quarterly beginning on

Half-yearly beginning on

February 21, 2021

February 21, 2021

Currency settlement date A:

N/A

N/A

Currency payment dates B:

Every 28 days, beginning on

Every 28 days, beginning on

December 21, 2020

December 21, 2020

11.83%

11.75%

Currency payment dates A:

In December 2020, Crédito Real contracted two financial instruments derived from Exchange Rate and Interest Rate
(Cross Currency Swap) coverage with Citibanamex and Deutsche Bank, with the aim of covering both the notional
and interest of a line of credit arranged in Peruvian dollars and suns. The instrument was contracted for an amount
equivalent to $25 million ($7.5 million dollars and 65 million Peruvian suns) with a starting date on December 2, 2020
and due date on February 21, 2023. The derivative in Peruvian suns with Deutsche Bank is at a fixed rate while the
dollar derivative with Citibanamex is at Libor3M rate plus surcharge of 7%.

Variable or fixed interest rate for currency B:
Fraction for the count of days applicable to the variable or
fixed rate for amounts in currency B:

For accounting purposes, the Entity has designated these derivative financial instruments as cash flow hedging,
recording changes in the fair value of the derivative in another comprehensive result and reclassifying any ineffective
and respective reclassifications in the statement of income when the covered cash flows affect results.
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Current/360

Current/360

Market value MXN (thousands)

$

338

$

1,367

Market value USD (thousands)

$

16

$

69

MXN warranty

$

–

$

–
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Foreign currency sensitivity

As of December 31, 2020, the fair value of the aforementioned financial derivatives for the hedging ratio for the
syndicated line is MXP $1,705 (equivalent to USD $85), which was registered as an asset with a credit to the
supplementary accounting capital account with the effect of the period through comprehensive income. The effect as of December 31, 2020 recognized on the estate is an MXP $ (428) (equivalent to USD $ (21), and the
effect to the brokerage result as interest gain and cumulative exchange rate effect is MXP $2,133 (equivalent to
USD $107).

YE AR

COMMITMENT

Hedging derivatives fair value		

USD DOLL AR

+1 exchange rate		

Foreign currency swap		

528,136.4		

(122,865.1)

Primary position		

(528,137.6)		

122,866.2

Level of effectiveness		

(100.0)%		

Cash flow hedge derivatives		

+1 exchange rate		

Foreign currency swap		

(100.0)%
-1 exchange rate

3,247,823.7		

2021

$

(55,163)		

(2,771)

Primary position		

(3,247,681.5)		

2022

$

(55,739)		

(2,800)

Level of effectiveness		

(100.0)%		

2023

$

110,474		

5,549

Foreign currency option		

Securitized portfolio
The Entity has a securitized portfolio in two trusts whose purpose is to mitigate the account rate risk with hedge
derivatives with a balance sheet valuation of $(1) at the end of 2020.

-1 exchange rate

(1,267,979.1)
1,268,108.0
(100.0)%

403,700.7		

Primary position		

(403,700.7)		

Level of effectiveness		

(100.0)%		

188,539.3
(188,539.3)
(100.0)%

Interest rate sensitivity of interest rate
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Nature and degree of risks arising from the derivatives
As of December 31, 2020, the exchange rates are $19.9087 Mexican Peso per U.S. dollar and $22.5267 Mexican
Peso per Swiss franc and $24.3593 Mexican peso per Euro. In order to mitigate the volatility of the exchange rate,
Crédito Real has entered into several hedging strategies described below.

Cash flow hedge derivatives		+100 bp interest rate		-100 bp interest rate

The risks associated with variations in the USD/MXP exchange rates arise from the instruments that are denominated
in foreign currency such as Senior Notes 2023, Senior Notes 2026, Syndicated Line and the Perpetual Notes. The
interest rate risk arises from foreign currency instruments at fixed rates and of local instruments at a variable rate like
the Senior Notes, 2023, Syndicated Line, and Perpetual Notes. The risk associated with variations in the CH and EUR/
MXP exchange rates arises from the instruments held in EUR such as the Senior Notes 2027.

Interest rate swap		

(193,685.5)		

Primary position		

193,685.5		

Level of effectiveness		

(100.0)%		

(370,177.7)
370,177.7
(100.0)%

interest rate option		

0.0 		

0.0

Primary position		

(0.0)		

0.0

Level of effectiveness		

(100.0)%		

(100.0)%

If any of the sensitivity scenarios detailed in the above table actually arise, the losses generated by derivative instruments held

Sensitivity analysis
The Entity performed a sensitivity analysis to foresee situations that could result in extraordinary losses regarding the
valuation of the derivative financial instruments composing its position at the end of December 2020.

for trading purposes and fair value hedges will directly affect the statement of income, while cash flow hedges will affect the
Entity’s equity.

Maturity analysis
A derivative sensitivity analysis is performed by considering the following elements:

Below is an analysis of the future obligations of the financial derivatives. Please note that even though the foreign currency
swaps represent active positions as of December 31, 2020, the Entity elects to present the undiscounted future flows which

Estimate the surplus value or shortfall of the securities valuation in the event of:
• An increase of +1 peso in the MXN/USD exchange rate
• A decrease of -1 in the MXN/USD exchange rate
• An increase of +100 interest rate basis points
• A decrease of -100 interest rate basis points

represent a liability according to their maturity.

Foreign currency swaps
Interest rate swaps
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2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

(1,739)

(580)

(293)

(37)

(754)

(323)

56

(119)

(118)

(58)

–

–

–

–
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7. LOAN PORTFOLIO
As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the loan portfolio was comprised as follows:

				

2020		

2019		

2019

2018

Commercial loans:

$

35,406,107

$

34,963,897

$

26,398,198

Performing loans

$

34,356,239

$

34,620,081

$

26,090,647

Non-performing loans

$

1,049,868

$

343,817

$

307,551

PERFORMING
LOANS

$

12,103,823

Performing loans

$

Non-performing loans

$
$

		Loan portfolio

$

11,994,523

$

9,920,917

11,564,607

$

539,216

$

11,705,622

$

9,610,913

288,901

$

310,004

47,509,931

$

46,958,420

$

36,319,116

$

2,031,581

$

1,390,046

$

1,067,924

Loan portfolio, net

$

45,478,350

$

45,568,374

$

35,251,192

$

Interest		
			

19,377,102

$

44,847

$

19,421,948

15,242,979 		

298,970 		

15,541,949

$

34,620,081

$

343,817

$

34,963,897

$

6,961,652

$

170,706

$

Consumer loans:
Principal

Less – Allowance for loan losses

TOTAL

Commercial loans:
Principal

Consumer loans:

NON-PERFORMING
LOANS

Interest		
			

$

4,743,970 		
11,705,622

$

118,195 		
288,901

$

7,132,358
4,862,165
11,994,523

As of December 31, the integration of the portfolio by principal and interest is as follows:
						
PERFORMING
LOANS

2020

2018

NON-PERFORMING
LOANS

PERFORMING
LOANS

TOTAL

Commercial loans:
Principal

$

17,987,095

$

16,369,144		

1,016,006

$

19,003,101

Principal

338,612		 16,403,005

$

Interest		

$

29,373

$

12,404,975

278,178 		

13,993,223

$

26,090,647

$

307,551

$

26,398,198

$

6,170,805

$

182,274

$

6,353,079

34,356,239

$

1,049,868

$

35,406,107

$

6,356,326

$

313,808

$

6,670,134

Principal

5,433,689

Interest		

			

12,375,602

13,715,045 		

$

Consumer loans:
Principal

TOTAL

Commercial loans:

Interest
			

NON-PERFORMING
LOANS

Consumer loans:
5,208,281 		

Interest

225,408 		

3,440,108 		

127,730 		

3,567,838

9,610,913

310,004

9,920,917

			
			

$

11,564,607

$

539,216

$

12,103,823
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PERFORMING
LOANS

Interest accrued by the trading portfolio as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 was $16,266,828, $15,541,949
and $13,993,223 respectively.

Commercial loans

$
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NON-PERFORMING
LOANS

471,736

$

Consumer loans		

6,404,556		

			

6,876,292

19,996

TOTAL

$

86,275		

491,732
6,490,831

Restricted Loan portfolio						
PERFORMING
LOANS

Commercial loans

$

1,875,004

NON-PERFORMING
LOANS

$

–

11,013,163		

Consumer loans

$

$

12,888,167

Commercial loans

$

Consumer loans		
			

$

1,890,894

129,137

$

1,875,004

REL ATED PART Y 		
2020		
2019		
2018

$

13,017,304

$

7,728,574

$

$

TOTAL

3,617,391		 3,450,723		 2,030,484
–		

–		

977,007

Fideicomiso 4217

1,566,365		 1,141,990		

–

Financiera maestra		

6,504,970		 7,145,785		 8,235,540

Publiseg		
4,526,617		 4,394,984		 3,918,154

151,200 		

10,017,770

Fondo H		

151,200

11,908,664

			

$

$

$

426,694		
25,379,981

2019

2018

		

PERCENTAGE OF		

PERCENTAGE OF		

PERCENTAGE OF

CONCENTR ATION

CONCENTR ATION

CONCENTR ATION

38,056,730		 80%

TOTAL

$

40,174,092		 86%

TOTAL

$

United States of America

3,622,290		 7%		

1,697,040		

Central America

5,830,710		12%		

5,087,288		 11%		

$

44,779

1,009,370		 1,181,831		 1,119,489

COUNTRY

Total

–		

1,890,894

–

2020

$

6,617,083

Fideicomiso 3200

As of December 31, the concentration analysis of the personal credit portfolio, by Entity, Region or Agency in aggregate form, is as follows:

Mexico

$

Usa inc.		

Concentration risk analysis

TOTAL

8,074,167

–		

Fideicomiso 3670		

NON-PERFORMING
LOANS

$

Instacredit		
–		 5,755,105		 5,045,889

2019

9,866,570		
11,757,464

6,982,563

Loans to related parties

Controladora CR		

PERFORMING
LOANS

$

129,137		 11,142,300

$

					

106,271

TOTAL

Directodo México
			

$

2020

47,509,730		100%

$

4%		

46,958,420		 100%

147

$

31,376,392		 86%
824,536		

2%

4,118,188		 11%
36,319,116		100%

$

978,432		
32,123,017

$

865,323
28,853,748
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Loan portfolio age
As of December 31, the age of portfolio balances is as follows:
2020
		 COMMERCIAL

0 to 29 days

$

32,632,117

2019

CONSUMER

$

30 to 59 days

1,295,412		

60 to 89 days

428,710		

TOTAL

11,537,083

$

COMMERCIAL

44,169,200

$

CONSUMER

33,082,943

$

11,685,277

19,587		 1,314,999		 1,023,135		
7,937		

436,647		

2018

514,003		

TOTAL

$

44,768,220

COMMERCIAL

$

14,918		 1,038,053		
5,427		

519,430		

CONSUMER

24,302,356

$

TOTAL

9,605,245

$

33,907,600

920,108		

4,182		 924,290

868,183		

1,486		 869,669

		

$

34,356,239

$

11,564,607

$

45,920,846

$

34,620,081

$

11,705,622

$

46,325,703

$

26,090,647

$

9,610,913

$

35,701,560

90 to 119 days

$

878,119

$

535,688

$

1,413,807

$

167,613

$

286,240

$

453,854

$

118,582

$

309,394

$

427,976

171,749		

120 to 180 days
		

$

1,049,868

$

3,527		
539,216

$

171,749		
1,585,557

$

176,204		
343,817

Movements

$

Transfers from performing to nonperforming loans
Non-performing loans transferred to performing loans
Repayments and applications to the allowance for loan losses
			

288,901

$

178,863		

188,969		

632,717

307,551

$

$

610		 189,579
310,004

$

617,556

As of December 31, the movements submitted by the overdue credit portfolio are integrated as follows:

				
Non-performing loans portfolio at the beginning of the year

$

2,660		

$

2020		
632,717

$

2019		
617,556

$

For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Entity did not make write-offs, bankruptcy or applications of credits granted to related parties that consequently involved the disposal of the corresponding assets.

2018
447,400

Fees and fees charged per consolidated product - Commissions and fees charged for consolidated product are
integrated as of December 31 as follows:

1,660,166		

368,105		

507,380

62,263		

30,822		

33,385

641,536		

322,122		

303,840

				

632,717

617,555

Consumer loans

1,589,084

$

$
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$

2020		

2019		

2018

8,670

8,833

3,023

$

$

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

CRÉDITO REAL
TODAY

RESILIENCE

TRANSFORMATION

LEADERSHIP

COLLABORATION

FOCUS

COMMITMENT

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

RECOGNITIONS

ABOUT THIS
REPORT

Financiera maestra

Credit control policy and procedure - During the term of the credit it is necessary to integrate and maintain a credit file
for each credit transaction held even when they are due. Credit files shall be available at all times for consultation for
staff who have the power to do so, as well as the relevant authorities.
Policy and procedure for credit recovery - The credit recovery process covers preventive and corrective actions in
order to carry out procedures that allow the client to comply with the obligations contracted and restore the resources
granted under a credit or loan, plus the accessories generated during the life of the credit for administrative recovery
procedures.

Directodo
		

$

PAID OUT

1,223,019

$

1,223,019

Publiseg		

1,261,284		

1,261,284

Directodo		

2,368,471		

2,368,471

		

4,852,774

4,852,774

$

$

NOMINAL

TOTAL PRICE

AMOUNT

PAID OUT

$

2,599,013

$

2,599,013

Publiseg		

1,127,321		

1,127,321

Directodo		

2,303,782		

2,303,782

		

6,030,116

6,030,116

$

$

8. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

2020

Publiseg

TOTAL PRICE

AMOUNT

$

Financiera maestra

As of December 31, the Entity made payroll credit portfolio purchases to related entities engaged in credit generation
as shown below:

NOMINAL

TOTAL PRICE

AMOUNT

PAID OUT

1,020,842

NOMINAL

2018

Policy and procedure for identifying concentration of credit risks - Concentration risk is an essential element of risk
management. Where the debtor, accredited or counterparty belongs to a group of persons representing a common
risk to the institution, both the credit study and the dossier shall be identified as such, indicating the Common Risk
group to which it belongs.

$

2020
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

2019

Policy and procedure for granted credit - The Entity prepares credit studies that prove the ability to guarantee payment
of its obligations of the applicant companies, as well as an adequate credit history. The outcome of that analysis will
serve as the basis for the authorization or rejection of the application before the empowered body.

Financiera maestra

FINANCIAL
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$

				

1,020,842

899,065		

899,065

1,507,792		

1,507,792

3,427,699

3,427,699

$

As of December 31 the allowance for loan losses is as follows:

Performing portfolio

$

Non performing portfolio		
		Total

$

2020		
1,955,204

$

76,377		
2,031,581

$

2019		
1,341,258

$

48,788		
1,390,046

$

2018
1,019,722
48,202
1,067,924

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Entity maintained a preventive estimate for credit risks equivalent
to 3.76%, 3.51% and 4.51%, respectively of the overdue portfolio.
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The preventive estimate resulting from the qualification of the portfolio as of December 31, is comprised as follows:

Personal loans (consumer loans)
2020
R ATING

A–1

2019

LOAN PORTFOLIO

$

ALLOWANCE

603,217

A–2		

$

2018

LOAN PORTFOLIO

4,874

$

ALLOWANCE

632,614

78,318		

2,060		

$

LOAN PORTFOLIO

3,658

55,857		

$

ALLOWANCE

331,568

$

2,286

1,429		

24,361		

752

B–1		 2,236,530		

65,873		

2,508,374		

74,883		

1,387,866		

38,106

B–2		 1,143,568		

47,445		

1,310,322		

54,276		

743,815		

31,142

135,598		

7,492		

130,564		

7,167		

110,436		

6,169

C–1		 1,537,068		

104,557		

1,057,893		

69,801		

989,388		

65,425

B–3		

457,900		

48,747		

440,333		

46,454		

452,606		

46,755

D		

505,566		

127,044		

622,459		

149,620		

635,580		

149,063

E		

795,055		

504,327		

674,232		

396,562		

634,997		

336,658

C–2		

Total

$

7,492,820

$

912,419

$

7,432,648

$

803,850

$

5,310,617

$

676,356

Commercial Loans
2020
R ATING

A–1

2019

LOAN PORTFOLIO

$

1,588,927

ALLOWANCE

$

A–2		 12,449,253		

2018

LOAN PORTFOLIO

11,926

$

160,685		

ALLOWANCE

2,389,111

$

LOAN PORTFOLIO

16,035

$

4,749,306		

52,037		

1,272,805

ALLOWANCE

$

3,045,937		

10,620
35,194

B–1		 6,638,122		

111,035		

8,619,694		

143,277		

956,832		

15,698

B–2		 10,598,463		

245,035		

6,485,980		

140,009		

12,360,912		

273,388

8,937,186		

75,642		

3,521,349		

113,967		

70,000		

1,129

C–1		 2,775,199		

182,995		

11,363,572		

300,935		

1,976,942		

77,387

C–2		 1,551,253		

179,754		

631,228		

72,207		

79,071		

8,046

D		 3,657,310		

917,238		

244,647		

51,883		

7,380,226		

147,699

2,400		

2,400		

–		

–		

59,871		

20,609

B–3		

E
Total

$

48,198,113

$

1,886,710

$

38,004,887

$
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890,350

$

27,202,596

$

589,770
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Below is the movement of the allowance for credit risks for the year ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018:
				
Beginning balance

$

2020		
1,390,046

2019		

$

1,067,924

$
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a. As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, other accounts receivable from distributors were as follows:

2018

				

1,067,550

Interest accrued in advance period

$

2020		
193,641

$

2019		
297,333

$

2018
200,518

Provisions of the year

2,112,645		 1,574,582		 1,800,734

Advances to distributors

3,767,697		 2,848,563		 2,311,271

Charge-offs/ Applications (1)

1,471,110		 1,252,460		 1,800,360

Joint and several liability of the distributor

1,274,502		 1,390,566		

Other debts

1,820,638		 1,480,324		 1,524,839

Year-end balance

$

2,031,581

$

1,390,046

$

509,708

1,067,924
Total

$

7,056,478

$

6,016,786

$

4,546,336

The provision for the year as of December 31 was as follows:
				
Provisions

$

2,598,775

$

2019		
1,843,476

486,130 		

Recoveries
Year-end provision

2020		

$

$2,112,645

$

$

268,894 		
1,574,582

$

b.	As of December 31, 2020, the main increase in other receivables is due to the guarantee for the portfolio purchase
with FAMSA for $ 141,497 and an advance to FAMSA for $. 50,000 and accounts receivable from subsidiaries for
$ 627,783. The amount corresponding to rents receivable from operating leases was $236,601.

2018
2,061,134

c. Corresponds to financial factoring operations entered by the subsidiary CReal Arrendamiento.

260,400
1,800,734

10. FORECLOSED ASSETS, NET
9. OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, it integrates as follows:

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, other accounts receivable were as follows:
				

2020		

				
2019		

2018

Real estate (a)

$

Furniture (b)
Other accounts receivable from distributors (a)

$

7,056,478

$

280,313

Value added tax (VAT) receivable

6,016,786

$

35,449		

			

4,546,336

1,323,352

$

2019		
–

$

2018
–

21,020		

10,774		

10,510

1,344,372		

10,774		

10,510

37,380

Factoring Operations (c)

692,833		

–		

–

Recoverable income tax

261,913		

343,920		

304,821

(1,313)		

Less - Impairment estimate of goods awarded

1,173,981		 405,233		
493,521
Other debtors (b)		

		Total

$

1,343,059

$

–		
10,774

$

–
10,510

9,465,518		 6,801,388		 5,382,058

			

(86,210)		

Allowance for other accounts receivable
			

2020		

$

9,379,308

$

(4,478)		
6,796,910

$

(3,256)

During 2020 the Entity awarded $1,343,059, and during this period it made sale of goods awarded for $3,393 registered under the account of other income in the statement of income. As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, no
expenses have been incurred on real estate in order to put them on sale.

5,378,802
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12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, property, furniture and fixtures are as follows:

		
BUILDINGS

			

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

2020		

USEFUL LIFE (YE ARS)

Building (a)

10

Office Furniture and fixtures

10

$

159,724

$

2019		
189,452

$

347,186

Machinery

5

1,327,281		

–		

–

Computers

3

177,389		

191,560		

202,305

Transportation equipment

4

2,533,992		

89,847		

20,350

January 1, 2020

$

189,452

Contracts executed during 2020 		
Balances as of December 31, 2020

$

$

–		
189,452

$

144,313

$

6,908

–		
144,313

$

340,673

2,364		

$

9,272

$

2,365
343,038

Accumulated depreciation:
Balances at the beginning of 2020

				
				

TOTAL

Initial recognition at the beginning of

–

357,614		

COMPUTER
EQUIPMENT

Investment:

2018

294,194		

TR ANSPORTATION, OFFICE
FURNIT URE AND FIX T URES

$

4,492,580

$

828,473

$

Depreciation of the year		

569,841

(31,540)		

(34,700)		

(1,119)		

(67,359)

(31,540)		

(34,700)		

(1,119)		

(67,359)

157,912

109,613

8,153

Accumulated depreciation as of
December 31, 2020		
Less - Accumulated depreciation		

$

(1,436,428)

$

(496,007)

$

(256,490)

3,056,152		

332,466		

313,351

Balances as of December 31, 2020

625,682		

362,143		

128,501

Less – Accumulated amortization		

(169,599)		

(69,283)		

(100,399)

As of December 31, 2020, the Entity recorded expenses in results for the amount of $6,069 in relation to short-term,
low-value leases, that were not included in the lease liability valuation.

				

456,083		

292,860		

				
Installation expenses

20 and 10

				

$

3,512,235

$

625,326

$

$

$

$

$

275,679

28,102
a) As of December 31, 2020 the entity recorded expenses in results for the 12 months of 2020 as follows:

341,453

						

TOTAL

(a) D uring 2019, the Entity adopted the NIF D-5 Leases, the effects of such adoption, are presented below so that the
Interest expense derived from lease liabilities					

rights of use for leased assets are presented as part of the Property, furniture and fixtures.

$

Depreciation of right-of-use assets expense						

23,592
67,359

Expense derived from lease contracts with a term of less
than one year and low-value assets						
					$

152
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97,020
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13. INVESTMENT IN SHARES OF ASSOCIATES
As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, investments in shares of associates are as follows:
		
		
ENTIT Y

% OWNERSHIP
2020, 2019 AND 2018

CARRYING AMOUNT

OWNERSHIP IN RESULTS

		
2020
2019
$

520,876

2020

2018

Publiseg, S.A.P.I. de C.V. SOFOM (a)

49.00%

Grupo Empresarial Maestro S.A. de C.V. (a)

49.00%		
501,254		

524,772		

546,367

Bluestream Capital, S.A. de C.V. (b)

23.00%		 (334)		

4,722		

4,666

Cege Capital, S.A.P.I. de C.V., SOFOM ENR (c)

36.30%		
85,377		

74,419		

137,116		

163,583		

Others (Camino Financial INC., Anticipa, Confianza Digital)

–		

$

506,061

$

		
$
1,244,289
$
1,273,557
$

484,852

$

2019
14,815

$

2018
25,875

30,371		

$

33,446

67,408		

109,298

56		

1,544

(5,057)

96,407		

10,520		

(28,998)		

333

61,120

47,089		

(1,140)		

10,094

1,193,412

$

97,738

$

63,201

$

154,715

14. OTHER ASSETS

(a) Directodo, Publiseg, and Grupo Empresarial Maestro, are the Entity’s principal distributors, and their origination

efforts are performed exclusively for the Entity. As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, these companies have
cooperation agreements executed with different unions around the country, including several chapters of the
National Education Workers’ Union, the National Social Security Workers’ Union, the Union of the Federal Public
Education Department and the Health Workers’ Union. Their operations began in 2006, 2005 and 2002, respectively, and their work forces have a nationwide presence and they have over 342 branches.

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, other assets were as follows:
				
Goodwill (a)

(b) B y unanimous resolutions adopted at stockholders’ meeting held on January 14, 2014, the Entity subscribed and

$

(d) At the Extraordinary General Meeting of Stockholders held on December 17, 2015, the subscription and payment

176,302		

1,978,716
112,830

436,079		

150,993		

48,771

345,590		

340,125

2,858,503		 2,473,098		 2,480,442
80,642		

80,641		

80,641

Instacredit’s intangible assets

1,052,750		 1,052,750		 1,052,750

Directodo’s intangible assets

1,264,833		 1,263,680		 1,267,380

			

2,398,225		 2,397,071		 2,400,771
(55,118)		
4,399		

Guarantee
			

(51,086)		

(47,053)

2,343,107		 2,345,985		 2,353,718

			

153

$

589,094		

Accumulated amortization

of 100,000,000 Series “C” preferred shares was approved, which is part of the variable capital of Cege, which was
paid on December 29, 2014.

1,800,213

2018

Prepaid expenses (c)

Intangible asset branch network (d)

scription and payment of 245,000 no par value, Class I, Series “B” common shares of Cege, which accounts for
36.30% of Cege’s outstanding shares.

$

2019		

Other long and short term assets (b)

			
(c) In the Ordinary General Meeting of Stockholders held on March 31, 2014, the stockholders authorized the sub-

1,595,724

237,606		

Costs for issuance of securities and bank loans

paid 29,862 no par value, Class II common shares of Bluestream, which represent 23% of Bluestrem’s outstanding shares.

2020		

$

5,206,009

$

22,443		
4,841,526

$

8,333
4,842,493
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(b) T he other short- and long-term assets represent an inventory of 799 automobiles derived from consolidating the

2014, based on the carrying amount and the price paid.

figures with Creal Dallas; the balance at the end of December 2017 was $10,538 US dollars.

	The acquisition of 36.11% of Credilikeme implied the recognition of goodwill of $11,887 for 2015, based on the
carrying amount and the price paid.

(c) Is comprised of licenses acquired for the portfolio system and expenses incurred for the execution of the loan portfolio

	The acquisition of 55.21% of RTD implied the recognition of goodwill of $242,288 for 2015, based on the carrying
amount and the price paid. By the end of December 2019, with the entry of 2 stockholders to RTD and by the sale
of 21,692 shares of RTD, and our participation was diluted from 60 to 36.07%, as of December 31, 2019 a goodwill
of $ 208,997 was recognized. In December 2020, it was decided to sell the total equity of RTD and its service
companies, thus canceling with this transaction $ 177 million of goodwill, obtaining a profit from the overpricing
of $ 30 million for the sale.

(d) In a contract dated on December 26, 2006, between the Entity and Crediplus, S.A. de C.V. (an affiliated Entity), the

operation and acquisition agreement with Fondo H, which will be amortized during the life of the portfolio acquired.

Entity acquired Crediplus’ branch network, which originated and issued loans, as well as the know how developed
by Crediplus regarding its branch network. This know how consists of: (i) analyzing and studying markets (ii)
analyzing and studying customers; (iii) analyzing and studying demographic and socio-demographic profiles of
zones; (iv) analyzing and studying area flows; (v) analyzing and studying backgrounds of zones; (vi) analyzing and
studying competition; (vii) designing branches internally and externally; (viii) preparing operating and policies and
procedures manuals; (ix) developing and implementing advertising schemes, and (x) preparing market strategies.
The Entity also registered the Crediplus trademark and commercial advertisements with the Mexican Institute of
Industrial Property. Such intangible was defined by Management as having a definite life of 20 years, for which
reason it is being amortized over such term beginning on May 2007.

	The acquisition of 100% of CR-USA finance (formerly AFS Acceptance) implied the recognition of goodwill of
$99,412 for 2015, based on the carrying amount and the price paid.
	The acquisition of 70% of Marevalley resulted in the recognition of goodwill of $30,981 for 2016, in accordance
with the fair value and the purchase price paid.

15. INDEBTEDNESS
As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, indebtedness was comprised as follows:

INTEREST R ATE

Senior trust bonds
Senior Notes
Accrued interest expenses

E XPIR ATION DATE		

TIIE + 2.25% and 2.15%

Between November 2022 and October 2024

2.875%, 7.25%, 9.5% and 5%

Between February 2022 and February 2027

$

			

2020		
752,740

1,248,487

$

2018

1,431,729

27,395,534		 24,596,271		16,824,892
318,548		

Total			
$
28,466,822

As of December 31, 2020, there are two unsecured issuances of Senior Notes for $1,261,111. Both issuances were
classified by Fitch Ratings, which gave an “AAA (mex) ” rating, and by HR Ratings, which gave a “HR AAA (E)” rating,
both with a stable outlook.

$

2019		

$

52,954		 225,746
25,897,712

$

18,482,367

The first issuance was made on July 20, 2017, for USD $625 million, paying interest of 7.25% per year, halfyearly, on
January 20 and July 20 of each year until maturity on July 20, 2023. In October 2020, the Entity took the option to
partially prepay in advance, so the outstanding amount as of December 31, 2020 is USD $427 million. This issuance
was rated by Standard & Poor’s, which granted a long-term global rating of “BB+”, and by Fitch Ratings, which granted
a rating of “BB”.

Currently, the Entity has two issuances of Senior Notes, which are unsecured debt issued abroad for a total amount
of US $827 million.
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On October 1, 2019, the Entity made its debut on the Eurobond market with an issuance valued at EUR €350 million,
with interest payable half-yearly at the annual 5% rate on February 1 and August 1 of each year until reaching maturity
on February 1, 2027. This issuance was rated by Standard & Poor’s, which issued a longterm global rating of “BB+”,
while Fitch Ratings issued a rating of “BB+”

The second issuance was made on February 7, 2020, for $400 million, paying interest of 9.5% per year, on a six-monthly
basis, on February 7 and August 7 of each year until its expiration on February 7, 2026. This second issue was rated
by Standard & Poor’s, who awarded a long-term overall rating of “BB+” and Fitch Ratings, who awarded a “BB+” rating.
On February 2, 2018, the Entity successfully issued for the first time on the Swiss market, a CHF170 million bond,
paying interest at 2.875% per year, on February 2 of each year, until maturity on February 2, 2022. This issuance was
rated by Standard & Poor’s, who assigned a long-term global rating of “BB+”, and by Fitch Ratings, who assigned a
rating of “BB+”.

The securities were issued and placed according to Rule 144A Regulation S of the 1933 US Securities Act. Principal
will be payable at maturity or if these instruments are settled ahead of time.

16. BANK LOANS AND OTHER LOANS
As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, debt was comprised as follows:

R ATE

DATE OF MATURIT Y		

Bank Loans in MXN (a)

TIIE + spread

Between 2021 and 2024

Bank Loans in USD (b)

LIBOR + spread

Between 2021 and 2025

$

2020		
10,538,169

$

2019		
8,658,028

$

2018

6,553,913

10,770,086		 6,913,072		5,576,540
51,041 		

Accrued Interest			

42,385		

33,926

					
Total			
$
21,359,296

(a) A s of December 31, 2020, the Entity has bank loans guaranteed with portfolio for $12,135,731 and unsecured

$

			

bank loans for $9,831,456. Such lines were granted by 34 institutions to finance the growth of the loan portfolio
and increase working capital. The loans are granted by Mexican and foreign financial institutions widely recognized. The credit lines have maturity dates of between 90 days and four years and pay interest at a variable rate.

2021

15,613,485

AMOUNT

$

13,772,401

2022		8,673,224
2023		9,180,239

(b) A s of December 31, 2020, the Entity has six bank loans in foreign currency, three of them syndicated, for a total

2024		738,611

amount of USD $195 million and other three, for a total amount of USD $140 million. These loans pay interest
at a variable LIBOR rate plus percentage points. In addition, the subsidiaries have 14 loans amounted USD$222
million, which pay interest at both fixed and variable rates. Total loans in foreign currency represent $10,770,086
pesos, valued at the end of the year

2026		8,204,405
2027		8,887,648
Accrued interest		
Total

The maturities of the debt are as follows:

155

$

369,591
49,826,119

$

12,164,379
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$

2020		
154,158

$

2019		
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34,318

$

–

Liability for employee retirement obligations

86,734		

60,754		

36,838

Taxes payable

77,299		

48,848		

46,323

Dividends payable
Value Added Tax (VAT) payable
Accrued liabilities
$

–		

2,350		

2,350

853,198		

64,434		

59,770

38,260		

21,765		

48,713

278,150		

6,255		

59,148

1,691,226

$

513,740

$

Net periodic cost for the obligations derived from seniority premium and severance payments for obligations assumed
was $19,235 $7,077 and $6,278 in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

185,932

275,016		

Other accounts payable to distributors

Under the Federal Labor Law, the Entity has obligations for severance and seniority premiums payable to employees who cease rendering services under certain circumstances, as well as other obligations derived from a labor
agreement.

2018

203,427		

Lease liability

			

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

19. LABOR OBLIGATIONS

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, accrued liabilities and other accounts payable are comprised as follows:

Provisions for various obligations

COMMITMENT

The Entity each year records the net periodic cost to create a fund to cover the net projected liability for seniority
premiums, pensions and severance, thereby increasing the related liability, in accordance with actuarial calculations
made by independent actuaries. These calculations are based on the projected unit credit method. Therefore, a provision is being created for the liability which at present value will cover the defined benefits obligation at the estimated
retirement date of all the covered employees.
As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the balance of the defined benefits plan fund was $338, $342 and
$335, respectively.

439,074

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Entity amortizes the variations in actuarial assumptions for seniority
premiums over approximately 4.75, 4.85 and 4.75 years (approximately), respectively, based on the average remaining years of employee services.

18. LIABILITIES FROM LEASED ASSETS
As of December 31, 2020, the Entity has short-term lease liabilities of $52,586, together with long-term lease liabilities of $157,936. The maturity by year of long-term lease liabilities is as follows:

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the gains and losses recorded in the OCI are presented net of their
deferred tax liability (asset), which amounted to $14,844, $18,174 and $5,611, respectively.

YE AR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,

2021			$

52,586

2022				

46,362

2023				

44,149

2024				

43,330

Subsequent years 				
				$

The actuarial gains and losses at the time of adoption were recognized in the equity account other comprehensive
income and loss. This amount will be recycled in the results for the year over the remaining average labor life.
As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the balances and movements of the liabilities related to the Entity’s defined benefits plan, which includes the pension plan, seniority premiums and severance payments, are shown below:

24,095
				

210,522

Obligations from defined benefits

The Entity’s asset leasing activities include assets used for placements and to manage financing. According to the lease
contracts recorded as of December 31, 2020, the Entity has no future cash disbursements derived from residual value
guarantees, extension options and contract terminations, restrictions imposed by leaseholders or sales transactions
subject to leaseback agreements.

$

2020		
(87,072)

$

338		

Fair value of plan assets

2019		
(61,096)

$

342		

2018
(37,173)
335

			
		 Projected net liability

156

$

(86,734)

$

(60,754)

$

(36,838)
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$

2020		
16,773

$

2,478		

Financial cost

(16)		

Expected yield on assets

2019		

2018
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3,507

3,223

$

3,595		
(25)		

Capital stock as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, was comprised as follows:
2020

3,157
(102)

			
		 Services cost for the year

RECOGNITIONS

20. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Net periodic cost is comprised as follows:

Services cost for the year

COMMITMENT

$

19,235

$

7,077

$

6,278

“Unique” Series shares at no par value

NUMBER OF

NUMBER OF

SHARES (CL AS S I)

SHARES (CL AS S II)

FIXED

VARIABLE

TOTAL

CAPITAL

CAPITAL

STOCK

37,555,390

331,653,523

369,208,913

Interest rated used in actuarial calculation in nominal terms for 2020, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:
2019 and 2018

				
Discount rate		
Percentage increase in wages		

2020		
7.50%		
4.75%		

2019		
7.50%		
4.75%		

2018
10.00%
4.75%
“Unique” Series shares at no par value

NUMBER OF

NUMBER OF

SHARES (CL AS S I)

SHARES (CL AS S II)

FIXED

VARIABLE

TOTAL

CAPITAL

CAPITAL

STOCK

37,555,390

354,664,034

392,219,424

The movement of the projected net liability was as follows
Pursuant to a resolution of the Stockholders’ Ordinary Meeting held on April 3, 2020 the financial statements were
approved which reported net income of $1,980,109 in the fiscal year 2019 and the following application was made:
				
Opening balance

$

2020		
(60,754)

$

2019		
(36,838)

$

2018
(35,683)

Loss recognized		

–		

–		

–

Gains recognized		

–		

–		

–

(18,861)		

4,485

(7,190)		

(6,260)

Re-measurements recognized in OCI		

(26,600)		

Provision of the year

2,690		

Payments with a charge to the reserve
		 Projected net liability

(2,070)

$

86,734

$

2,135		
(60,754)

$

a.	The transfer of $1,980,109 of the Entity’s separate net income was transferred to the account “Result from
previous years”.
	As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the historical share capital amounts to $657,238, of which $62,931
corresponds to the fixed part (without right of withdrawal), represented in 2020, 2019 and 2018 by 37,555,390
ordinary shares, without expression of nominal value, Single Series, Class I, and $594,307, correspond to the
variable part, represented in 2020 by 331,653,523 and in 2019 and 2018 by 339,112,500 common shares,
nominative, no nominal value expression, Single Series, Class II. The update effect recognized on equity as of
December 31, 2007 amounts to $2,916. On 27 January 2020, the Ordinary General Meeting of Stockholders

620
(36,838)
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In accordance with the Mexican General Corporate Law, at least 5% of the net profits for the year must be set aside
to form the legal reserve until reaching 20% of common stock at par value. The legal reserve may be capitalized, but
cannot be distributed unless the Entity is dissolved, and must be replenished when it is decreased for any reason. As
of December 31 2020, 2019 and 2018, the legal reserve established by the Entity amounts to $132,030.

During 2020, certain issues involved making corrections in the 2020 financial year were identified from the result
of previous years for $66,996, which are integrated by an adjustment made to the $99,281 preventive credit risk
estimate, a reclassification of the securities investment account to the share repurchase account of $52,894, an
adjustment in accumulated depreciation of $(29,492), and a cumulative conversion effect of $21,196.

Stockholders’ equity, except restated paid-in capital and tax-retained earnings, will incur income tax payable by the
Entity at the rate in effect when the dividend is distributed. Any tax paid on such distribution may be credited against
income tax of the year in which the dividend tax is paid and, in the following two years, against tax for the year and
the related estimated payments.

On December 15, the Ordinary General Meeting of Stockholders was held at which it was decided to approve the
cancellation of 7,458,977 ordinary nominative shares, Single Series, Class II, representative of the variable part of the
broadcaster’s share capital, which had been acquired by the Broadcaster through its repurchase fund.

Dividends paid from the profits generated from January 1, 2014 to residents in Mexico and to nonresident stockholders may be subject to an additional tax of up to 10%, which will be withheld by the Entity.

On February 12, 2020, the Entity requested the updating of the registration of the shares representative of the share
capital of the same in the national register of securities, the procedure of which is in process.

Retained earnings that may be subject to withholding of up to 10% on distributed dividends is as follows:
					

At the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders dated on April 3, 2020, dividends were decreed for the amount of
$294,164,568 equivalent to 0.75 cents for each share, which was applied from the “Results from Previous Years”
account. The dividend was distributed to stockholders in proportion to their current shareholding, which comes from
the Net Tax Profit Account (“CUFIN”).

			
YEAR

The Stockholders’ Annual Ordinary General Meeting of April 17, 2019 declared a dividend payment of $265,768; this
amount was applied as a charge to the “Results of prior years” account. The dividend was distributed to stockholders
based on their current shareholdings and was taken from the Net Tax Income Account (“CUFIN”).
The Stockholders’ Annual Ordinary General Meeting of April 24, 2018 declared a dividend payment of $193,436;
this amount was applied as a charge to the “Results of prior years” account. The dividend was distributed to stockholders based on their current shareholdings and was taken from the Net Tax Income Account (“CUFIN”).

AMOUNT

AMOUNT NOT

DISTRIBUTED

REINVESTED

SUBJECT TO

EARNINGS

EARNINGS

WITHHOLDING

2018

$

–

$

193,436

$

193,436

$

–

2019

$

–

$

265,768

$

265,768

$

–

2020

$

–

$

–

$

–

$

–

The balances of the stockholders’ equity tax accounts as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, are:

						

The Entity has a share buyback program up to the amount of net income, including the retained earnings from the
immediately preceding year. At the end of the year 2020, 2019 and 2018, the amount of repurchased shares is
$140,467, $221,785 and $141,963 equivalent to 5,884,677, 12,551,534, and 5,259,479 shares, respectively.

158

2020		

2019		

2018

Net income tax account		

$

1,568,022

$

957,649

$

1,097,116

Contributed capital account		

$

3,113,262

$

3,018,189

$

2,935,410
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21. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
The balance as of 2020, 2019 and 2018 corresponds to various services mainly administrative services

The Entity, its subsidiaries and affiliates perform transactions between related parties including investments, credit
and the provision of services, among others, the majority of which generate income for one entity and expenses for
another. Transactions and balances with consolidated entities consolidate were eliminated and those of entities which
do not consolidate are reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with related parties in the normal course were as follows:

						

Balances with related parties as of December 31, are as follows:
						

2020		

2019		

$

6,215

Interest income

$ 1,491,080.08

$

5,278

$

591,171		

Administrative services

464,838

103,620		

Crédito Real USA		

331,492		

275,989

–

Bursa fideicomiso 3200 and 4217

750,000		

750,000

–

78,754		

119,582

$

234,733.04

$

73,858.79

$

107,961.52

$

85,570.14

22. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
a. The monetary position of foreign currencies as of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 is:

			
$

2,841,539

$

4,239,394

$

2,931,524
						

						

2020		

2019		

2018

Accounts payable:			
$

6,215

605,664		

454,174		

Directodo México

5,278

$

591,171		

5,247

Crholdingint

103,620		

Crédito Real USA

331,492		

275,989

–

Bursa fideicomisos 3200 and 4217

750,000		

750,000

–

78,754		

2,841,539

$

4,239,394

$

261,357		

Long position

2018

620,638		
(366,327)		

466,620
(267,767)

254,311		

198,853

			

119,582

Equivalent in pesos

			
$

2019		

			

464,838

1,196,038		 2,538,202		 2,341,857

Controladora CR Mexico

(344,305)		

Monetary liabilities
$

2020		

USD Dollars:			
Monetary assets

			

330,091.92

Expenses:			

5,247

Crholdingint

Servicios corporativos Chapultepec

$

1,196,038		 2,538,202		 2,341,857

Controladora CR Mexico

			

2018

			

454,174		

Directodo México

2019		

Income:			

2018

Accounts receivable:			
Servicios corporativos Chapultepec

2020		

$

5,203,311

$

4,797,367

$

3,907,702

The monetary position corresponds to the balances of subsidiaries in USA and Central America which are presented
in UD dollars.

2,931,524
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b. Transactions in foreign currencies were as follows:
						

2020		

2019		

	During the second quarter of 2020, the Entity consolidates the revenues generated by the revenues rental collection originated by generated by CReal Arrendamiento.

(2)

	During the second quarter of 2020, the Entity registers in this account revenues from the factoring transaction
interest by an amount of $137,354.

2018

(USD Dollars)
Interest expenses		

(1)

205,793		

195,797		

163,421

(39,342)		

(39,690)		

(26,564)

		
Interest income

24. ADMINISTRATIVE AND MARKETING EXPENSES
As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, is comprised as follows:

c.	Exchange rates in pesos wing force date of the consolidated financial statements and the date of the auditor’s
report were as follows:
APRIL 22

				
$

Dollar, banking

				

DECEMBER 31,

2021		 2020		
19.8865

$

19.9087

2019		

$

18.8642

$

Administrative services

2018

Operating lease income

(1)

$

767,675

$

2019		
–

$

1,075

70,291		

9,677		

60,581

Insurance income

1,210		

5,442		

–

Profit for sale of awarded goods

5,791		

7,750		

313

298,293		

119,622		

323,512

1,150,909		

143,021		

384,854

(216,981)		

(180,985)		

Management services

Other income
		 Total other operating income
Deferred cost

15,757		

80,077		

(2,236)

Other expenses

10,748		

3,710		

(1,230)

(190,475)		

		 Total other expenses
		 Other income (expenses), net

$

960,434

$

(104,617)		
38,404

$

1,278,144
527,465

45,388		

43,599		

41,882

Federal taxes and duties		

835,139		

898,265		

862,888

Deferred acquisition expense		

48,165		

43,129		

27,439

Bulletin D3 “Employee Benefits”

64,279		

61,745		

59,313

Real estate leases

31,259		

30,027		

28,844

Maintenance and repair

66,014		

63,411		

60,914

363,391		

312,047		

317,897

Depreciation		
138,417		 156,973		
150,791
Telephony and message

34,507		

33,146		

31,841

Advertising

51,891		

49,845		

47,882

Insurance and bond premium

29,829		

28,653		

27,524

			

$

3,539,169

$

3,607,017

$

3,483,129

25. INCOME TAXES

–

Taxation

$

549,090		

Non-deductible expenses		

Commissions on individuals and moral

–

529		

1,345,080

2018

Amortizations		
30,036		
28,852		
27,716

2018

7,650		

Asset sales revenue

$

2019		

Sundry		
45,856		
49,415		
47,468

19.6512

As of December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, the other operating income, were as follows:
2020		

1,279,696

571,630		

Professional fees

23. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

				

$

2020		

The Entity is subject to ISR. According with the ISR law, the rate is 30% in 2020, 2019 and 2018 and it will continue
at 30% thereafter.

(3,466)

ISR is computed taking into consideration the taxable and deductible effects of inflation, such as depreciation calculated on values in constant pesos, increased or reduced by the effect of inflation on certain monetary assets and
liabilities through the annual inflation adjustment.

388,320
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Following is a reconciliation of the statutory ISR rate and the effective rate expressed as a percentage of income
before ISR:
2020		

				

2019		

2018
				

2020		

2019		

2018

Statutory rate		

30%		

30%		

30%

Effects of inflation

(3%)		

(1%)		

(2%)

Interest accrued in advance period		

(2%)		

(3%)		

(6%)

ISR:			
Current

$

(707,578)

$

(587,737)

$

(355,305)

			
Deferred

$

619,639

$

(148,207)

$

(295,295)

Allowance for loan losses		

			
Stock deferred

$

–

$

(117,683)

$

(126,704)

As of December 31 2020, 2019 and 2018, the deferred tax balance is as follows:

2%		

Advance payments		

(2%)		

Differences in rates of subsidiaries in different tax jurisdictions		

(8%)		

1%		

1%

2%		

3%

–		

–

Difference in sale of assets		

(3%)		

Others

(7%) 		

(4%)		

–

11%		

25%		

25%

–

–

			
2020		

				

2019		

2018

		

Effective rate

Deferred ISR assets:			
Allowance for loan losses

$

325,936

$

596,015

$

Review and tax matters

407,366

Furniture and fixtures		

17,910		

24,310		

23,227

Provisions		

14,912		

9,828		

18,606

Tax loss carryforwards		

6,970		

2,091		

75,520

Other assets, net		

23,606		

4,597		

21,291

		 Deferred ISR assets		

389,335		

636,841		

546,010

Action for annulment filed against the unpaid tax liability for rejection of deductions for the year 2007.
On July 9, 2015, the Entity filed an action for annulment against the Federal Tax Court to challenge official notice
900 06-2018-13558, dated April 29, 2015, whereby the Central Administrator for Inspection of the Financial Sector
of the General Administration for Large Taxpayers of the Tax Administration Service, assessed against the Entity an
unpaid tax liability for $38,000, related to income tax payable for fiscal year 2007, plus the respective restatements,
surcharges and fines. Such lawsuit was turned over to the First Metropolitan Regional Chamber of the Federal Tax
Court, which in a ruling of September 1, 2015, admitted it under docket number 17549/15-17-01-8.

			
Deferred ISR (liability):			
(1,818,048)		 (2,899,389)		 (2,566,439)

Other accounts receivable, net (a)
Advance payments
Derivative financial instruments

(230,951)		

(232,212)		

(153,666)

(154,851)		

87,704		

(84,754)

On January 4, 2018, the First Metropolitan Regional Chamber of the Federal Tax Court issued a verdict on the aforementioned proceeding for annulment filed by the Entity, declaring it null and void, because it considers illegal the tax
liability determined in official notice 900 06-2015-13558, dated April 29, 2015, but also declared as valid the rejection
of the deduction taken by the Entity in the year 2007.

(2,176,751)		 (3,043,897)		 (2,804,859)

		 Deferred ISR liability
			
Deferred ISR (net)

$

(1,787,417)

$

(2,407,056)

$

(2,258,849)

(a)		 Mainly advance earned income in the first period loan amortization.

On August 17, 2018 the Entity filed a protection lawsuit with the Circuit Appeals Court in Mexico City against the
verdict declaring the partial nullity of the tax liability originated from the rejection of the deduction taken by the Entity
in the year 2007.

		A ccounting-tax reconciliation - The main items that affected the determination of the Entity’s tax result were
those related to the annual adjustment for inflation, interest accrued in advance period, advance payments and
the allowances for loan losses which have not been deductible.
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On August 14, 2020, the Central Litigation Administration of Large Taxpayers of the Tax Administration Service filed an
appeal for review against the final judgments of the Chambers of the Federal Administrative Court of Justice issued
in the judgment of February 5, 2020.

Net income attributable to common stock

In addition, it is important to mention that the Entity has a guarantee that was offered and accepted by the authority
on May 10, 2019 through the official letter 400-73-00-02-05-2019-01689 dated on April 29, 2019 issued by the
General Administration of Collection of the Tax Administration Service.

			

In accordance with the opinion of the management and external legal advisers, the possibilities for the abovementioned tax credit to be settled are remote.

Net income attributable to common stock

INCOME

$

NUMBER

ME XICAN PESOS

OF SHARES

PER SHARE

1,980,109		 392,219,424

				

On September 18, 2020, the Entity was notified of the official number of letter 900-02-00-00-00-2020-80807 dated
on September 18, 2020 through which the General Administration of Large Taxpayers requests reports, data and
documents from the Entity in order to review some income and deductions for the fiscal year 2017.

$

5.04

2018

					
INCOME

$

2020
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NUMBER

ME XICAN PESOS

OF SHARES

PER SHARE

1,955,358		 392,219,424

$

4.99

27. MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS
Memorandum accounts for purposes of presentation required by the Commission in accounting policies are an integral part of the balance sheet, however, the memorandum accounts were only subject of external audit and relate to
operations that have a direct bearing on the balance sheet accounts, however, these are not reviewed.

In this process we are in the first stage so the process will continue and be carried out in accordance with the tax
provisions in force.

				

2020		

2019		

2018

26. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Credit commitments

The amounts used to determine diluted earnings per share were as follows:

$

335,248

$

227,878

$

354,728

$

231,053

$

151,125

$

366,701

$

123,675

$

131,904

$

156,023

$

3,724,270

$

–

$

–

			
Uncollected interest earned on

						
				
			

INCOME

non-performing portfolio

2020
NUMBER

ME XICAN PESOS

OF SHARES

PER SHARE

			
Unarranged credit lines
			

Net income attributable to common stock

$

750,963		369,208,913

$

Other control accounts

2.03
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28. COMPARATIVE TABLE OF MAIN ASSET AND LIABILITY MATURITIES
Below are the maturity dates of the main assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2020

UNTIL 6 MONTHS

Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investment in securities		

FROM 6 MONTHS TO 1 YE AR

1,097,422

$

–

1,031,763		

FROM 1 YE AR TO 5 YE ARS

$

59,984		

–

MORE THAN 5 YE ARS

$

TOTAL

–

$

–		

–		

1,097,422
1,091,747

Derivative financial instruments		

–		

–		

1,123,098		

841,354		

1,964,452

Loan portfolio, net		

11,113,971		

8,902,789		

25,461,589		

–		

45,478,350

Other accounts receivable		

9,371,013		

8,295		

–		

–		

9,379,308

Total assets

Notes payable and senior notes

$

22,614,170

$

8,971,068

$

26,584,687

$

841,354

$

59,011,270

$

715

$

42,382

$

28,423,725

$

–

$

28,466,822

Bank loans		

6,610,204		

7,119,102		

7,629,990		

–		

21,359,296

Transactions with values and derivatives		

–		

–		

619,731		

–		

619,731

Other accounts payable		

2,015,088		

–		

–		

–		

2,015,088

$

Total liabilities

8,626,007

$

7,161,484

$

36,673,446

$

–

$

52,460,937

$

–10,088,759

$

841,354

$

6,550,342

					
$

Assets less liabilities

13,988,163

$

1,809,584

29. RATING (UNAUDITED)
As of December 31, 2020, the ratings assigned to the Entity are as follows:
R ATING AGENCY

SHORT TERM

LONG TERM

PERSPECTIVE

DATE

R ATING AGENCY

Foreign currency		

BB

Stable

PERSPECTIVE

DATE

Stable

October 13, 2020

Stable

July 31, 2020

Foreign currency

March 27, 2020

National issue

mxA

HR AA–		

Japan Credit Rating

Fitch Ratings
Foreign currency		
National issue

LONG TERM

HR Ratings

Standard & Poor’s
National issue

SHORT TERM

BB+

Negative

Global scale		

November 19, 2020

A+(mex)
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As of December 31, 2020, management and its legal, tax and labor internal and external advisers, consider that it has
not received any legal claims or has not been subject to lawsuits that arise in the recognition of a contingent liability
by the Entity.

Payroll loans

$ 24,224,222

Group loans		

31. COMMITMENTS
The Entity as of December 31 2020, has its own commitments and the operation mentioned in Note 15 “Indebtedness”
and Note 16 “Bank Loans and other loans”.

USA

$

70,531		

CENTR AL AMERICA

–

$

5,045,889

–		

TOTAL

$ 29,270,111

–		

70,531

Durable goods loans		

353,616		

–		

–		

353,616

Small business loans		

3,676,684		

–		

–		

3,676,684

Used car loans		

917,690		

2,030,484		

–		

2,948,174

		Total

$

29,242,743

$

2,030,484

$

5,045,889

$ 36,319,116

32. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION
The loan portfolio which shows arrears in excess of 90 calendar days, and up to 180 calendar days, at the end of
December 2020, 2019 and 2018, was $1,914,122, $1,100,297 and $799,169, respectively. By the same token, the
joint and several liability of the distributors for overdue loans as of those dates is $325,038, $467,579 and $181,614,
respectively, and is presented under other accounts receivable. Accordingly, as of December 31 2020, 2019 and
2018, the overdue loan portfolio was $1,589,084, $632,718 and $617,555, respectively.

Currently, the Entity has one operating segment, the loan portfolio, which represents the Entity’s sole strategic
business unit. Operating segment information is determined based on the information used by management to assess performance and allocate resources. The following presents information for each business unit determined by
Management. In addition, information is presented by products and geographical area.

33. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

2020
ME XICO

Payroll loans

$ 28,566,781

USA

$

CENTR AL AMERICA

–

$

5,641,308

TOTAL

$ 34,208,089

Group loans

492,728		

–		

–		 492,728

Durable goods loans

433,646		

–		

–		 433,646

Small business loans

7,392,427		

–		

–		7,392,427

Used car loans

1,360,751		3,622,290		

–		4,983,041

		Total

$ 38,246,332

$

3,622,290

$

5,641,308

As of January 13, 2021, the entity issues debt due in 2028, for $500,000 with an 8% annual interest rate, and with
the option to settle partially or completely as of January 21, 2025.
As of January 25, 2021, the entity increases the financing it receives from development banking to the firm a line of
credit with the International Development Corporation “DFC”.
As of January the entity exercises its right of guarantee, to obtain by means of a right giving two real estate worth
MXN $ 1,346,512.

$ 47,509,931

As of March 2020, the entity increased its equity in CReal Arrendamiento S.A. de C.V. to 75%.
As of April 30, 2021, the entity has made trade credit portfolio assignments for $262,616 to unrelated entities.

2019
ME XICO

Payroll loans

$

27,405,184

USA

$

CENTR AL AMERICA

–

$

5,755,105

TOTAL

$ 33,160,289

Group loans		

622,406		

–		

–		

622,406

Durable goods loans		

273,526		

–		

–		

273,526

Small business loans		

7,419,660		

–		

–		

7,419,660

Used car loans		

1,401,031		

4,081,507		

–		

5,482,538

		Total

$

37,121,807

$

4,081,507

$

5,755,105

34. NEW ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
As of December 31, 2020 the CINIF has issued the following NIF and Improvements to NIF which may affect the
consolidated financial statements of the Entity.
Improvements to NIF 2021 that generate accounting changes:
NIF C-16 Impairment of receivable financial instruments – Clarifies the effective interest rate to be utilized when
renegotiating a financial instrument to collect principal and interest (“IFCPI”).

$ 46,958,420
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Journal of the Federation on 23 January 2018 and amended by resolutions published in that media on 15 November
2018 and 4 November 2019 , to be as follows:
The Financial Reporting Standards B-17 “Determination of fair value”, C-3 “Accounts receivable”, C-9 “Provisions,
contingencies and commitments”, C-16 “Impairment of financial instruments receivable”, C-19 “Financial instruments
payable”, C-20 “Financial instruments to collect principal and interest”, D-1 “Revenues from contracts with customers”, D-2 “Costs of contracts with customers” and D-5 “Leases”, issued by the Mexican Financial Reporting Standards
Board and referred to in paragraph 3 of Treatment A-2 “Application of specific standards” of Annex E will go into effect
on January 1, 2022.”

NIF D-4 Income taxes, and NIF D-3 Employee benefits – Paragraphs have been included regarding uncertain tax
treatments when considering the bases used to determine ISR and PTU, while also evaluating the probability whereby
the tax or legal authority will accept or reject an uncertain tax treatment.
NIF D-4 Income taxes – Clarifies the accounting recognition of income taxes incurred by the distribution of dividends
in relation to the transactions that generated distributable profits.

The Financial Reporting Rules, as set out in the preceding paragraph, referred to in paragraph 3 of the Financial
Reporting Criteria.

NIF D-5 Leases – a) Given the complexity that may arise when determining the discount rate, this NIF establishes the
possibility of utilizing a risk-free rate to discount future lease payments and recognize the lessee’s lease liability, and
b) the use of a practical expedient to exclude material and identifiable components other than leases from the asset
usage right measurement and lease liabilities was restricted.

A-2” Implementation of particular rules” in Annex 4 shall enter into force on January 1, 2023.”
As of the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements, the Entity is in the process of evaluating and
determining the effects of these new rules on its financial information.

Likewise, other improvements to NIF 2021 that do not generate accounting changes were also included and essentially clarify the purpose of each standard.

35. AUTHORIZATION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements, the Entity is in the process of determining the
effects derived from its adoption of these new standards on its consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance on April 22, 2021, by the Entity’s CEO and Deputy
CEO/CFO. For this reason, they do not reflect events that took place after such date and are subject to approval by
the Stockholders’ Annual Ordinary General Meeting, which may decide to modify them in accordance with the General
Companies Law. The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2019 were approved at a
Stockholders’ Ordinary General Meeting held on April 24, 2020.

Homologation of Accounting Criteria by the Commission
On November 9, 2020, the Commission issued the Resolution amending the General Provisions applicable to general warehouses, exchanges, credit unions and regulated multi-object financial companies”, published in the Official
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Crédito Real, S.A.B. de C.V., SOFOM, E.N.R.,
Avenida Insurgentes Sur 730, Piso 20,
Colonia del Valle Norte,
Alcaldía Benito Juárez, C.P. 03103,
Mexico City

INVESTOR RELATIONS

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITYL

Renata González Muñoz

Jenny Yazmin Estrada Chávez

(55) 5228 9753

(55) 5340 5200 ext. 2131

rgonzalez@creditoreal.com.mx

yestrada@creditoreal.com.mx

The statements contained in this report may include certain estimations. Such statements are neither factual nor historical, and are based on the current views of the
management of Crédito Real, S.A.B. de C.V., SOFOM, E.N.R., of future economic circumstances, industry conditions, company performance and financial results. The words
“anticipated,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “plans,” and other such expressions relating to the company are intended to identify estimates or projections. Statements
regarding the declaration of payment of dividends, the implementation of the core operation and financial strategies and capital expenditure plans, the direction of
future operations and factors or trends affecting the financial condition, liquidity or results of the company’s operations are all examples of estimated statements. These
statements reflect the current views of management and are subject to various risks and uncertainties. There is no guarantee that the expected events, trends or results
will actually occur. The statements are based on various assumptions and factors, including general economic and market trends, industry conditions and operating
factors. Any change in these assumptions or factors could cause real results to differ substantially from expectations.
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